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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED AFEERAFMZERMDHERA A

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEEE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(BRI EERRS)

Expressed in RMB millions

AARE BBt

Year ended 31 December

HET-A=1T—HIFE

Revenues

Other operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance income/(cost), net

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company

Earning/(loss) per share
attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company
(RMB)®

At 31 December
R+=ZA=+—~8

Cash and cash equivalents

Net current liabilities

Non-current assets

Long term borrowings, including
current portion

Obligations under finance leases,

including current portion
Total share capital and reserves

attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company

e

HeE xS

BHEXH

eEEd (B1R)
ISR () - F a8
BRELATRIE,(BE)
AARIESERHEEREFE
AL (E518)

ARFERFEERG
FRAEF(BR)
(AR®T)O

Re kB eEE
R A E

ERBEE

Egma A @?E/AL@J%M/J}

MERSEE
BIERE RN
AREERFEEREG
AT

2008

(3.14)

3,451
(43,458)
62,652
(15,628)

(20,809)

(13,097)

2009

38,989
1,288
(38,456)
1,821
(1,549)
249

169

0.03

1,735
(28,648)
64,988
(16,928)

(19,370)

1,235

2010

73,804
658
(68,765)
5,697
(347)
5,418

4,958

0.44

3,078
(27,184)
91,254
(27,373)

(19,208)

15,271

2011

82,403 85,253
1,062 1,720
(79,292) (82,745)
4,173 4,228
561 (1,349)
4,841 3,012

4,576

0.41

3,861
(29,679)
101,031

(30,321)

(20,261)

20,126

)

)

REVENUES

The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share for 2007 and 2008 are based on the consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company and 4,866,950,000 shares in issue. The calculation of earnings per share for 2009 is based on the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of shares of 6,436,828,000; the calculation of earnings per share for 2010 is based
on the consolidated profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of 11,149,426,000 ordinary
shares in issue. The calculation of earnings per share for 2011 and 2012 is based on the consolidated profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company divided by 11,276,538,860 ordinary shares in issue.

—FRL - —RF) \$me?'F'J/(TEé‘E)xz*EB*““@FE’]ZK@T’ffsﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ i Al /(518 BR LAD 2517/ #14,866,950,0008% 51 1 : —ZENFHNFH
EANERIEE FEL ’Aﬂ*&ﬁhﬁ% 15/ﬁﬁ%lﬁu§§ﬁﬁﬁ7l\1@ﬂﬁ e 15 26, 436,828 OOOHQ;TI'% - RENFREFIZREEFENAR
R A & AR B AR e S R A ﬂﬂ%?ﬁﬁ’i%{ﬁ 149,426,0000% 5t & - —T——%F » 2~ —FERANRRBEZEFENARRERRFE

H IR R FIBR AT ?E?I\‘g"@ﬂ‘iﬂ 276,538,860% 5T & °
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

E S REsE N (EER)

(RMB millions) (A R#EETT)

(RMB millions) (A R#EETT)
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SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS DATA

S RBEERAERE

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

(Bt EEERRR)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
HE-Z——F+-_A=1t—HIFEMNH

Net profit FEAE

Income from main operations FEERFE
Income from other operations E A EERFE
Income from investments & W

Net income outside business B HEINK SRR

MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA & FINANCIAL INDICATORS
T2 e EBENTBEE

(Expressed in RMB Million) (AR EHE&T)

1. Operation revenue EEA
Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of (BN AR BEmIEEE
the Company FFE
3. Total assets WA E
4. Shareholders’ equity &R fE =
5. Earnings per share (RMB) FEW=(ARETT)
6. Net assets per share (RMB) HRFEEARET)
Notes:

1. Calculation of major financial indicators:
Earnings per share = net profit + weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

RMB million AR B ETT

3,300
9,878

991

234

2,688

2011 2012
83,974.51 85,569.25
4,886.70 3,430.11
112,215.15 120,962.48
22,145.41 25,042.64
0.43 0.30

1.78 2.22

Net assets per share = shareholders’ equity at the end of the year + total number of ordinary shares at the end of the year

1. EBRMBEGAEDENT
RN =FFE - BT EINE BRI B
BROFEAE = FEARPCRER ~ FERE B 42



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED AFEERAFMZERMDHERA A

SUMMARY OF SELECTED OPERATING DATA

TEEEREBRE

Capacity
ATK (available tonne - kilometres)
(million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

ASK (available seat - kilometres)
(million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

AFTK (available freight tonne -
kilometres) (million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

Hours flown (thousand)

Traffic
RTK (revenue tonne - kilometres)
(million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

RPK (revenue passenger -
kilometres) (million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

RFTK (revenue freight tonne -
kilometres) (million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

Number of passengers carried
(thousand)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

Weight of freight carried (kg) (million)

— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

Ewseh
AAMAEATK)(EE)

—BERfER
— Bl AR
— R AR

AAEAERASK) (EE)

—BERfER
— Bl AR
— R AR

7] A& EW A E(AFTK)
(B8)
—BIAfAR
— BIEMAAR
— B MHUAR

AT (F)

Eng
WA AERTK)(EE)

— BN
— Bl AR
— R AR

EEARERPK)(EE)

— BN
— Bl AR
— R AR

& EEIEM A E(RFTK)
(58)
— B A AR
— B4R
— Hb AT AR

HEREAR(T)

— BN
— Bl AR
— R AR

ERHES(AT)(ER)
—BERfER
— Bl AR
— R AR

19,721.41
10,5631.56
8,493.45
696.40
136,723.95
95,167.75
36,472.11
5,084.09
7,416.25
1,966.46
5,210.96

238.84

1,404.52

14,406.48

7,705.32
6,243.40
457.76

109,112.68

76,155.58
29,105.09
3,852.01

4,700.90

922.68
3,661.41
116.82

73,077.06

62,360.47
7,903.00
2,813.59

1,416.48
679.85
641.94

94.69

18,662.50

9,908.43
7,975.16
778.91

127,890.81

88,012.97
34,685.25
5,192.59

7,152.33

1,987.26
4,853.49
311.68

1,288.40

13,402.08

7,256.76
5,6569.85
485.47

100,895.06

70,932.87
26,151.29
3,810.90

4,420.57

934.14
3,338.13
148.30

68,724.96

58,761.38
7,246.70
2,716.88

1,443.05
699.43
626.26
117.37

*Change
L EIEE

5.67%

6.29%
6.50%
-10.59%

6.91%

8.13%
5.15%
-2.09%

3.69%

-1.05%
7.37%
-23.35%

9.01%

7.49%

6.18%
10.31%
-5.71%

8.14%

7.36%
11.80%
1.08%

6.34%

-1.23%
9.68%
-21.23%

6.33%

6.12%
9.06%
3.56%

-1.84%
-2.80%
2.50%
-19.32%
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SUMMARY OF SELECTED OPERATING DATA
TERERERE

2011 Change
——%F  EBEE

Load factors HER

Overall load factor (%) HREEER(%) 71.81 1.24pts
— Domestic routes — BRIz 73.24 -0.08 pts
— International routes — BB fnéR 70.97 2.54 pts
— Regional routes — [ AR 62.33 3.40 pts

Passenger load factor (%) B EE (%) 78.89 0.92 pts
— Domestic routes — B Rz 80.59 -0.57 pts
— International routes — B fin iR 75.40 4.40 pts
— Regional routes — [ fn AR 73.39 2.38 pts

Freight load factor (%) EREHER(%) 61.81 1.58 pts
— Domestic routes — B Rz 47.01 -0.09 pts
— International routes — B fin iR 68.78 1.48 pts
— Regional routes — [ fn AR 47.60 1.31 pts

Yields and costs Wz = M AR A A5

Revenue tonne - kilometres yield WARE DBz (ARE)
(RMB) 5.71 -3.49%
— Domestic routes — B Rz 6.93 -3.65%
— International routes — B fin iR 3.97 -1.96%
— Regional routes — [ fn AR 7.71 4.24%

Passenger - kilometres yield (RMB) EEALNBUHZF(ARE) 0.68 -417%
— Domestic routes — B Rz 0.69 -4.39%
— International routes — B fin iR 0.63 -1.09%
— Regional routes — [ fn AR 0.81 4.00%

Freight tonne - kilometres yield EIEN A B Wi (AFTK)
(AFTK) (RMB) (AE#®) 1.83 -6.44%
— Domestic routes — B Rz 1.44 -0.32%
— International routes — B fn iR 1.82 -6.41%
— Regional routes — [ fn AR 4.49 -12.33%



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

FLEET
B

FLEET STRUCTURE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 BE_T——_FT+_H=1T—HB#KX

==
=
B %
Self-
owned and Under
under finance  operating
No. Model lease lease Sub-total
E E\%/f& pus £
] =1 (= WK =

FF 555 R MEHE KEHE /INET

Passenger aircraft

B

Wide-body aircraft

EREE
A340-600 5 - 5
A330-300 8 7 15
A330-200 10 8 13
A300-600R 7 - 7
B767 6 1 7

Narrow-body aircraft

Eret
A321 27 - 27
A320 98 68 131
A319 12 8 20
B757-200 5 ) 10
B737-800 17 56 73
B737-700 & 18 58]
B737-300 16 - 16
CRJ-200 8 - 8
EMB-145LR 10 - 10

Total number of passenger aircraft

EH@aT 266 131 397

Freighter

=t}
MD-11F = 3 3
A300-600R 8 - 3
B747-400ER 2 8 5
B757-200F - 2 2
B777F = 6 6

Total number of freighters

BE#as 5 14 19

Total number of passenger

aircraft and freighters
FERBAEH 271 145 416
No. of custody
RERE

Business aircraft

DNEHET 12

Total number of aircraft

TR E 428




FLEET
TP
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FUTURE AIRCRAFT PLAN RARHEPKET 2B

B oc 4

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“F-=F —T-mE ik TRE I 2

Model Introduction  Retirement Introduction  Retirement Introduction  Retirement Introduction  Retirement Introduction  Retirement
g 5l B’ 5l i ol it Elhi i Elhid it
Passenger aircraft (Z#)
A320 Series (AS20Z7)) 22 4 26 - 31 - 20 - 15 -
A330 Series (A330Z7)) 8 = 8 - 7 - - - - -
A340 Series (AS40Z ) - = = 1 = 4 - - - -
B737NG 26 5 24 - 35 - 15 - - -
B757 - - - 1 - 1 - - - -
B777-300ER - - 4 - 5) - 5 - 3 -
Regional aircraft (57 &77¢/) - - - 8 - 5 - 5 - -
Freighter (£#)
A300-600F - 3 - - - - - - - -
B747 - - - 1 - 1 - - - 1
B757F - - - - - 2 - - - -
MD11 - 2 - - - - - - - -
Total & 56 14 62 11 78 13 40 5 18 1

Note: The abovementioned quantity and timing for the introduction and retirement of it
aircraft shall be subject to adjustment based on market conditions.

REMIGER - LRSHEREAO BB - RHERIED
HENREA LR A FE



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED AFEERAFMZERMDHERA A

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
REL

27 February 2012

The Company and CAE Canada entered
into an agreement for the introduction of
a Gulfstream G450/550 flight simulator,
which is the first flight simulator for business
aircraft to be introduced in China.

_ﬁ_ﬁ_+tﬁ
FiN/N jﬂj]ﬂ%j(CAE EESIHEER
G450/55048 LL a1 7% XE':F' BIEIA 5|
K5 — BRI S S i

5 May 2012

The Company’s air-rail transportation
product “Air-Rail Service” served the
first batch of travelers, marking the
official commencement of the first air-rail
transportation product in China.

——F¥hAEHEHA
$ ZEERE A M R BRIk T B
ﬁ&% Lﬁr“\ b P BB A B (A = e
an IEA R

2 March 2012

The Company’s “Xinhuanet” Aircraft made
its first flight. This colorful aircraft is the
first in China named after a network media
entity.

E-"H=AZH
KA HEEY RUER M 52
BEEANEEABBERGEN RIS
ot

20 March 2012

The Company was ranked among the
“2012 Top 25 Companies in China with
the Best Corporate Social Responsibility”
by Fortune China Magazine.

—#=HA=+H
ARFEAZE— —F(B B (PR B
#i8 & THTIE25%

6 June 2012

China Cargo Airlines made an official
announcement regarding its intent to join
the SkyTeam Cargo Alliance at the China
Aviation Logistics Exhibition.

—®——&XxAXA

hEMAET B YRR L IEA N
TIAREEEBRBENER

21 June 2012

The Company entered into a loan facility
agreement in the amount of RMB20 billion
and strategic cooperation with Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.

e AT x e e~

ARFE EERRERBTRHARAH
HEE00EARBESHEREEHOH
A fF i

10

Fi AL 1N I 5 7O 0L ST O B R 4 I sk

0

1 July 2012

The Company and WestJet Airlines
Ltd., based in Canada, commenced
code sharing cooperation on flights from
Vancouver to the Company’s domestic
destinations.

—®-——f+tA—H
ALTENEAT R EREERT
mEMfE LRRASED A

24 August 2012

Eastern Air Overseas, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a shareholders’
agreement with respect to JetStar Hong
Kong with JetStar International, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Qantas, to establish
JetStar Hong Kong as a Hong Kong-based
and Jetstar-branded low-cost carrier.

—E2-_F/\A=-+@0H

ARA TBRAVEINLRME T2 EF A
DREEBREE T REEEMERAN
% BB R BB B - a@ﬁ%g
RIER AR A 7R BB

2 September 2012

The Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with Niulanshan No. 1
Secondary School in Beijing regarding
aviation experiment class, pursuant to
which an “Aviation Experiment Class”
would be jointly established for training
talented individuals for aviation.

—E-—FhAZ=H
ADRBILRETFBILE—FEE
(BRI ZE gL — EP?F%? (%i%ﬁ)
FERTE)  H Bz R AR AT
i i“%ﬁmé%)\ﬁ




SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
RE4LL

30 October 2012

The Company made its first flight from
Shanghai to Cairns in Australia. This is the
first scheduled direct flight from China to
Cairns.

—E--f%t+A=+H
ARAEM EEERAFNTYBLME -
ERhEE NG EY R TP E R

16 November 2012

The Company was awarded the “Golden
Tripod Award” at the 8th Annual Meeting
of China’s Securities Market.

—g——F+-A+xA

AAREENETPEELFMSFTETA
“HmE
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26 November 2012

China United Airlines, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed its
joint reorganization with the former Hebei
Branch of the Company and became
the New China United Airlines, which is
principally based at the Nanyuan Airport in
Beijing.

e e A = ey A =
KRB TBEE F A5 5B iR 3 A
D REIERKEE S ER - AR
FiEE EM Rl RS

22 November 2012

The Company was recognized as a “Listed
Company with the Most Valuable Brand”
at the 2012 Hong Kong China Securities
Golden Bauhinia Award ceremony, and Mr.
Liu Shaoyong, Chairman of the Company,
was recognized as a “Most Influential
Leader”.

—E--H+—-HA=+=H
ADEE"BEB20120 HEH LKL
RS BASREELTAR  AARE
EEAABWA BAYE HER

11

pu)

12 December 2012

The Company was ranked 25th among the
“Top 50 Most Valuable Chinese Brands”
by WPP, a global brand communication
firm.

—E-—H+=ZA+=H
RATRDIRRDIEEERBWPPT A &
AfEEDERIE50%" - 15 F250

December 2012
The Company was recognized among the
“Top 100 Employer in China” in 2012.

—2-—%+=A4
ADTES 20120 BREREERE
TR




CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED A EEAFMERMDER QA

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREEE

Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the report on the operating results of China Eastern Airlines Corporation
Limited (the “Company” or “CEA”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012. On behalf of the entire staff of the Group, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

BENMRER

RAEBBREEPERIMEROERQ B ([EL
TZA=T—RLLFERE  EARFIKE2EST

DRRR(THRR ]S

Liu Shaoyong 243 5
Chairman EF+&
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERMES

In 2012, the global economic downturn resulted in: (i) decreased demand
in both international and domestic passenger traffic and freight markets; (ii)
greater cost pressures brought by consistently high crude oil prices; and (i)
intensified competition in domestic routes due to preference passengers for
railway over airline transportation becoming more common. Meanwhile, the
Group’s international routes were also affected by unforeseen international
events. Facing this complex international and domestic environment,
the Group has, under the premise of ensuring flight safety, maintained
positive profitability by optimising route and fleet structure, enhancing sales
management in both passenger transportation and freight transportation,
maintaining stringent cost control, strengthening the development of
information technology and improving the quality of its services.

Safety management

The Group maintained a stable safety system in 2012. The Group continued
to strengthen its construction of the Safety Management System (SMS);
promulgated and issued work plans and implementation proposals of the
SMS with the relevant teams; commenced specific restoring measures
regarding the risks such as lighting strike, hard landing and communication
failure; established the Nantong airport training base to reinforce training on
flying skills; and formulated the “2#&R1T A BZ T B 5 2 (Assessment
and Remuneration Packages of Star-rating Flight Crew Members)”, which
commenced star-rating assessment of all flight crew members in terms of
flight safety, flight quality, practice and discipline and services. Such rating
system not only optimised our incentive programs, but also enhanced our
environment and culture to promote safe operations. The Company assessed
and appointed 361 five-star captains during the first assessment at the end of
2012.

13
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERMESE

Passenger traffic business
Developing hub networks

In 2012, for domestic routes, the Group increased the frequency of flights in
certain express and sub-express routes, including Shanghai to Guangzhou,
Chongaing, Zhengzhou and Changsha. The Group essentially provided full
coverage over routes from Kunming to other provincial capitals in the PRC
by leveraging on opportunities arising from the release of time slots at the
new Kunming airport, which introduced new destinations such as Yinchuan,
Jinan and Xining. The Group introduced new flights from Ningbo, Hefei and
Nanchang to Northwest China via Xi’an and increased the frequency of
flights from Xi’an to Northwest China by leveraging on opportunities arising
from the release of time slots at a new terminal at the Xi’an airport. For
international routes, the Group introduced four weekly routes from Shanghai
to Cairns, Australia, and increased the frequency of flights from Shanghai to
Paris, Rome, Sydney and Hawaii during peak seasons. Given the change of
relationship between China and Japan and related market factors, the Group
reduced its flight capacity allocated to routes between the two countries after
September 2012, and reallocated resources to Southeast Asian routes, as
well as increased the frequency of flights from Shanghai to Ho Chi Minh, Kuala
Lumpur, Bangkok and New Delhi.

The Group steadily fostered the construction of flight system for its core hub
in Shanghai and regional hubs in Kunming and Xi’an by introducing new flight
destinations and increasing the frequency of certain flights, thereby enhancing
its transfer and connection capability in these hub markets. By the end of
2012, a preliminary flight frequency of “four-in-four-out” was established
at Shanghai Pudong International Airport, with “four-in-four-out” currently
also being established at Kunming Airport, which increased the transfer and
connection services via Kunming to Southeast Asia, South Asia and Western
Asia. Xi'an Airport is also in the process of establishing a “three-in-three-out”
flight frequency.

In addition, the Group actively strengthened its position in the Beijing market.
Facing the relatively saturated time slots and flight resources at Beijing Capital
International Airport, the Group integrated China United Airlines Co., Ltd.
(“China United Airlines”), the sole operator of Beijing Nanyuan Airport and
the Hebei Branch of the Company, to establish the new China United Airlines.
The new China United Airlines has fully utilized time slots at Nanyuan Airport
and added six B737 aircraft, which increased the frequency of flights from
Beijing Nanyuan to Shenzhen, Xiamen and Changsha, and has enhanced the
Group’s market share in Beijing.

In 2012, the Company implemented code-sharing programs covering 274
destinations along 429 routes with SkyTeam member airlines, as well as 130
destinations along 142 routes with non-SkyTeam member airlines, which has
further broadened the coverage of the Group’s route network.

14
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Enriching the categories of marketing products

In 2012, the Group took the initiative to develop marketing products based
on the characteristics of different markets and routes to expand its sales
channels, broaden its customer base and increase its flight revenue.

The Group designed four core products of the “ 5 &7%I| (Eastern Series)”
in accordance with different levels of demand and consumption, including
“BHE= (Eastern Premium)” which targets high-quality business travelers,
providing them with concierge-style, full accompaniment services; 8 7518
= (Eastern Privileges) which targets potential high-value travelers, providing
them with upgraded experiences and door-to-door pickup services to and
from the airport; 35 £i& (Eastern Far Reach) which targets travelers with
special needs, providing them with one-stop services covering visa application
before departure to ticketing reservation; and 77 28 #& (Eastern Shuttle) which
targets travelers to Yunnan, providing them with itinerary design, transit and
destination value-added services.

In 2012, the Group cooperated with the Shanghai Railway Bureau to launch
“Air-Rail Pass Transportation” products in 13 cities in the Yangtze River
Delta including Nanjing, Hangzhou and Suzhou. The Group’s domestic and
international flights together with its high-speed railway products at Shanghai
Honggiao Interational Airport and Shanghai Pudong International Airport have
formed a air-rail two-way transportation product, which has helped the Group
broaden its customer base.

Meanwhile, in response to the low seasons, the Group launched travel
products such as “Journey to the Three Regions in Southern China” (Yunnan,
Hainan and Jiangnan) and “Journey to the West” (trip to Greater Western
China via Xi’an), which has effectively enhanced passenger load factor for
flights during low seasons.

Developing customer resources

The Group actively explored and expanded its customer base of high-end
business travelers to accelerate the development of group clients. In 2012,
the Group added over 200 group clients, of which 15 are global group clients.
Currently, the total number of group clients amounts to over 4,500, which has
contributed to increased sales revenues.

The Group fully promoted the development of Eastern Miles membership
business. In order to attract more members, and to provide members better
experience in terms of diversity, comprehensiveness and flexibility, the Group
strengthened its cooperation with retail store owners by increasing the number
of co-operative stores where members may accumulate and redeem points
to 74, covering various industries such as financial services, hotel, car rental
and health services. The total number of exchangeable goods through this
program has increased to over 850 items. By the end of 2012, the Group had
over 3 million new Eastern Miles members, with a total of 18 million members.
Members of Eastern Miles can participate in the frequent flyer mileage
accumulation and the redemption programs of 19 SkyTeam member airlines,
as well as enjoy other member benefits. Elite members also have access to
our 525 VIP lounges across the world.
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Freight transportation business

In 2012, the Group reduced its allocation of flight capacity for freight
transportation in response to weak demand in the freight transportation
market. Meanwhile, the Group adjusted and optimised its freight transportation
flight routes by changing the interline routes of “Shanghai Pudong-
Copenhagen-Paris-Shanghai Pudong” to “Shanghai Pudong-Copenhagen”
and “Shanghai Pudong-Paris” routes, and canceled our inbound domestic
destination at Tianjin for the Shanghai Pudong-Chicago route.

In terms of marketing of freight transportation, the Group promoted the
construction of cabin space and freight price control system and strengthened
its income management by establishing sales models at headquarters;
increased sales efforts for early flight express mail products so as to boost
the sales of seasonal goods; facilitated the integration of Yangtze River Delta
market while planning a regional sales network in Yangtze River Delta to
conduct joint sales in the region.

In order to enhance the management of its freight transportation business
and increase the efficiency and quality of operations, the Group established a
global freight transportation command center to fully control the management
of 58 freight terminals; completed the implementation of 20 domestic and 22
international station benchmarks in accordance with Cargo2000 (a quality
management standard for international aviation freight transportation industry);
strengthened the construction of quality management system; and revised the
operation standard of general cargo and express mail, which reduced the time
between receipt and delivery of goods at its Shanghai station.

In addition, the Group’s various efforts facilitated the entering of China Cargo
Airlines Co., Ltd. (“China Cargo Airlines”) to the SkyTeam Cargo Alliance.
On 6 June 2012, the Company formally signed a letter of intent to join the
SkyTeam Cargo Alliance, with official membership to commence in 2013.

Cost control

The Group strictly controlled its budget and reinforced cost control by adopting
a comprehensive budget management system. The Group also proactively
promoted all-levels integration of its procurement resources and streamlined
and optimised the procurement process, as well as implemented entire-
process control over procurement. The Group implemented approximately 700
instances of centralised procurement with respect to information technology,
automobile, jet fuel and in-flight supplies in 2012. Meanwhile, the Group
also strengthened DOC (Direct Operation Cost) control and management by
streamlining aircraft models and optimising route structure. The Group also
reduced fuel consumption by way of precise refueling based on its flight plans,
which effectively reduced fuel costs by approximately RMB130 million in 2012.
In addition, the Group actively explored financing channels and sought to
reduce its finance costs by means of various financial instruments. In 2012,
the Company issued super short-term commercial paper of RMB4 billion with
a consolidated finance costs that were lower than The People’s Bank of China
benchmark interest rate.
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Information technology

The Group has always attached great importance to the enhancement of
information technology, and has sought to implement information technology
that contributes to the continued development of the Group’s business.
In 2012, the Group further optimised its electronic sales service system,
including its official website, call centres and mobile application “HAZ )
E (China Eastern Mobile E)”, which serves to enhance customer experience
while increasing the Group’s direct sales. The Group upgraded its official
domestic website and launched nine overseas websites. The Group fostered
the transformation and upgrade of call centres and gradually expanded this
system to all branches, subsidiaries and sales departments. In view of the
increasing popularity of smart phones, the Group introduced the new version
“RAZBE (China Eastern Mobile E)” in 2012, providing a streamlined
customer experience with tickets booking, flight status checking and online
check-in and international tickets sales services via a domestic mobile phone
application.

Meanwhile, the Group took a proactive approach towards the development
of self-service check-in functions and continuous improvement of an online
check-in system to offer more convenient self-services for passengers.

Service quality

Adhering to the concept of “customer satisfaction above all else” and “providing
heart-to-heart service to our customers”, the Group optimised and adjusted its
fleet structure while proactively pushing the enhancement and renovation of its
hardware and software service products. In 2012, the Group’s newly upgraded
infrastructure and facilities, including ground VIP lounges, waiting areas and
check-in areas in regional hubs and key markets such as Xi’an, Kunming
and Beijing Nanyuan, as well as commenced operations of the Company’s
exclusive VIP lounges at Guangzhou and Shenzhen airports. The Group
advocated a green, environmentally friendly and healthy catering concept and
joined hands with world-renowned hotel groups to design innovative cuisine to
be served in first class and business class cabins. The Group also promoted
customized service of “Inflight Meals Ordered Before Flight” for first class and
business class cabins and high-end customers. The content of entertainment
systems in the passenger cabins has been continuously improved to ensure
diversified in-flight entertainment experience of passengers. In addition, under
circumstances where flights were substantially affected due to bad weather
and other unexpected events, the Group increased the number of information
dissemination platforms and optimised procedures to address such issues
by providing timely flight status information for customers to facilitate itinerary
adjustments.
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Transformation and development

Working around the transformation target of “transforming from an air
passenger and freight carrier to an integrated aviation services and logistics
services provider”, the Group took a first step towards transformation by
making a concerted effort to push forward the integration and allocation of
internal resources in 2012. Driven by information technology, passenger
transportation transformation was driven by improved network capability,
product marketing and customer demand. The Group further explored
customer resources and steadily promoted the construction of the Group’s
electronic business platform and mobile service platform. As for freight traffic
transformation, the Group integrated China Cargo Airlines and /85 5i&
MR AEMR AR (Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics Co., Ltd) (“Eastern
Logistics”), which developed new businesses such as freight expressway,
logistics solutions and aviation trading on the basis of its existing strong
traditional storage and freight transportation business, which enabled the
Group to build a general logistics platform for logistics services.

Meanwhile, in its proactive response to the rapid development of low-
cost airlines around the world, the Group entered into a shareholders’
agreement with Qantas Airways Limited (“Qantas”) in 2012, pursuant to
which a joint venture low-cost carrier will be established in Hong Kong that
will adopt the low-cost “Jetstar” brand owned by Qantas. As of the date of
this announcement, Jetstar Hong Kong Limited (“Jetstar Hong Kong”) had
obtained the certificate of incorporation issued by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

OUTLOOK FOR 2013

The Group cautions readers of this report. As an air transport enterprise that
provides public service functions, the operations of the Group are closely
linked to political and economic developments both in the PRC and abroad. As
such, the Group’s operations as well as that of the aviation industry are, to a
significant extent, subject to risks associated with unforeseen occurrences of
geopolitical events and other significant events.

The 2012 annual results of the Group includes certain forward-looking
statements with respect to the future plans of the Group and the outlook of
international and domestic economic conditions and the general condition of
the global aviation industry. Such forward-looking statements are subject to
many uncertainties and risks beyond our control, and the actual results of the
Group may vary materially from these forward-looking statements. You are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.

In 2013, there is still uncertainty in the global economy as China’s economic
growth has generally slowed down but has maintained relatively steady
and rapid development. Under this operation environment, the Group, with
the premise of maintaining safe operations, intends to achieve its goal of
strengthening its management of passenger and freight carriers and strictly
controlling cost to achieve improved operational efficiency.
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For the passenger traffic business, the Group expects to allocate flight
capacity and routes precisely and properly and to maintain accurate control of
cabin space and refine pricing management. The Group will seek to increase
the proportion of direct sales by expanding its sales and marketing platform;
and step up its efforts to develop transition and tourism products by leveraging
on its 72-hours visa-free stay policy in Shanghai and Beijing. The Group
also seeks to further enhance its cooperation with both members and non-
members airlines of the SkyTeam Alliance. Performance efficiency will also be
enhanced through strengthened sales and marketing management measures
and increased operating efficiency.

In terms of freight logistics, the Group will seek to adjust the structure of its
freight fleet and route network, based on existing market conditions. Operating
costs are expected to be reduced by controlling the allocation of flight
capacity. Building on its steady freight carrier business, the Group will seek
to enhance the operation management of bellyhold space to increase freight
traffic revenue. Meanwhile, the Group will actively expand its presence in the
freight logistics market by enhancing its ability to provide logistics solutions.

The Group will continue to implement comprehensive budget management
measures and strengthen the overall control in implementating this budget.
Fuels cost can be decreased through reduced fuel consumption by way of
continued route optimisation, continued operational management refinement
and continued weight reduction on board flights. Procurement costs will
also be reduced by implementing centralised procurement measures and
increasing bargaining power on bulk purchase. Maintenance cost can
be reduced by enhancing engine overhaul capabilities and increasing
maintenance monitoring. Finance cost can be reduced by the use of various
financial instruments. Through these various efforts and controls over various
costs and expenses, the Group’s profitability can be enhanced.

While the Group will focus on traditional passenger and freight transportation
operation, it will also actively promote the transformation and development of
both operations. The Group will also further improve its electronic business
platforms and mobile service platforms to facilitate the transformation of
passenger traffic operation through optimisation of network flight capacity,
expansion of aviation value chains, and enrichment of product portfolio and
exploration of customer resources. For the transformation of freight logistics,
the Group will benefit from economies of scale from the consolidation of its
freight logistics business, which will speed up the transformation of freight
transportation business and establish a platform for freight expressway to
create a competitive freight expressway brand. The Group will also strengthen
its truck transportation business to establish new revenue streams for freight
transportation. An innovative storage approach will be adopted to expand the
single storage function of cargo warehouses into a distribution centre with
multiple functions such as storage, cargo management and cargo delivery.
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With Shanghai as its core hub and Xi’an and Kunming as regional hubs, the Group has established an
air transport network throughout China and extending to Asia, Europe, North America and Oceania.

After joining the SkyTeam Alliance, the route network of the Group expanded to cover more than 1,000
destinations in 187 countries around the world. To date, the number of Eastern Miles members of the
frequent flyer program of the Group has exceeded 18 million members.
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The Group currently has 10 branches and 50 overseas operation units and
offices around the world, in addition to 24 wholly or partly owned subsidiaries
including E/8MZ AR A A (Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd.) (“Shanghai
Airlines”), 57z =AM A 5] (China Eastern Airlines Yunnan Co., Ltd.),
EEEAMZEYIRBER AT (Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics Co., Ltd)
and China United Airlines. The fleet of CEA comprises over 400 large- and
medium-sized aircraft with an average age of less than seven years, providing
services to over 73 million travelers around the world every year.

In 2012, the total traffic volume of the Group was 14,406.48 million tonne-
kilometres, representing an increase of 7.49% from last year. Revenue of the
Group was RMB85,253 million with total profit of RMB2,808 million. Net profit
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company was RMB2,954 million.

In 2012, the Company accounted for 50.20% and 38.40% of the total market
share at Honggiao International Airport and Pudong International Airport,
respectively, in terms of total flight take-offs and landings and accounted
for 48.20% and 36.60% of the total market share at Honggiao Intermational
Airport and Pudong International Airport, respectively, in terms of passenger
throughput.
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REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

The following discussion and analysis should be read together with the
Group’s audited financial statements and the accompanying notes prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) that are
included elsewhere in this annual report. The financial data presented in this
section are derived from the Group’s audited financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

Operational revenues

In 2012, the Group’s revenues was RMB85,253 million, representing an
increase of 3.46% from the previous year. Transportation revenue amounted
to RMB79,444 million, representing an increase of 3.83% from the previous
year. In 2012, the Group’s total traffic volume was 14,406.48 million tonne-
kilometres, representing an increase of 7.49% from the previous year.

In 2012, the Group’s passenger revenues amounted to RMB71,419 million,
representing an increase of 4.36% from the previous year, and accounted for
89.90% of the Group’s traffic revenues in 2012. Passenger traffic volume was
109,112.68 million passenger-kilometres, representing a 8.14% increase from
the previous year.

The Group’s domestic passenger traffic volume was 76,156 million
passenger-kilometres, representing an increase of 7.36% from the previous
year. Compared to 2011, domestic passenger revenues increased by 2.41%
to RMB50,141 million, accounting for 70.21% of the Group’s passenger
revenues.

The passenger traffic volume of the Group’s international routes was
29,105.09 million passenger-kilometres, representing a 11.30% increase
from the previous year. Compared to 2011, international passenger revenues
increased by 10.15% to RMB18,057 million, accounting for 25.28% of the
Group’s passenger revenues.

The passenger traffic volume of the Group’s regional routes was 3,852.01
million passenger-kilometres, representing a 1.08% increase from last year.
Compared to 2011, regional passenger revenues increased by 4.65% to
RMB3,221 million, accounting for 4.51% of the Group’s passenger revenues.

In 2012, the Group’s cargo and mail traffic revenues decreased by 0.67%
to RMB8,025 million, as compared to 2011, accounting for 10.10% of the
Group'’s traffic revenues in 2012. Cargo and mail traffic volume was 4,700.90
million tonne-kilometres, representing a 6.34% increase from last year.

22

EBRI BRI

E )

BEAT I mENTHFESEAFRT RENASER
IREIPR M R A (B SR EER DRENLE
AR TE c AETHMBRIEIHEARE
RIRERP RS LR E BTN BRE -

KW A

—T——F > AEEERKALS253ET  FALER
3.46% o FI\EP B AEARBET94.4418 7T » RLLIEE
3.83% c —T——F  AEBTHAEFEE14,406.488
%l@hi L ER7.49% ©

—E——F BERABARBTI419ET  RALLEE
T436%  HAEE T —_FiEHWAMNS.90% ;
IRFEHFEEA109,11268EBRAE @ FALERT
8.14%

BAMGKREERFEE A7616EBEZTRE » [k
R T7.36%  WAABARESOI41ETL RILERT
2.41% + (hEBIAKT70.21% ©

BB AR Ik FiE R FE S 520,105.00E B F A E » Rk
HET711.30% WA ABARE180.57(87T » RIHIERT
10.15% 15 &EIARI25.28% °

WEMGKREEGHEHEE 5385201888 AE A
EET1.08%  WAABAREI221ET  RLEMT
4.65% * (hEBWARIS.51% °

—T——F BEEHKRAAARES0.25ETT - BLE
LT067%  EAEE T ——FEHRKRAMN10.10% °
EHHBEHEE B47000EEMAE  FLERT
6.34% °



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4 =R

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FAEM R KR EIRE A am B oy AT

Operating expenses

In 2012, the Group’s total operating costs was RMB82,745 million,
representing an increase of 4.35% from previous year.

Analysis of the changes in other items under operating costs of the Group is
set out as follows:

Aviation fuel costs account for the most substantial part of the Group’s
operating costs. In 2012, total aviation fuel consumption was approximately
4,177,700 tonnes, representing a 7.22% increase compared to last year. In
2012, the average price of jet fuel increased by 2.14% compared to last year.
Aviation fuel expenditures of the Group reached RMB29,872 million (based
on value-added tax), which accounted for 36% of the Group’s operating
expenses, representing an increase of 2.20% from RMB29,229 million last
year. The Company implemented a policy of transforming its business tax to
value-added tax in 2012. If calculated in line with the business tax, aviation
fuel costs for 2012 grew by 9.52% from last year, and the increase in price of
jet fuel increased aviation fuel expenditures by approximately RMB671 million.
The increase in aviation fuel consumption resulted in an increase in aviation
fuel expenditures of approximately RMB2,111 million.

Take-off and landing charges amounted to RMB9,066 million, or an increase
of 8.57% from last year, and was primarily due to the increase in the number
of take-off and landings, as well as an increase in average unit price of take-off
and landing charges.

Depreciation and amortisation amounted to RMB7,557 million, or a growth
of 8.49% from last year, and was primarily due to the addition of new aircraft
and engines by the Group in 2012, resulting in a greater base number for
depreciation and amortisation.

Wages, salaries and benefits amounted to RMB10,059 million, or an increase
of 16.09% from last year, and was primarily due to an increase in the number
of staff and an increase in hours flown.

Food and beverage expenses were RMB2,031 million, representing an
increase of 0.45% from last year.

Aircraft operating lease rentals amounted to RMB4,438 million, or an increase
of 7.50% from last year, and was primarily due to an increase in the number of
aircraft held through an operating lease in 2012.

Other operating lease rentals amounted to RMB609 million, or an increase of
23.83% from last year, and was primarily due to an increase in the number of
leases for warehouses and VIP lounges at airports.

Sales and marketing expenses were RMB3,727 million, representing a
decrease of 0.33% from last year.

The amount of civil aviation infrastructure levies payable to Civil Aviation
Administration of China (“CAAC”) amounted to RMB1,414 million, representing
an increase of 7.04% compared to last year, and was primarily due to an 8%
increase of miles flown by the Company in 2012.
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Ground services and other charges were RMB594 million, representing an
increase of 4.67% from last year.

Office, administration and other operating expenses amounted to RMB8,983
million, representing an increase of 1.46% from last year primarily due to an
increase in the number of staff.

Other operating income

In 2012, other operating income of the Group amounted to RMB1,720 million,
an increase of 62.01% from the same period last year, primarily due to an
increase in operations subsidy from the government.

Finance income/costs

In 2012, the Group’s finance income was RMB349 million, a decrease of
RMB1,675 million from the same period last year, primarily due to the minimal
appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar in 2012, which had
substantially appreciated in 2011. Finance costs amounted to RMB1,697
million, an increase of RMB235 million, primarily due to an increase in interest
expenses arising from increased borrowings and finance leases.

Profit

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company in 2012 was RMB2,954 million, representing a
35.45% decrease as compared to the Group’s profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB4,576 million in 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Structure

The Group’s primary capital requirements are for its daily operations and to
fund capital expenditures for the purchase of aircraft and flight equipment.
Cash generated from the ordinary course of the Group’s business was
generally able to satisfy the cash required for the Group’s daily operation and
generate cash surplus. In 2011 and 2012, net cash inflow from the Group’s
operating activities amounted to RMB13,623 million and RMB12,617 million,
respectively. Capital expenditures for the purchase of aircraft and flight
equipment was partly funded by internal funds, the balance of which was
mainly financed by long-term and short-term borrowings and finance leasing.
In 2011 and 2012, net cash outflow from the Group’s investment activities
were RMB14,939 million and RMB11,789 million, respectively. Net cash inflow
from the Group’s financing activities in 2011 was RMB2,136 million. Net cash
outflow from the Group’s financing activities in 2012 was RMB2,174 million.

The Group generally operates with net current liabilities. As at 31 December
2012, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB35,948 million. The Group has been and believes it will continue to be
capable of financing its working capital by obtaining borrowings from domestic
and foreign banks in China. In addition, the Group proactively explored its
financing channels and continued to optimise its debt structure and lower its
finance costs by issuing various kinds of bonds.
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The Group monitors its capital on the basis of its debt ratio, which is
calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets. As at 31 December 2012,
the debt ratio of the Group was 80.17%.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the amount of the Group’s borrowings
due within one year were RMB18,171 million and RMB22,640 million,
respectively. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s borrowings payable
from one to two years, from three to five years, and beyond five years were
RMB8,408 million, RMB9,391 million and RMB5,804 million, respectively, as
compared to RMB7,273 million, RMB7,906 million and RMB7,918 million,
respectively, as at 31 December 2012.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases as at 31 December 2011 and
2012 were RMB20,261 million and RMB21,858 million, respectively. As at 31
December 2011, the Group’s lease obligations payable within two years, from
three to five years and beyond five years were RMB5,017 million, RMB7,235
million and RMB8,009 million, respectively, as compared to RMB5,309 million,
RMB7,925 million and RMB8,624 million, respectively, as at 31 December
2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s borrowings comprised USD-
denominated borrowings of USD5,028 million and RMB-denominated
borrowings of RMB13,827 million. Fixed-rate borrowings and floating-
rate borrowings accounted for 22.91% and 77.09% of total borrowings,
respectively, in 2012. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s borrowings
comprised USD-denominated borrowings of USD3,967 million and RMB-
denominated borrowings of RMB16,780 million. Fixed-rate borrowings and
floating-rate borrowings accounted for 15.6% and 84.4% of total borrowings,
respectively, in 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s obligations under finance leases
comprised USD-denominated obligations of USD2,983 million, Singapore
dollar-denominated obligations of S$245 million, Hong Kong dollar-
denominated obligations of HK$1,468 million, and Japanese Yen-denominated
obligations of JPY9,136 million. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s
obligations under finance leases comprised USD-denominated obligations
of USD2,840 million, RMB-denominated obligations of RMB1,090 million
and Singapore dollar-denominated obligations of S$263 million. The Group’s
finance leases were floating-rate obligations in 2011 and 2012.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

According to the contracted agreements, as at 31 December 2012, we expect
our capital expenditures for aircraft, engines and related equipment to be, in
the aggregate, approximately RMB172,092 million, including approximately
RMB26,321 million in 2013 and RMB44,435 million in 2014, in each case
subject to contractually stipulated changes or any change relating to inflation.
We plan to finance our capital commitments through a combination of funds
generated from operation, existing bank credit facilities, bank loans, leasing
arrangements and other external financing arrangement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant
judgments and uncertainties and potentially result in materially different results
under different assumptions and conditions.

Our audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS. Our principal accounting policies are set forth in Note 2
to our audited consolidated financial statements. IFRS requires that we adopt
the accounting policies and make estimates that our directors believe are most
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of giving a true and fair
view of our results and financial position. However, different policies, estimates
and assumptions in critical areas could lead to materially different results. The
critical accounting policies adopted and estimates and assumptions made
in the preparation of these financial statements are identified and set forth in
Note 4 to our audited consolidated financial statements.

RISK ANALYSIS
Interest rate fluctuation risk

The Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities (including long-term and short-
term borrowings, finance leases and bonds payable) as at 31 December 2011
and 2012 were RMB62,035 million and RMB67,594 million, respectively, of
which short-term liabilities accounted for 33.26% and 37.35%, respectively,
for those years. A portion of long-term interest-bearing liabilities were liabilities
with variable interest rates, and were affected by fluctuations in current market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest-bearing liabilities were primarily denominated in US
dollars and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group’s
liabilities denominated in US dollars accounted for 69.14% and 74.5%,
respectively, of total liabilities while liabilities denominated in Renminbi
accounted for 28.81% and 20.46%, respectively, of total liabilities during
those periods. Fluctuations in the US dollar and Renminbi interest rates have
significantly affected the Group’s finance costs.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

Since 21 July 2005, the Chinese government has adjusted the Renminbi
exchange rate system and established a floating exchange rate system by
which the exchange rate would be adjusted and managed based on market
supply and demand, with reference to a basket of foreign currencies. The
fluctuation in the Renminbi exchange rate is affected by domestic and
international economic and political conditions and general currency supply
and demand dynamics.
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The Group operates its business in many countries and territories and
generates revenue in different currencies. As such, its foreign currency
liabilities are generally much higher than its foreign currency assets at the end
of the period. The Group’s major liability item (purchases or leases of aircraft)
is mainly priced and settled in currencies such as US dollars. In addition,
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates will affect the Group’s costs incurred
from foreign purchases such as aircraft, flight equipment and jet fuel, and
take-off and landing charges at foreign airports. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities denominated in foreign currencies,
converted to Renminbi, amounted to RMB53,767 million, of which US dollar
liabilities accounted for 93.66% of this amount. Therefore, a significant
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates will subject the Group to foreign
exchange loss arising from the translation of foreign currency denominated
liabilities, which will also affect the profitability and development of the Group.
The Group typically uses hedging contracts for foreign currencies to reduce
the foreign exchange risks for foreign currency revenue generated from ticket
sales, and expenses to be paid in foreign currencies. The Group’s foreign
currency hedging contracts mainly involve the sales of Japanese Yen and the
purchase of US dollars at fixed exchange rates. As at 31 December 2012,
foreign currency hedging contracts held by the Group amounted to a notional
amount of USD58 million (31 December 2011: USD46 million), and will expire
between 2013 and 2017.

The Group recorded a decrease in net foreign exchange gains in 2012. As
at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group’s foreign exchange gains were
RMB1,872 million and RMB148 million, respectively. Due to the significant
amount of existing net foreign currency liabilities, the Group’s results will be
materially and adversely affected if the Renminbi depreciates against the US
dollar, or if the rate of appreciation of the Renminbi against the US dollar
decreases in the future.

Risk associated with the fluctuation of fuel prices

Jet fuel is one of the Group’s major operating expenses. The fluctuation of jet
fuel prices has significant impact on the Group’s operating results. Foreign
fuel prices are mainly affected by supply and demand dynamics in the global
market. In addition, domestic jet fuel prices are supervised by governmental
authorities such as the National Development and Reform Commission and
CAAC of PRC. The Group generally reduces the fuel price impact on operating
results arising from increasing jet fuel prices by imposing passenger fuel
surcharges, reducing fuel consumption by route optimisation and enhancing
cost controls.

In 2012, assuming constant factors but excluding the effects of crude oil
option contracts, if the average price of jet fuel had increased or decreased
by 5%, jet fuel costs of the Group would have increased or decreased by
approximately RMB1,494 million.
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Pledges on assets and contingent liabilities

The Group generally finances the purchases of aircraft through finance leases
and bank loans secured by its assets. As at 31 December 2012, the value
of the Group’s assets used to secure certain bank loans was RMB22,544
million, representing an increase of 23.08% from RMB18,317 million as at 31
December 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

EFFECT OF POLICIES

Effective 1 January 2012, the pilot programme for the transformation from
business tax to value-added tax regarding the transportation industry
commenced in Shanghai, which affects our CEA headquarters, Shanghai
Airlines, China Cargo Airlines, Eastern Logistics and Eastern Business Airlines
and has affected the Group’s income and costs.

On 25 July 2012, the PRC State Council extended the scope of this pilot
programme, and effective 1 August 2012 until year end, the scope of the pilot
programme regarding the transportation and certain modern service industries
was gradually extended from Shanghai to ten provinces and municipalities,
including Beijing, Tianjin and Jiangsu Province. Certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries, including China United Airlines, CEA Jiangsu and CEA Wuhan,
began to enforce the policies.

As at 1 January 2012, the pilot programme affected the Group as revenues
of the Group (excluding tax) decreased by RMB2,954 million, while operating
expenses of the Group decreased by RMB3,132 million, and total profit
increased by RMB178 million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 66,207 employees, the majority
of whom worked in or were based in China. The wages of the Group’s
employees generally consisted of basic salary and performance-based bonus.
There were no material labor disputes between the Group and its employees,
and the Group did not experience a significant turnover of employees or
encounter any major difficulties in recruiting new employees.

TAXATION

The Company is subject to income tax at a rate of 25% (2011: 24%). Our
effective tax rate, however, may be lower than the rate of 25% because certain
subsidiaries were incorporated in jurisdictions where the applicable income
tax rate is 16.5% rather than 25%. We had carried forward tax losses of
approximately RMB6,169 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB9,713
million), which can be used to set off future taxable income between 2013 and
2017.
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The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) is pleased to present the
audited financial report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 (the
“Reporting Period”).

GROUP ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

The Company is one of the three largest air carriers in the PRC based on the
total tonne-kilometres and number of passengers carried in 2012 and is an
important base airline facilitating the development of the “International Financial
Centre” and the “International Shipping Centre” of Shanghai. The results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at that date, prepared in accordance with IFRS
and PRC Accounting Standards, are set out in the financial statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the
financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from its business is as
follows:

REVENUE
Domestic A Al
Regional (Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) E (ERE)
International iR
Total waEt
DIVIDENDS

According to the financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC
Accounting Standards, the Company’s net profit was RMB2,987 miillion for the
year ended 31 December 2012, and the accumulated losses of the Company
as at 31 December 2012 amounted to RMB1,516 million. The Board does not
recommend payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2012, the share capital structure of the Group is set out as
follows:

A shares Al
H shares HAx
Total number of shares & 4858
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7,782,213,860 69.01
3,494,325,000 30.99
11,276,538,860 100.00
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NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the total number of registered Shareholders was
250,268, of which 249,578 are holders of A shares and 690 are holders of H
shares.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are aware, each
of the following persons, not being a Director, chief executive, supervisor
of the Company (the “Supervisors”) or member of the Company’s senior
management, had, as at 31 December 2012, an interest and/or short position
in the Company’s shares or underlying shares (as the case may be) which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”), or was otherwise, as at 31 December 2012, interested in 5% or
more of any class of the then issued share capital of the Company, or was
otherwise, as at 31 December 2012, a substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company:

Type of Number of
Name of Shareholders shares held shares held
RERERE Y] iESTE
China Eastern Air Holding Company A shares 4,831,375,000
(“CEA Holding") AR
HEEFMEEEAR ([RAEE])
CEA Holding (Note 1) H shares 1,927,375,000
RmEE (M) HA%
HKSCC Nominees Limited H shares 3,478,742,299
(Note 2 to 3) HA%
BAPREE

(RBA) BRAF (MFr2 RHiFE3)

Notes:

Based on the information available to the Directors as at 31 December 2012 (including
such information as was available on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and
so far as they are aware of, as at 31 December 2012:

1. Such H shares were held by CES Global Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“CES

Global”), in the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was 100% held by CEA
Holding.
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2. Among the 3,478,742,299 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited, 2.
1,927,375,000 H shares (representing approximately 55.16% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by CES Global in the capacity of beneficial
owner, which in turn was 100% held by CEA Holding.

3. Among the 3,478,742,299 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited, JPMorgan 3.
Chase & Co. had, through controlled corporations, an interest in an aggregate
of 247,350,702 H shares (representing approximately 7.08% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares). JPMorgan Chase & Co. had interest in the aforesaid
247,350,702 H shares of the Company in manner as follows:

(@) 117,538,000 H shares (representing approximately 3.36% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by JF Asset Management Limited
in the capacity of investment manager, which in turn was 100% held by
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc., which in turn was 100% held by
JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc., which in turn was 100% held
by JPMorgan Chase & Co.;

(b) 45,142,000 H shares (representing approximately 1.29% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held in lending pool by JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. in the capacity of custodian corporation/approved lending agent,
which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co..

() 31,250,000 H shares (representing approximately 0.89% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by China International Fund
Management Co Ltd in the capacity of investment manager, which in turn
was 49% held by JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited, which in turn
was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings (UK) Limited,
which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management International
Limited, which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management
Holdings Inc., which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co.; and

(d) 24,688,000 H shares (representing approximately 0.71% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by JPMorgan Asset Management
(Taiwan) Limited in the capacity of investment manager, which in tumn was
100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc., which in turn was
100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc., which in turn
was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co.;

(e) 21,050,000 H shares (representing approximately 0.60% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by JPMorgan Asset Management
(Singapore) Limited in the capacity of investment manager, which in turn
was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc., which in tun
was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc., which in
turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co.;

() 4,000,000 H shares (representing approximately 0.11% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by J.P. Morgan Markets Limited in
the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was 100% held by Bear
Stearns Holdings Limited, which in turn was 100% held by Bear Stearns
UK Holdings Limited, which in turn was 100% held by The Bear Stearns
Companies LLC, which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co.;
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(9) 3,576,000 H shares (representing approximately 0.10% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by JF International Management Inc.
in the capacity of investment manager, which in turn was 100% held by
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc., which in turn was 100% held by
JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc., which in turn was 100% held
by JPMorgan Chase & Co.;

(h) 106,702 H shares (representing approximately 0.003% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by J.P. Morgan Whitefriars Inc. in the
capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was 100% held by J.P. Morgan
Overseas Capital Corporation, which in turn was 100% held by J.P. Morgan
International Finance Limited, which in turn was 100% held by Bank One
International Holdings Corporation, which in turn was 100% held by J.P.
Morgan International Inc., which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co.;

4. Among the 3,478,742,299 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited, JPMorgan
Chase & Co. also had, through controlled corporations, a short position in an
aggregate of 4,785,114 H shares (representing approximately 0.14% of the
Company’s then total issued H shares). Among such short position of 4,785,114
H shares, (a) 4,000,000 H shares were held by J.P. Morgan Markets Limited in
the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was 100% held by Bear Stearns
Holdings Limited, which in turn was 100% held by Bear Stearns UK Holdings
Limited, which in turn was 100% held by The Bear Stearns Companies LLC, which
in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co., and (b) 785,114 H shares were
held by J.P. Morgan Whitefriars (UK) in the capacity of beneficial owner, which in
turn was 100% held by J.P. Morgan Whitefriars Inc., which in turn was 100% held
by J.P. Morgan Overseas Capital Corporation, which in turn was 100% held by J.P.
Morgan International Finance Limited, which in turn was 100% held by Bank One
International Holdings Corporation, which in turn was 100% held by J.P. Morgan
International Inc., which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase & Co..

Save as disclosed above, based on the information available to the Directors
and so far as they are aware, as at 31 December 2012, among the
3,478,742,299 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited, no other person
had any interest or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying
shares (as the case may be) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.
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According to the relevant disclosure requirements laid down by the China REEFHZFAEETREEZ8 e ([PERES ) NEHE
Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”), as at the end of the Reporting  B#RE @ AMEHIKR » AR AIEDRIREZMAI102 5
Period, the 10 largest registered Shareholders and the 10 largest registered &A% E R AT104 2 & RBER G R EZIRERAT -

listed stock Shareholders on the register of members of the Company and

their respective shareholdings are as follows:

THE 10 LARGEST REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDINGS
AM0BRBRRIFRIER

Increase/
(decrease) in Shareholding Charged or
shareholding at the end of Percentage locked-up  Nature of
Name of Shareholders in the year the year (%) Type of shares shares shares held
ey
BRRERE FEREH FAEREE tel(%) BB ER WRNBE ROME
1. CEA Holding 0 4,831,375,000 42,84 Listed Nil - Ashares
RfEE [wYisii &/ AR
2. HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 642,000 3,478,742,299 30.85  Listed (1,927,375,000 Unknown  H shares
(including CES Global) shares held by CES K HE
BEARREZ(REA) Global)
BRAT(BEERMER) Biim(EpR
MBS
1,927,375,000)
3. Shanghai Alliance Investment 0 427,085,429 3.79  Listed Unknown A shares
Limited BiiE RE AR
EEERIEABRAR
4, China National Aviation Fuel 0 421,052,632 3.73  Listed Unknown A shares
Holding Company B RE AR
alE sy s NG|
5. Jin Jiang International Holdings 0 343,288,860 3.04  Listed Unknown A shares
Company Limited EiRE R AR
TR (@) BRAA
6. Aerospace Capital Holding 0 99,088,580 0.88 Listed Unknown A shares
Co., Ltd. BiiE RE AR
MAKREERER AR
7. Sinotrans Air Transportation 0 83,157,894 0.74  Listed Unknown A shares
Development Co., Ltd. B KA AR
HINEEERRROBRAF
8. China Construction Bank - 36,441,131 36,441,131 0.32  Listed Unknown A shares
CIFM Alpha Stock Securities B KA AR
Investment Fund
Bl R RTT — LIREERM R
FREMBHRBEE S
9. Bank of Communications - Hua 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.27  Listed Unknown A shares
An Strategy Selective Equity BB KA AR
Securities Investment Fund
RWRIT - ELFREERS
WELBEARS
10.  China Minsheng Banking Corp., 28,009,934 28,009,934 0.25 Listed Unknown A shares
Ltd. - Orient Selective Mixed EniE KA AR
Open-end Securities Investment
Fund

RERERITROARAR -
RO BRRAERNAES
REES

Description of any related party relationship among the 10 largest  BI10& AR R BAEA FAR A 4R © AN A B AR &0 i AR 3R 2 Rl
Shareholders: the Company is not aware of any related party or concert party 17/ B8t (%R s — B/ TENRAIR
relationship among the above Shareholders.
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THE 10 LARGEST REGISTERED LISTED STOCK SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDINGS
AM0BRERBERBRREFRIER
Shareholding
of listed stocks

at the end Type of
Name of Shareholders of the year shares held
FREE

REAB RERNEE EE

1. CEA Holding 4,831,375,000 A shares

RMER AR

2. HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED (including CES Global) 3,478,742,299 H shares

FEPREE(RBA)ERAR(BERMBEIR) HA%

3. Shanghai Alliance Investment Limited 427,085,429 A shares

LB EBR A AR

4, China National Aviation Fuel Holding Company 421,052,632 A shares

PRI ZE MR E AR Al

5. Jin Jiang International Holdings Company Limited 343,288,860 A shares

T B (SR E) B R A A AR

6. Aerospace Capital Holding Co., Ltd. 99,088,580 A shares

MREEERER AR AR

7. Sinotrans Air Transportation Development Co., Ltd. 83,157,894 A shares

PINEEEBRRRHBR QA AR

8. China Construction Bank — CIFM Alpha Stock Securities Investment Fund 36,441,131 A shares

FPEERIRIT— FRERMBEAREEFFIREELS AR

9. Bank of Communications — Hua An Strategy Selective Equity Securities Investment 30,000,000 A shares

Fund Al
RMIRIT - ELRBEBERZFAELSREES

10.  China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. — Orient Selective Mixed Open-end Securities 28,009,934 A shares

Investment Fund Al

TRERARITENERAT -RIBERALANARZSRERES

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among the 10 BT 104 7R iR AR AR 3R BAEE B (R sk —EBITEIRI AR - A ALK
largest listed stock Shareholders: the Company is not aware of any related  A1_E#ll it ARAR R 2 72 KRR (R sk — BT EhRAIR -
party or concert party relationship among the above listed stock Shareholders.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

There has been no change in the Company’s controlling shareholder in the
year.

CEA Holding is the parent company of the Company and its registered
capital amounts to RMB12,876,321,000. Mr. Liu Shaoyong is the legal
representative of CEA Holding. CEA Holding’s scope of business includes
the management of all state-owned assets and state-owned equity of its
group and its investment enterprises which are formed by state investment.
CEA Holding, headquarter based in Shanghai, is one of the three largest core
state-owned aviation transportation group as central enterprises under the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council (“SASAC”). Since 2009, CEA Holding made new development with a
fresh outlook and earned total profit of over RMB10 billion in the consecutive
three years. It was classified as enterprise under category A by SASAC for
consecutive two years in 2010 and 2011, and has a credit rating of “3A” in the
capital market. As at 31 December 2012, no share of the Company held by
CEA Holding was pledged.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Save as otherwise disclosed, during the year ended 31 December 2012,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities (“securities” having the meaning ascribed thereto
under paragraph 1 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules), without taking into
account any issue of new securities.
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SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE
COMPANY AND THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES REQUIRED TO BE FOLLOWED BY
U.S. COMPANIES UNDER THE NEW YORK STOCK
EXCHANGE'S LISTING STANDARDS

As a company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the New York Stock
Exchange (the “NYSE”), the Company is subject to not only applicable PRC
laws and regulations, including the PRC Company Law, the PRC Securities
Law, the Corporate Governance Standards for Listed Companies and
Guidance Opinions regarding the Establishment of the Independent Director
System in Listed Companies (the “Independent Director Guidance”), but also
Hong Kong laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and the SFO, as well as applicable U.S. federal securities laws
and regulations, including the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Based on NYSE’s listing
standards, the NYSE imposes a series of corporate governance standards
for companies listed on the NYSE. However, the NYSE permits foreign
private issuers to follow their respective “home country” practices and grants
waivers for compliance with certain corporate governance standards. One
of the conditions for such waiver is for the foreign private issuer to disclose
in its annual report how the corporate governance practices in its “home
country” differ from those required of U.S. companies under the NYSE's listing
standards.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 303A.11 of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual, the following is a summary of the significant differences
between the Company’s corporate governance practices and those required
to be followed by U.S. companies under the NYSE’s listing standards:

Section 303A.01 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that the
Board of the listed companies must have a majority of independent Directors.
As a company listed in the PRC, the Company is subject to the requirement
under the Independent Director Guidance that at least one-third of the Board
be independent as determined thereunder. As a company listed in Hong
Kong, the Company is also subject to the requirement under the Listing
Rules that at least three members of the Board shall be independent, and
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
currently has four independent non-executive Directors out of a total of eleven
Directors. The standards for establishing independence set forth under either
the Independent Director Guidance or the Listing Rules differ from those set
forth in the NYSE Listed Company Manual. Section 303A.03 of the NYSE
Listed Company Manual provides that listed companies must schedule
regular executive sessions in which non-management directors meet without
management participation. The Company is not required under the applicable
PRC law to hold such executive sessions.
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Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed
companies must have a nominating/corporate governance committee
composed entirely of independent directors. The establishment of the
Nomination Committee was considered and resolved and its charter was
passed at the third regular meeting of the fifth session of the Board held on 28
April 2009. The merging of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee into the Nominations and Remuneration Committee
was agreed at the 36th ordinary meeting of the fifth session of the Board
held on 19 March 2010 and the “Working Rules of the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee” was passed. The Nominations and Remuneration
Committee consists of three members, two of which are independent non-
executive Directors of the Company. Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual also provides that the nominating/corporate governance
committee of a listed company must have a written charter that addresses
the committee’s purpose and responsibilities, which include, among others,
the development and recommendation of corporate governance guidelines to
the listed company’s board of directors. The Board is directly responsible for
developing the Company’s corporate governance guidelines.

Section 303A.05 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed
companies must have a compensation committee composed entirely of
independent directors. Under the Listing Rules, a majority of the members of
the remuneration committee must be independent non-executive directors.
The merging of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee into the Nominations and Remuneration Committee
was agreed at the 36th ordinary meeting of the fifth session of the Board held
on 19 March 2010. The Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the
Company is composed of two independent non-executive Directors and one
Director.

Section 303A.10 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed
companies must adopt and disclose a code of business conduct and ethics
for directors, officers and employees. As required under the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, the Company has adopted a code of ethics that is applicable to
the Company’s Directors, Supervisors, President, Chief Financial Officer and
other members of senior management.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Under the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”) and the PRC laws, no pre-emptive right exists, which requires
the Company to offer new shares to its existing Shareholders on a pro rata
basis.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report, the Directors believe that the Company has at all times
during the year ended 31 December 2012 maintained the relevant applicable
minimum percentage of listed securities as prescribed by Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the
Listing Rules.

37

A

BAR ST ET AR FM)E303A.04KE K EhAE M
BV 2R B v EBARNIRE ©EEARZEE -
R-EZAFHA-+N\BRTHARREREESS
FE=Rflet BEEZBBRIUREEESS  WBHB
ZEgER - R-_T—TF=A+HhB  ARAFEAE
Exef=t it@est RAEREZ8eREH
HERZZESSAMKARBETHEZE S - WRBMIES
HEFEMEZEESTIEMA] - RERFMEZE S G =UmK
8 HFMARARRARBUYIERITES - (RO L
MARFMIEI03A.04RERTIRE,LEERTES
VEIEREER  JAZ8eNRE BE - 2ETE
BACEERIES LA LMAREESHES - AQH
TEERESIHEEEERARHTE -

NSNS

(BAZF P ETRARFM)EI03A.065K Bk EHR R
ARV ZHMBIEZEARNFTMER S - RIFLHR
A FMEBEENASBKEBARBIIFRTES -
REZEGRFMEEZZESAHKARE EFME
5€ CR-ZZF-ZTF=-ATNAAETNEARARELE
ERE=TAREBEHELAE - ARFRSE MFM
EERMEBEIFATEEM—RERHEK -

WA fetE m

(HHZ ST ET AR FM)EI03A10RERK ETARIEA
HERKEERANES  EEERMEETNERET
NEEER - ARRIERRKERER(ZZET-F))N
ERHETHERARARRES - BF - £K12 - UK
EMEAMESREIEA BMNBRERER

B BRI

REARRERZ([ARER]) RPEARKMBEIES
W EEEBRRERERARAFTRREBRFEA S
b - MBRA BRI S -

R NRFFIE

RIBRAFHMEH AT 2 SRR THE - ARF R AR
SOBIBANRESAAE  EFHEARFREREE
—E-HET A=t HUEFERZAAREERS L
MR AIF8.08(1)(a) AR EMN B RERAKE LmESA D
IfE; @



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

-

SREE

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Names, relevant information of and shares held by the Directors, the
Supervisors and members of senior management of the Company as at 31
December 2012 are as follows:

Name

]

Liu Shaoyong
gl

Ma Xulun
SEMR

Xu Zhao
1R

Gu Jiadan
EER

Li Yangmin

FER

Tang Bing
EE

Luo Zhuping
EF

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
27k

Position

B
Chairman
EER

Vice Chairman BlZ =&

President 424¢3%

Director

5=

Director

5=

Director &%

Vice President gl|A24% 38

Director £%

Vice President 3424538

Director &%

Board Secretary, Company

Secretary

EFENE  RAWE

Independent non-executive
Director

BUFRITES

Age

8

54

49

44

57

50

46

60

65

Number of listed

A shares of

the Company

held - personal
interest (shares)
A D R REBEAR
PR & — M8 ARE % (BR)

0

3,960 (Note 1)
(FEk1)

11,616 (Note 2)
(2)
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B BRENSREEA

=

=

B

ARRBE_FT-_Ft_A=+HEF EFRS

REBAEHS

Capacity in
which the
A shares
were held

FisAR S 7

Beneficial Owner

EakEAA

Beneficial Owner

EanBEAA

- BEAAREERERET
Effective date and expiry
date of appointment
{EHREIE B

28 June 2010 28 June 2013
—E-TFRA ZE-ZF1A
—+NR —+NRH
11 November 2011 28 June 2013
—2——F+—A ZZ=FxA
+—H Z+N\H
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
“E-TFRA ZE-Z=ZF1A
—+NR —+NH
28 June 2012 28 June 2013
TR A ZE-=FXA
—+NR —+NH
28 June 2012 28 June 2013
TR A ZE-=F7XA
—+NRH —+NH
29 June 2011 28 June 2013
—E——FR A ZE-=FXA
Z+NH AN =
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
ZE-TFRA ZZE—=F71A
—+\H —+/\H
28 June 2012 28 June 2013
ZE—ZFRR ZE—=F5XA
—+\H e AN =
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
“T-FFRA ZEBE-=F,A
—+NR —+NH
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
“E-FFAA ZT-SHAR
—+NR —+NH
28 June 2010 6 April 2012
—E-TFR A ZT--FWA
—+NR ~H
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
ZE-TFERA ZE-=FXA
AN AN
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Name

o]

Wu Xiaogen
REER

Ji Weidong
FER

Shao Ruiging
BRI

Yu Faming
TEe

Xi Sheng
FR

Liu Jiashun
2IRE

Feng Jinxiong
Btk

Yan Taisheng

/////

Shu Mingjiang
EFEAIT

Wu Yongliang
RKR

Tian Liuwen
HEX

Wang Jian
padics

Position

B

Independent non-executive
Director

BUFHITES

Independent non-executive
Director

BUFHITES

Independent non-executive
Director

BUINITES

Chairman of the Supervisory

Committee

EERLE

Supervisor

Ex

Supervisor

Ex

Supervisor

Ex

Supervisor

Ex

Vice President
BlamssE

Vice President 2484538

Chief Financial Officer 81 7§ 42 &5

Vice President
Rt

Board Secretary,
Joint Company Secretary
ExeWE BREARAWE
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Number of listed

A shares of

the Company

held - personal

Age interest (shares)
AN RBAR

Fik RE-BEAEZER)
47 0
56 0
56 0
59 0
50 0
56 3,960 (Note 1)
(F#1)

51 0
59 0
45 0
50 3,696 (Note 3)
(FH123)

54 0
40 0
- 23,232
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Capacity in
which the
A shares Effective date and expiry
were held date of appointment
FrisAR 517 AL B
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
—T-TFXA —T-=FA
—+N\H iy AN
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
—T-TFXA —T-=FXA
—+N\H iy AN
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
—T-TFXRA —T-=FXA
—+N\H iy AN
29 June 2011 28 June 2013
—T——%XA —E-ZFXA
—+hH iy AN
28 June 2012 28 June 2013
—E-—FXA —E-ZFXA
—+N\H —+\H
Beneficial Owner 28 June 2010 28 June 2013
EnEBA —E-ZTFXA —Z—=FXA
—+N\H —+\H
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
—T-TFXA —T-=FA
—+N\H —+\H
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
—T-TF XA —T-=FXA
—+N\H —+\H
13 December 2011 28 June 2013
—T——F+=ZA —T—=%A
+=H iy AN
Beneficial Owner 13 December 2011 28 June 2013
ERBEA —T—%+=A —Z—=FXH
+=H i AN =
28 June 2010 28 June 2013
—E-ZTFXA —T-=FXA
i AN = —+\H
13 December 2011 28 June 2013
—T—%+ZRH —Z—=%F~H
+=H —+\H
6 April 2012 28 June 2013
—E-ZFWmA —Z—=%FXAH
7~H —+\H
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AR EARTR_E-—F T A=t HERTROEHK
#90.000035%

Note 1: representing approximately 0.000035% of the Company’s total issued shares as
at 31 December 2012

2 HARRR-T-—F A=t AERTROHAR
#70.0001%

Note 2: representing approximately 0.0001% of the Company’s total issued shares as
at 31 December 2012

RS EAREAR—E-——F T -A=1—HEETROHEHK
#90.000033%

HER B =L E R
R-ZF—=—F+—AhB  AAABRRASHZBAT

Note 3: representing approximately 0.000033% of the Company’s total issued shares as
at 31 December 2012

H Shares Appreciation Rights

On 9 November 2012, the Company’s general meeting approved the “H
Shares Appreciation Rights Scheme of China Eastern Airlines Company
Limited” with an aim to provide medium to long term incentive to certain
Directors, senior management, key technical and managerial personnel of the

Company and promote the continuous development of the business of the

(BRI ZES
ARRFEES  RREEAS
AT et RSB AR EA KRB RBREER

AR R RIHRARRIEE R E]) - VAR

- BB AL BN

Group.
HE-_ZT——F+-A=1+—H BARRAEELSR
As at 31 December 2012, the particulars of H shares appreciation rights ~ &I2 A B HHHIRIEZ R ERESSMT ¢

granted to the Directors and senior management were as follows:

Number of shares
appreciation

The proportion of
shares appreciation
rights granted

The proportion of
shares appreciation

rights granted to total issued rights granted
(Ten thousand share capital of to total issued
Name Position shares) the Company H Shares
RT#E RTHE
BRTEE HARRBE BT HER1T
®E B (B4) BB L5 HAR 48 L 45
1 Liu Shaoyong Chairman 100 0.0089% 0.0286%
2R E EER
2 Ma Xulun Vice Chairman, President 100 0.0089% 0.0286%
HAm BlESR - Qg
3 Xu Zhao Director 86 0.0076% 0.0246%
i =
4 Gu Jiadan Director 86 0.0076% 0.0246%
BEEST EE
5 Li Yangmin Director, Vice President 86 0.0076% 0.0246%
FER BE - BlEgE
6 Tang Bing Director, Vice President 86 0.0076% 0.0246%
== EE - BlEgE
7 Luo Zhuping Director 86 0.0076% 0.0246%
8 Shu Mingjiang Vice President 71 0.0063% 0.0203%
AR Bl
9 Wu Yongliang Vice President, 71 0.0063% 0.0203%
RKE Chief Financial Officer
BlARAIR - BITSHRES
10  Tian Liuwen Vice President 71 0.0063% 0.0203%
A& Bliase
11 Wang Jian Board secretary, Joint Company 57 0.0051% 0.0163%
A Secretary

ExghE BEATWE
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Brief biographical details in respect of each of the Directors, Supervisors and
members of senior management of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Liu Shaoyong is currently the Chairman of the Company and president
and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding. Mr. Liu joined the civil aviation
industry in 1978 and was appointed as vice president of China General
Aviation Corporation, deputy director of Shanxi Provincial Civil Aviation
Administration of the PRC, general manager of the Shanxi Branch of the
Company, and director general of Flight Standard Department of CAAC. Mr.
Liu served as President of the Company from December 2000 to October
2002, vice minister of the CAAC from October 2002 to August 2004,
president of China Southern Air Holding Company from August 2004 to
December 2008, chairman of China Southern Airlines Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)
from November 2004 to December 2008. In December 2008, Mr. Liu was
appointed as president and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding, and
became the Chairman of the Company since 3 February 2009. Mr. Liu is also
currently the board member of International Air Transport Association, the
board member of Association for Relations Across the Taiwan Straits and
the vice chairman of the first session of the supervisory committee of China’s
Listed Companies Association. Mr. Liu graduated from the China Civil Aviation
Flight College and obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
(EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University. Mr. Liu holds the title of commanding
pilot.

Mr. Ma Xulun is currently the Vice Chairman, President and Deputy Party
Secretary of the Company, and party secretary of CEA Holding. Mr. Ma was
previously vice president of China Commodities Storing and Transportation
Corporation, deputy director general of the Finance Department of the CAAC
and vice president of Air China International Corporation Limited. In 2002, after
the restructuring of civil aviation industry he was appointed as vice president
of general affairs of Air China International Corporation Limited. Later on, Mr.
Ma served as president and deputy party secretary of Air China International
Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from September 2004 to January 2007. Mr.
Ma became a party member of China National Aviation Holding Company
from December 2004 to December 2008, and deputy general manager of
China National Aviation Holding Company from January 2007 to December
2008. In December 2008, Mr. Ma was appointed as President and Deputy
Party Secretary of the Company and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding.
Since February 2009, Mr. Ma has become a Director of the Company. Mr. Ma
served as party secretary of CEA Holding and Vice Chairman of the Company
with effect from November 2011. Mr Ma is also currently the Deputy Director-
General of Association of Shanghai Listed Companies. Mr. Ma graduated
from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics and Huazhong University
of Science and Technology. Mr. Ma holds a master’s degree and is a certified
accountant.

Mr. Xu Zhao is currently a Director of the Company, and the chief accountant
of CEA Holding. Mr. Xu served as engineer and accountant of Dongfeng Motor
Group Company Limited, manager of the finance department of Shanghai
Yanhua High Technology Limited Company, and chief financial officer of
Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automobile Co., Limited. Since November 2006, Mr.
Xu has served as the chief accountant of CEA Holding. He was a Supervisor
of the Company from June 2007 to November 2011. Mr. Xu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Yingde Gases Group Company
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) with effect from
September 2009. He has served as a Director of the Company since June
2012. Mr. Xu graduated from Chongging University, majoring in moulding, and
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring in accounting, and holds a
master’s degree. Mr. Xu is qualified as an engineer and an accountant, and is
a certified public accountant in the PRC.
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Mr. Gu Jiadan is currently a Director of the Company, and vice president and
a party member of CEA Holding. Mr. Gu was the assistant to president, and
the general manager and the party secretary of the commerce department
of Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd. (B8 Z=HERAF). From May 2005 to
August 2009, he was a party member and vice president of Shanghai Airlines
Co., Ltd.. From August 2009 to January 2010, he was the acting president
of Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd.. From January 2010 to July 2011, he was vice
president and a party member of CEA Holding and the party secretary of
Shanghai Airlines. Since July 2011, Mr. Gu has served as the vice president
and a party member of CEA Holding. He was appointed a Director of the
Company with effect from June 2012. Mr. Gu Jiadan holds a master’s degree
and is a senior economist.

Mr. Li Yangmin is currently a Director, Party Secretary and Vice President
of the Company, and a party member of CEA Holding. Mr. Li joined the
civil aviation industry in 1985. He was previously deputy general manager
of the aircraft maintenance base and the manager of air route department
(M#453F) of Northwest Company (Fiibfnz= /A 7)), general manager of the
aircraft maintenance base of China Eastern Air Northwest Company and vice
president of China Eastern Air Northwest Company. Since October 2005,
he has also been a Vice President of the Company. He served as Safety
Director of the Company from July 2010 to December 2012. He has become
a party member of CEA Holding since May 2011. He was appointed the
Party Secretary and Director of the Company with effect from June 2011.
He was the chairman of China Cargo Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company,
from February 2012 to January 2013. Mr. Li graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University with a master’s degree. He is a qualified senior
engineer.

Mr. Tang Bing is currently a Director, Vice President of the Company, and
party member of CEA Holding. Mr. Tang joined the civil aviation industry in
19983. He served as vice executive president (general manager in China Office)
of INBEXFEBHMAEFR A E] (MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Co., Ltd.),
office director of China Southern Airlines Holding Company and president of
EEMZEAMR QA (Chongging Airlines Company Limited). From December
2007 to May 2009, he served as chief engineer and general manager of the
Aircraft Engineering Department of China Southern Airlines Company Limited
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange). From May 2009 to December 2009, he was appointed as
president of the Beijing Branch of the Company and was the president of
Shanghai Airlines from January 2010 to December 2011. He was appointed
as the chairman of Shanghai Airlines in January 2012. He served as a Vice
President of the Company since February 2010, and was appointed a
party member of CEA Holding in May 2011 and a Director of the Company
in June 2012. Mr. Tang graduated from Nanjing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics majoring in electrical technology. He obtained a Master of
Business Administration (MBA) degree from the Administration Institute of Sun
Yat-sen University and an EMBA degree from the School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University.
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Mr. Luo Zhuping is currently a Director of the Company. Mr. Luo joined CEA
in 1988. He was Deputy Chief and then Chief of the Enterprise Management
Department and Deputy Head of the Share System Office of China Eastern
Airlines. He served as the Board Secretary of the Company for 15 years
from December 1996 to April 2012. He was also the Head of the Board
Secretariat of the Company from 1997 to 2008. He was appointed a Director
of the Company with effect from June 2004. Mr. Luo has been responsible
for domestic and overseas exchange listing and capital management of
the Company since 1993. He has gained rich experience in certain value-
added measures of an enterprise, such as enterprise reform, stock issuance,
corporate governance, merger and acquisition and reorganization. Mr. Luo
graduated from Anhui University majoring in Philosophy and Law. He also
holds a Master in Global Economics from Eastern China Normal University.
He participated in the training programme for senior managers of large
scale enterprises organised in the U.S. by the State Economic and Trade
Commission and Morgan Stanley.

Mr. Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu is currently an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu joined the civil aviation industry in
Taiwan in 1969. He served in &&/R#EfZe /A a) (China Airlines) in various
capacities, including airport manager in Honolulu Airport, marketing director
for the Americas, general manager for Hawaii District, regional director for
Europe, director of corporate planning and director of marketing planning
in its Corporate Office in Taiwan. With China Airlines, he also served as vice
president for marketing and sales and vice president for commerce, and
president in the Corporate Office. In addition, Mr. Liu served as a director of
&8I SHZE (Taiwan Mandarin Airlines), & /& HfiZe (Taiwan Far Eastern
Air Transport), & /&% fEZ2 &F (Taiwan China Pacific Catering Service) and & /&
HEEM 2 RS A 7 (Taiwan Taoyuan International Airport Service Company),
as well as chairman of &/&ZEREY)7R A Al (Taiwan Air Cargo Terminal). He
relocated to Hong Kong to act as chief operating officer for the Asia Region in
Expeditors International of Washington, Inc., a global logistics company. Mr.
Liu graduated from Taiwan Shih Hsin University and attended advanced study
programmes at Stanford University in 1990 and 1993.

Mr. Wu Xiaogen is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wu previously served as assistant to the general manager
and deputy general manager of the securities department of A1 54 Z& IR
R EAREEAT (China Jingu International Trust Investment Company
Limited), deputy general manager of the securities management department
and general manager of the institutional management department of A
R BEEE5E8E A (China Technology International Trust Investment
Company), and head of the audit teaching and research unit and deputy dean
of the School of Accountancy of Central University of Finance and Economics.
He was chief accountant of China First Heavy Industries from November
2004 to June 2010. He has been a professional external director for central
enterprises since June 2010 and holds the title of researcher. Mr. Wu served
as an independent non-executive director of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange) from May 2010 to May 2012. Mr. Wu is also a director
and a member of the Ethics Committee of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an external director of China National Machinery Industry
Corporation and an external director of China Three Gorges Corporation. Mr.
Wu graduated from the Department of Economics and Management of the
Central University of Finance and Economics and also obtained a Doctoral
Degree in Economics.
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Mr. Ji Weidong is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Ji was an associate professor and professor at the School of
Law of Kobe University, Japan. Since 2008, he has been the dean and chair
professor of Koguan Law School of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. In addition,
he is currently an honorary professor at Kobe University, Japan. Mr. Ji
graduated from the Department of Law of Peking University. Mr. Ji completed
his Master and Doctoral Degrees in Law at the Graduate School of Kyoto
University, Japan and obtained his doctoral degree from Kyoto University,
Japan. From September 1991 to July 1992, he was a visiting scholar at
Stanford Law School.

Mr. Shao Ruiqing is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Shao was deputy dean and dean of the School of Economics
and Management of Shanghai Maritime University. He served as deputy dean
at Shanghai Lixin University of Commerce since March 2004, and was also a
professor in accounting and mentor to doctoral students. From June 2007 to
August 2011, Mr. Shao served as an external supervisor of China Merchants
Bank Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange). Mr. Shao served as an independent non-
executive director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from June 2008 to May 2012. Mr. Shao was
awarded the special allowance by the State Council of the PRC in 1995. He
is currently a consultative committee member of the Ministry of Transport of
the PRC, as an expert in finance and accounting. Mr. Shao graduated from
Shanghai Maritime University, Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
and Tongji University with a Bachelor Degree in Economics, and Master and
Doctoral Degrees in Management. Mr. Shao has spent two and a half years
studying and being senior visiting scholar in the U.K. and Australia.

Mr. Yu Faming is currently the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company, and a party member and the head of party disciplinary
inspection group of CEA Holding. Mr. Yu served as deputy head of the Survey
and Research Department of the Policy Research Office of the Ministry of
Labour and Human Resources of the PRC, head of the Integration Division
of the Department of Policy and Regulation of the Ministry of Labour of the
PRC, deputy head of the Labour Science Research Institute of the Ministry of
Labour of the PRC, deputy head and head of the Labour Science Research
Institute of the Ministry of Labour Protection of the PRC and head of the
Training and Employment Department of the Ministry of Labour Protection
of the PRC. From June 2008 to May 2011, he served as head of the
Employment Department of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC. Since May 2011, he has been party member and head of
party disciplinary inspection group of CEA Holding. Since June 2011, he has
served as the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yu graduated from Shandong University majoring in philosophy. He holds the
title of associate research fellow.
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Mr. Xi Sheng is currently a Supervisor of the Company and chief auditor
of CEA Holding. Mr. Xi served as the deputy head of the foreign affairs
department I of the foreign funds utilization and application audit department
and the head of the liaison and reception office of the foreign affairs
department of the National Audit Office of the PRC and the deputy head of
the PRC Audit Institute (2 BIZ§5+==75FT). He was also the head of the fixed
assets investment audit department of the National Audit Office of the PRC,
and the party secretary and a special commissioner of the Harbin office of the
National Audit Office of the PRC. He served as the head of the personnel and
education department of the National Audit Office of the PRC from January
2007 to September 2009. He was the head of the audit department of CEA
Holding from September 2009 to November 2012. Mr. Xi has served as the
chief auditor of CEA Holding since September 2009. Mr. Xi is also the council
member of China Institute of Internal Audit and a member of International
Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. Xi graduated from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics (IFaEI A K E2) with undergraduate education
background. He is a senior auditor.

Mr. Liu Jiashun is currently a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Liu was party
secretary, deputy president and secretary of the disciplinary committee of
China Aviation Fuel Hainan Company, as well as chairman of the board and
president of Hainan Nanyang Air Transport Co., Ltd. He was also the chief
director in charge of fuel supply engineering at Haikou’s Meilan Airport and
served as a director of Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. and the vice chairman of the
board and president of £ EZ AR A7) (Meiya Company). From 1999 to
2007 he was deputy party secretary, and subsequently the secretary of the
disciplinary committee of China Aviation Fuel East China Company and he
served as the general manager of /&M AHEARZA A (Shanghai Pudong
Airport Fuel Co., Ltd) from 2006 to March 2009. Since October 2009, Mr. Liu
has served as the party secretary of FBIfnZ= Mt EER A &) (China Aviation
Fuel Huadong Company). He was appointed a Supervisor of the Company in
2000. Mr. Liu received post-graduate education and is qualified as a senior
political work instructor.

Mr. Feng Jinxiong is currently a Supervisor and General Manager of the
Audit Department of the Company and a deputy general manager of the Audit
Department of CEA Holding. Mr. Feng joined the civil aviation industry in 1982,
and served as Deputy Head and Head of the Planning Department of the
Company, head of the Finance Department and deputy chief accountant of
CEA Holding, Manager of the Human Resources Department of the Company,
vice president of & ZER AR EEA R (CES Finance Holding Co. Ltd),
and Deputy General Manager of the Shanghai Security Department of the
Company. He also served as president of the China Eastern Airlines Wuhan
Co., Ltd. from 2007 to 2009. Since February 2009, he has been General
Manager of the Audit Department of the Company. He has been a Supervisor
of the Company since March 2009. Mr. Feng graduated from the Civil Aviation
University of China and the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences, holding a master’s degree.
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Mr. Yan Taisheng is currently a Supervisor and the Vice Chairman of the
Labour Union of the Company. Mr. Yan joined the civil aviation industry in
1973, and served as Chief of the Board Secretariat of the General Office of the
Company, general manager of F/8RME A& %A 7] (Shanghai Civil Aviation
Dong Da Industry Company) and Deputy Head and Head of the General Office
of the Labour Union of the Company. He has been the Vice Chairman of the
Labour Union of the Company since 2005. He served as a Supervisor since
March 2009. Mr. Yan graduated from East China Normal University.

Mr. Shu Mingjiang is currently a Vice President of the Company. Mr. Shu
joined the civil aviation industry in 1989. He served as vice president of general
affairs of /&R A RITEENAR A7 (Shanghai Eastern Flight Training Co.,
Ltd.), a subsidiary of the Company, Deputy Head of the Safety Monitoring
Division, Vice Manager and subsequently Manager of the Safety Monitoring
Department of the Company, Deputy General Manager of the Shanghai Flight
Division of the Company and Vice President of the Yunnan Branch of the
Company. From November 2006 to December 2009, he was the Chief Pilot
and General Manager of the Operating Control Division of the Company. From
December 2009 to November 2011, Mr. Shu was President of the Beijing
Branch of the Company. He has been a Vice President of the Company
since December 2011. Mr. Shu graduated from the Flight College of Civil
Aviation Flight University of China, majoring in aviation flying, and obtained
a Master in Flight Safety Management jointly held by Civil Aviation University
of China, ENAC, France and ENSICA, France, and an Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) degree from School of Management of Fudan
University.

Mr. Wu Yongliang is currently a Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the civil aviation industry in 1984 and served
as Deputy Head and subsequently Head of the Finance Department of the
Company, Head of Planning and Finance Department of the Company and
head of the Finance Department of CEA Holding. From 2001 to March 2009,
he served as deputy chief accountant and head of the Finance Department
of CEA Holding. From April 2009 onwards, he has served as Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. He has been a Vice President of the Company
since December 2011. Mr. Wu graduated from the Faculty of Economic
Management of Civil Aviation University of China, majoring in planning and
finance. He also graduated from Fudan University, majoring in business
administration (MBA). Mr. Wu was awarded the postgraduate qualification and
is a certified accountant.

Mr. Tian Liuwen is currently a Vice President of the Company and president
of Shanghai Airlines. Mr. Tian served as manager of the Beijing Sales
Department under the Marketing and Sales Division of China General Aviation
Corporation. He was also the Head of the General Manager Office and
Chairman of the Labour Union and Deputy General Manager of the Shanxi
Branch of the Company. From June 2002 to January 2008, he was the Vice
President and subsequently President of the Hebei Branch of the Company.
From April 2005 to January 2008, he was President of the Beijing Base of the
Company. He served as general manager of China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu
Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, since January 2008. Since December
2011, he has been Vice President of the Company and president of Shanghai
Airlines. He obtained an EMBA degree from Nanjing University and is qualified
as senior economist.
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Mr. Wang Jian is currently the Board Secretary, Joint Company Secretary
and the Head of the Board secretariat of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the
Company in 1995 and served as Deputy Head of the Company’s office and
Deputy General Manager of the Shanghai Business Office of the Company.
From September 2006 to May 2009, he was the deputy general manager in
the Shanghai Base of China Southern Airlines Company Limited (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
Since May 2009, he has served as the Head of the Board secretariat of the
Company. He was a representative of the Company’s Securities affairs from
May 2009 to April 2012. He was appointed as the Board Secretary and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company in April 2012. Mr. Wang graduated from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University and has an MBA postgraduate degree from
East China University of Science and Technology and an EMBA degree from
Tsinghua University as well as a qualification certificate for board secretaries of
listed companies issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ngai Wai Fung is currently a Joint Company Secretary of the Company.
Mr. Ngai is a fellow and vice president of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Ngai is currently a director and
chief executive officer of SW Corporate Services Group Limited. Mr. Ngai has
become an adjunct professor of the Faculty of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan
University in September 2012. He was appointed as a non-official member of
the Working Group on Professional Services of the Economic Development
Commission by the chief executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and also a committee member of Qualification and Examination
Board by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts in January
2013. He used to serve as joint company secretary in several companies and
has rich experience in being a company secretary, as well as in enterprise
management, legal matters, finance and corporate governance. He is also
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. In April 2012, Mr. Ngai was appointed as the Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ngai has a Doctorate in Finance from the
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, a Master in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA from Andrews University
in the United States and a Bachelor’s degree (Honours) in Law from the
University of Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has issued a confirmation in
respect of the factors set out in the Listing Rules concerning his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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CHANGES IN THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Appointment
B

Name

e

Xu Zhao
AR

Gu Jiadan
BAEST

Tang Bing
B

Xi Sheng
ER

Wang Jian
pas

Ngai Wai Fung

BB

Resignation

BRAE

Name

H"H

Luo Zhuping
BT

Date of appointment

BMERH

28 June 2012
—E—ZHFRAZ+NH

28 June 2012
—E—ZHFRAZ+NH

28 June 2012
—E—ZHFRAZ+NH

28 June 2012
—E—ZHFRAZ+NH

6A|ori| 2012
ZE-ZFMAKRH

6A|ori| 2012
ZE-ZFMAKRH

Date of resignation

BEEM

6 April 2012
—ET—-—FMANH

Approval Organization

R

2011 annual general meeting

T EREAR

2011 annual general meeting

T EREAR

2011 annual general meeting

T EREAR

2011 annual general meeting

T EREAR

13th meeting of the sixth session of
the Board
FEREEFEEEIVNEE

13th meeting of the sixth session of

the Board
FEREEFEEEIVNEE
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Position

B

Director

5=

Director

5=

Director

5=

Supervisor

E=x

Board Secretary, Joint Company Secretary,
Authorised Representative in Hong Kong

BEEenE BEATWE  BERERR

Joint Company Secretary
HEARIE

Position

B

Board Secretary, Company Secretary,
Authorised Representative in Hong Kong

ERgWE  ARNE  TEREREK
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CHANGE OF PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS OR
SUPERVISORS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Mr. Li Yangmin, a Director, was appointed as an executive director of
ER AR AR AR (Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics Co., Ltd.), a
subsidiary of the Company, with effect from December 2012 and ceased to
act as the chairman of China Cargo Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company, with
effect from January 2013.

Mr. Tang Bing, a Director, was appointed as the chairman of Shanghai
Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company, with effect from January 2012 and the
chairman of Jetstar Hong Kong with effect from October 2012.

Mr. Wu Xiaogen, an independent non-executive Director, ceased to act
as an independent non-executive director of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange) with effect from May 2012.

Mr. Shao Ruiging, an independent non-executive Director, ceased to act as
an independent non-executive director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) with effect from May 2012.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors,
chief executive, Supervisors or members of senior management of the
Company and their respective associates had any other interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case
may be) of the Company and/or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
(including any interest or short position which any of such Directors, chief
executive, Supervisors or members of senior management of the Company
and their respective associates were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which was otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (which shall be deemed to apply to
the Supervisors to the same extent as it applied to the Directors).

In 2012 and as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors, chief executive,
Supervisors, members of senior management of the Company and/or any of
their spouses or children under the age of eighteen were granted any right,
and the Company had not made any arrangement enabling any of them, to
subscribe for equity securities or debt securities of the Company.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Liu Shaoyong (the Chairman of the Company),
Mr. Xu Zhao and Mr. Gu Jiadan (Directors), Mr. Yu Faming (the chairman of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company) and Mr. Xi Sheng (a Supervisor)
are employees of CEA Holding, which is a company having an interest in the
Company’s shares required to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract
with the Company, which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or Supervisors had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to during the Reporting Period (the term ‘contract of
significance’ having the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph 15 of Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules).

REMUNERATION
Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out in note 9
to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

H Shares Appreciation Rights Scheme

Details of the grant of the H shares appreciation rights of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Report of Directors—H Shares Appreciation Rights”
of this report.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 66,207 employees, a majority of
whom worked in the PRC. The wages of the Group’s employees generally
consisted of basic salary and performance-based bonus.

MEDICAL INSURANCE

The majority of the Group’s PRC employees participate in the medical
insurance schemes organised by the municipal governments, under which
the Group and its employees are required to contribute to the schemes
approximately 12% and 2%, respectively, of the employee’s basic salaries. For
those employees who participate in these schemes, the Group has no other
obligation for the payment of medical expense beyond such contributions.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s medical insurance
contributions charged to the income statement amounted to RMB391 million
(2011: RMB374 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group
as at 31 December 2012 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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INTEREST CAPITALIZED

Interest capitalized by the Group as calculated in accordance with IFRS for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB297 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and profit appropriation by the Company are set
out in note 43 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

STATUTORY COMMON WELFARE FUND

Details in relation to the statutory common welfare fund, such as the nature
and application of and movements in the fund, and the basis of its calculation,
including the percentage used for calculating the amounts, are set out in note
43 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable purposes amounting
to approximately RMB150,000.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Company’s employee retirement scheme and post retirement
benefits are set out in note 38 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In 2012, purchases by the Company from the largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for 13.82% and 33.39%, respectively, of the total annual
purchases of the Company. Total income from sales to the Company’s five
largest customers amounted to approximately RMB8,173 million, accounting
for 9.6% of the Company’s total revenue.

None of the Directors, Supervisors or any of their respective associates nor
any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, hold 5% or more of
the Company’s share capital has any interest in any of the above mentioned
suppliers and customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 4 November 2011, in order to be more focused on the core aviation
business and the related business of the Company, the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement with F/ER#iZE AR A A
(Shanghai Eastern Airlines Investment Co., Ltd.) (‘SEA Investment”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to transfer 5% of the equity
interest in RANEHERE AR AT (CEA Real Estate Investment Co.,
Ltd.) (“CEA Real Estate Investment”) held by the Company to SEA
Investment. SEA Investment agreed to pay a sum of RMB100,663,590
in cash to the Company, subject to modification, as the consideration
for this transaction. SEA Investment, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CEA Holding (a substantial shareholder of the Company), is a
connected person of the Company and thus, the transaction constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company. The transaction completed
in 2012. For additional details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company issued in Hong Kong dated 4 November 2011.

On 22 August 2012, in order to manage and conduct internal integration
of the Group, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement
with CEA Holding, pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire
20% equity interests in China United Airlines from CEA Holding in
consideration of RMB83,951,873.97 (the “China United Airlines
Acquisition”). As CEA Holding is a controlling shareholder of the
Company, the China United Airlines Acquisition constituted a connected
transaction of the Company. The China United Airlines Acquisition has
completed and China United Airlines is now a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company issued in Hong Kong dated 22 August 2012.

On 11 September 2012, CEA Holding and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Hie RIERAREEA T (CES Finance Holding Co. Ltd) (“CES
Finance”) entered into an A shares subscription agreement (the “A
Shares Subscription Agreement”) with the Company. Pursuant
to the A Shares Subscription Agreement: (a) CEA Holding will, at
the subscription price of RMB3.28 per share, subscribe in cash
for 241,547,927 new A shares with a total subscription price of
RMB792,277,200.56; and (b) CES Finance will, at the subscription price
of RMB3.28 per share, subscribe in cash for 457,317,073 new A shares
with a total subscription price of RMB1,499,999,999.44 (the “A Share
Subscription”).

Simultaneously with the entering into of the A Shares Subscription
Agreement, CES Global, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA Holding,
entered into an H shares subscription agreement (the “H Shares
Subscription Agreement”) with the Company. Pursuant to the H
Shares Subscription Agreement, CES Global will, at the subscription
price of HK$2.32 per share, subscribe in cash for 698,865,000 new
H shares with a total subscription price of HK$1,621,366,800 (the “H
Share Subscription”).

As CEA Holding holds approximately 59.94% of the then issued share
capital of the Company, and CES Finance and CES Global are wholly
owned subsidiaries of CEA Holding, each of the A Shares Subscription
Agreement entered into between (i) the Company and (i) CEA Holding
and CES Finance, and the H Shares Subscription Agreement entered
into between (i) the Company and (ii) CES Global constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company. The purpose of the A Share
Subscription and the H Share Subscription is to improve the financial
position of the Company and in the long term, enhance the Company’s
competitiveness and help to improve its operational position.
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The A Share Subscription and the H Share Subscription have been
approved by the Shareholders on 9 November 2012, but still are subject
to approval from the relevant governmental and regulatory authorities.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company issued
in Hong Kong dated 11 September 2012, 9 November 2012, 4 February
2013, 25 February 2013 and 10 April 2013 and the circular of the
Company dated 24 September 2012.

On 6 December 2012, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement with E/8fize# H 0GR A A (Shanghai Aviation Import
& Export Co., Ltd.) (“SAIE”, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA
Holding), pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire the
remaining 13.98% equity interests in /@122 B iz (@) BR A
7] (Shanghai Airlines Tours, International (Group) Co., Ltd.) (‘Shanghai
Tours”) from SAIE in consideration of RMB20,693,900 (the “Shanghai
Tours Acquisition”). As SAIE is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary
of CEA Holding, the Shanghai Tours Acquisition constituted a connected
transaction of the Company. The main purpose of the Shanghai Tours
Acquisition is to resolve the issue of intra-group competition between the
Company and CEA Holding in the areas of tourism operation caused by
the absorption of the former Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd (& &/t 2= A% {5
BBR A \]). The Shanghai Tours Acquisition has completed and Shanghai
Tours is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong
dated 6 December 2012.

On 6 December 2012, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement with &R FE#H (£E )42 7) (China Ocean Shipping
(Group) Company) (“COSCO Group”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to acquire 29.7% equity interests in Eastern Logistics from
COSCO Group in consideration of RMB562,266,000 (the “Eastern
Logistics Acquisition”). COSCO Group was a substantial shareholder
of Eastern Logistics, which in turn was a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. COSCO Group is thus a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, Eastern Logistics Acquisition constituted a
connected transaction of the Company. The main purpose of the Eastern
Logistics Acquisition is to integrate the freight transportation business of
the Group. The Eastern Logistics Acquisition has completed and Eastern
Logistics is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong
dated 6 December 2012.

On 27 December 2012, Shanghai Tours, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with i
IRELRE (£BE)BPRA R (Eastern Air Tourism Investment Group Co.,
Ltd) (“‘Eastern Tourism”) and /&R EMZEREEAR A A] (Shanghai
Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd) (“Shanghai Dongmei”), pursuant
to which Shanghai Tours agreed to acquire the entire equity interests
in AR EMEIRIBEAR A A (Xi’an Dongmei Aviation Travel Co.,
Ltd) (“Xi’an Dongmei”) from Eastern Tourism and Shanghai Dongmei
in consideration of RMB3,300,400 in total (the “Xi’an Dongmei
Acquisition”).
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On 27 December 2012, Shanghai Tours entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Eastern Tourism and Shanghai Dongmei, pursuant to
which Shanghai Tours agreed to acquire the entire equity interests of &
BRER =M 2o ik B5 A PR A 7 (Kunming Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd)
(“Kunming Dongmei”) from Eastern Tourism and Shanghai Dongmei
in consideration of RMB10,551,000 in total (the “Kunming Dongmei
Acquisition”).

On 10 January 2013, Shanghai Tours entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Eastern Tourism, pursuant to which Shanghai Tours
agreed to acquire the entire equity interests of 5 BIE k1T
tHBRAF] (Shanghai Eastern Air International Travel Service Co.,
Ltd) (“Eastern Travel”) from Eastern Tourism in consideration of
RMB11,876,200 in total (the “Eastern Travel Acquisition”).

Eastern Tourism is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA Holding, which in
turn is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Eastern Tourism is thus
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Shanghai
Dongmei is interested as to 72.84% by, and is thus an associate of, CEA
Holding. Shanghai Dongmei is thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Therefore, each of the Xi’an Dongmei Acquisition, the Kunming Dongmei
Acquisition and the Eastern Travel Acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company. The main purpose of the Xi’an Dongmei
Acquisition, the Kunming Dongmei Acquisition and the Eastern Travel
Acquisition is to reorganise and integrate the tourism business of the
Group. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
issued in Hong Kong dated 10 January 2013.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The estimated transaction caps for the continuing connected transactions,
which were considered and approved by the Board and at the general
meetings of the Company, and their actual amounts incurred up to 31
December 2012, are set out as follows:

Category Al

Financial services (balance of deposit) & BARTE (74 %E)
Catering services Mz B AR TS

Import and export agency services ORI RS
Production and maintenance services A BE AR R e A (R FE AR 7S
Property leasing MERE

Advertising agency services BERIERS

Sales agency services (agency fee) ERRIBRG(RIEE)
Media resources operation services HEE IR ARG
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On 16 January 2013, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement
with R EE I BEREEA A (Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd.)
(“‘Eastern Finance”), to further regulate the balances of the Group’s deposits
and loans with the Eastern Finance and its subsidiaries on a pre-condition
that the agreed maximum daily balance of each of the deposits and the loans
under the financial services agreement dated 15 October 2010 remains
unchanged. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
issued in Hong Kong dated 16 January 2013.

For further details regarding the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the Company’s 2010 annual report.

The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have reviewed such
continuing connected transactions during the year 2012 and confirmed that:

(@  the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and
usual course of its business;

(b)  the transactions have been entered into either (i) on normal commercial
terms or (ii) (where there are not sufficient comparable transactions
to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms) on terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the
Company have carried out procedures on the above connected transactions
disclosed herein for the year ended 31 December 2012 in accordance with
the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
reported that, in respect of the above connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved
by the Board.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Company.

c. nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that

the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions.
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d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions as set out in the appendix to this letter, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual value disclosed in the previous announcement dated
15 October 2010 made by the Company in respect of each of the
disclosed continuing connected transactions.

In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in note 47 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, the Company confirms
that it has complied with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules (if
applicable).

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions set out in note 47 to
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS do not constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS

Details of the Group’s staff housing benefits are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Company was not involved in any litigation,
arbitration or claim of material importance.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1. On 23 March 2012, the Company entered into a binding memorandum
of understanding with Jetstar Airways Pty Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Qantas) for the establishment of a low-cost airline in
Hong Kong. On 24 August 2012, Eastern Air Overseas (Hong Kong)
Corporation Limited (“Eastern Air Overseas”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a shareholders’ agreement
with Jetstar International Group Holdings Co., Limited (“Jetstar
International”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Qantas), pursuant to which
Eastern Air Overseas and Jetstar International agreed to establish a
Hong Kong-based, Jetstar-branded low-cost carrier. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated
23 March 2012 and 24 August 2012.

2. On 27 April 2012, the Company entered into a purchase agreement
with Boeing Company in Shanghai, China regarding the purchase of
twenty Boeing B777-300ER aircraft. On the same date, the Company
entered into a disposal agreement with Boeing Company regarding the
disposal of five Airbus A340-600 aircraft. For details, please see the
announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 27 April
2012 and 28 June 2012 and the circular of the Company dated 14 May
2012.
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On 27 April 2012, the resolution on the Company’s issuance of super
short-term commercial paper was considered and approved by the
Board. The Company intended to issue within the PRC the super short-
term commercial paper with an aggregate principal amount of not more
than RMB10 billion and for a term of not more than 270 days (in multiple
tranches on a rolling basis). The proposal was considered and approved
at the general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2012. The
Company completed the issuance of the 2012 first tranche of the super
short-term commercial paper on 13 September 2012. The issuance
amount of such commercial paper was RMB4 billion with a maturity
of 270 days whereas the nominal value was RMB100 per unit and the
issuance interest rate was 4.1%. The proceeds from the first tranche of
the super short-term commercial paper will be principally used to repay
bank loans, improve its financing structure and replenish short-term
operational working capital. For details, please see the announcements
of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 27 April 2012, 28 June
2012 and 13 September 2012.

On 12 June 2012, the Board considered and approved resolutions
concerning the issuance of corporate bonds. The Company intended to
issue within the PRC the corporate bonds with a principal amount of not
more than RMB8.8 billion (including RMB8.8 billion) and for a term of not
more than 10 years (in one tranche or multiple tranches). The proposal
was considered and approved at the Shareholders’ meeting of the
Company held on 28 June 2012. On 13 December 2012, the Company
received the “Approval for the Non-public Issuance of Corporate Bonds
by China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited” (B8 ER A2 IER
FZE1T A RIEHRIHEE) issued by the CSRC. The first tranche of the
corporate bonds are 10-year fixed interest rate bonds, with an amount of
RMB4.8 billion, issue price of RMB100 each and a coupon interest rate
of 5.05%, the issuance of which completed on 20 March 2013. After
deducting issuance expenses, the proceeds from the first tranche of the
corporate bonds will be used to purchase aircraft. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated
12 June 2012, 28 June 2012, 14 December 2012, 13 March 2013, 18
March 2013 and 20 March 2013.

On 25 August 2012, the “H Shares Appreciation Rights Scheme of
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (Draft)” and “Initial Grant
Scheme of the H Shares Appreciation Rights of China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited (Draft)” were considered and approved by the
Board. On 19 October 2012, the revised “Initial Grant Scheme of the H
Shares Appreciation Rights of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited
(Draft)” (the “Initial Grant Scheme”) was considered and approved
by the Board. The Company granted the H shares appreciation rights
pursuant to the Initial Grant Scheme on 7 December 2012. For details,
please see the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong
dated 28 August 2012, 19 October 2012, 9 November 2012, 30
November 2012 and 7 December 2012 and the circular of the Company
dated 20 October 2012.
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6.  On 30 August 2012, the Board considered and approved the resolution
of proposed amendments to the Articles of Association in relation to
profit distribution. The resolution was considered and approved at the
Shareholders’ meeting on 9 November 2012. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 30
August 2012 and 9 November 2012 and the circular of the Company
dated 24 September 2012.

7.  On 23 November 2012, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement with Airbus SAS in Shanghai, China regarding the purchase
of sixty Airbus A320 series aircraft. On the same date, the Company
entered into a disposal agreement with Airbus SAS regarding the
disposal of eight CRJ aircraft and ten EMB aircraft. For detalils, please
see the announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 23
November 2012 and the circular of the Company dated 26 November
2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
OPINION

Independent non-executive Directors have performed auditing work and
issued an independent opinion on the external guarantees the Company
has provided, as required by the relevant requirements of the CSRC. The
Company has strictly observed the relevant laws and regulations as well as its
Articles of Association while it has also imposed strict control on the external
guarantees provided. As at 31 December 2012, none of the Company and its
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements has provided any
guarantee to the Company’s controlling shareholder and other related parties,
other non-corporate bodies and individuals.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Certified Public Accountants) and
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company (registered
accountants in the PRC) were the Company’s international and domestic
auditors in 2012, respectively.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shaoyong
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
26 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and appropriate corporate governance
structure. The Company has also placed emphasis on the corporate
governance principle of having transparency, accountability and safeguarding
the interests of all Shareholders.

The Board believes that sound corporate governance is essential to the
development of the Company’s operations. The Board regularly reviews
our corporate governance practices to ensure that the Company operates
in accordance with the laws, regulations and requirements of the listing
jurisdictions, and that the Company continuously implements corporate
governance of a high efficiency.

The Company’s corporate governance practices include but are not limited to
the following:

Articles of Association, rules of meeting of general meetings, rules of meeting
of the Board, rules of meeting of the Supervisory Committee, working
regulations of independent directors, management regulations of connected
transactions and articles of association of the audit and risk management
committee, articles of association of the planning and development
committee, detailed working rules for the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee, detailed working rules for the aviation safety and environment
committee, working regulations of presidents, management regulations of
investor relationship, detailed implementation rules for the management of
investor relationship, detailed implementation rules for connected transactions,
regulations on external guarantee and the interim administrative regulations
concerning hedging businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and as at the date of publication of this
annual report, the Board has reviewed the relevant provisions and corporate
governance practices under the codes of corporate governance adopted by
the Company, and took the view that the Company’s corporate governance
practices during the year ended 31 December 2012 met the requirements
under the code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(for the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012) and Corporate
Governance Code (for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Code”). In certain aspects,
the code of corporate governance adopted by the Company is more stringent
than the provisions set out in the Code. The following sets out the major
aspects which are more stringent than the Code.

Major aspects which are more stringent than provisions set out in the Code:

- all members of the audit and risk management committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

- 18 meetings of the Board were held during the financial year of 2012.
The Board is responsible for the leading and control of the Company.
The Directors are jointly responsible for the affairs of the Company by
directing and supervising the affairs of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2012, the Board consists of eleven Directors, including
four independent non-executive Directors. At the Company’s 2011 annual
general meeting held on 28 June 2012, the Shareholders approved the
appointment of Mr. Xu Zhao, Mr. Gu Jiadan and Mr. Tang Bing as Directors
of the sixth session of the Board. All Directors shall retire in the third annual
general meeting following their appointment, but are eligible for re-election.
Names, personal particulars and conditions of appointment of the Directors
are set out in page 38 of this report.

Independent non-executive Directors shall possess specialised knowledge
and experience. They shall be able to play their roles of supervising and
balancing to the fullest extent to protect the interests of Shareholders and
the Company as a whole. The Board considers that they shall be able to
exercise independent judgment effectively, which complies with guidelines
on assessment of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received the
annual confirmation letters from each of the independent non-executive
Directors on their independence. All Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a term of 3 years. The formal
appointment letters and the Articles of Association have set out the terms and
conditions of their appointment. Other than working relationships, Directors,
Supervisors and members of senior management of the Company do not
have any financial, business or family connection with one another.

POWERS OF THE BOARD

On a periodic basis, the Board reviews the relevant performance against
proposed budgets and business objectives of each operating unit. It also
exercises a number of powers retained by the Board, including the following:

- responsibility for convening general meetings and reporting to
Shareholders on its work in such meeting;

- implementing resolutions passed in general meetings;

= deciding on the operating plan and investment proposals of the
Company;

- formulating the annual preliminary and final budget proposals;

- formulating the Company’s profit distribution proposal and the proposal
to offset losses;

- formulating the Company’s proposals to increase or reduce the
registered capital and proposals to issue debt securities;

- drawing up proposals for the Company’s merger, demerger and
dissolution;

- deciding on the Company’s internal management structure;
- employing or dismissing the Company’s President and Board Secretary;
appointment or dismissal of the Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of the Company on the nomination of the President, and the
determination of their remuneration;

60

55

BE_T——H+_A=t-"HAAXRARESFSNLRES
MR P42 BBYENTES - N_FT——F~A
“HNBETH T ——FERRERRE - ARAKERL
HIRRBAE  BEMEE  BEAEEERRAFENE
EXQEF  MAEFHNACZAERE=AFERRX
B LRE EREEERBESE - ZBENML - #
AEBHREBIBRSN AR S EF38A -

AARHBLIFNTEE B BE RO MBS o oI
RN BEERMNTENERER - RERRMARF]
RN G - EF SR SMMIREE R EL B HE
A LR RIES ARSI B AR EE L ERIHE S| - RIB
(EMRADIFEIABME - ARRERWE|BRBLIFNTT
EEREBYEMELNFEERL - AAER(RIEE
TIEMTER)NERRIF EXEZEERAAEEH
I Ea SRR A MM BAR MG - AARES - &
= SREBAEBZE  BRIEBRZIN  EFB - ¥
% RIEE 7 EEEARE -

EESHEN
EEeE PRI EFMPIHMENHEREXBARA
RAREERE - WITERZREERSD - 83

— BEASKREARE  URBRAGHEIE:

—  HITRRRGHIRE

— REARFNKEFENRETR

— HEARBANFEMBRESE  RET

i

—  HIEARBWFED T EMBAERTE

—  HIEARRREMSB D EME RN T RARETA
RIESRTER

— BEARBAH - D BEES

v

— REARFARIEEEBORE

— BEIEBRBEARFELE BFSNE  REA
RIBRIRE - BERERIEA QR BRI 15
HES - ORTEHIRENZ=IA



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4 =R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ALl Ao N

TEER

- formulating the basic management systems of the Company;
- formulating proposals to amend the Articles of Association;
- discharging any other powers and functions granted in general meeting.

The Board and the relevant specialized committees are also responsible for
the completeness of financial information and are responsible for maintaining
an effective internal control system and for risk management of the Group,
as well as preparing the financial statements of the Company. Setting the
business objectives and overseeing the daily operations of the Company are
the responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer. The Articles of Association
specify the duties and authorities of the Board and management. The Board
periodically reviews the duties and functions of the Chief Executive Officer
and the powers delegated to him to ensure that such arrangements are
appropriate. In order to ensure the balance of powers and authorization,
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer have been clearly
defined. The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Liu Shaoyong, and the
Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Ma Xulun, a Director and the President of the
Company. There are also other senior officers who are responsible for the
daily management of the Company within their scope of duties.

The Board continued to made strenuous efforts to establish and improve
the Company’s corporate governance policies, apart from the formulation of
corporate governance policies such as Rules of Meeting of General Meetings,
Rules of Meeting of the Board, Working Regulations of Presidents and
Working Regulations of Independent Directors, the Company also drew up
the Information Disclosure Management System, Management Regulations of
Connected Transactions and Management Regulations of External Guarantees
for specific operations.

During the Reporting Period, in order to strengthen the work related to
registration and management of insiders of the Company, the Board
considered and approved the Registration and Management Regulation
of Insiders in January 2012. On 30 August 2012, pursuant to the new
requirements in respect of strengthening the risk management of financial
derivative businesses of the Company, the Board considered and amended
the Risk Management Manual of Derivative Business ({74 S 7&E & &
12 F1f) in a timely manner. In addition, with a view to enhance the basic
management of the Company and strengthen system building, the Company
streamlined the relevant constitutional documents and policies considered
and approved by the Board and amended and supplemented certain policies
which are incompatible with the Company’s development requirement, based
on the new changes of regulatory requirements and the actual conditions of
the production and operation of the Company, and repealed the “Rules on
Operating Procedures for Aircraft Purchase and Leasing (38 & AN S R HY 12
{ERIZENEE)”, “Provisional Regulations on Approval Process of Investment
Decisions and Disposals of Asset (& & REME Ef & B IR FEHTTRE)
and “China Eastern Administrative Rules on External Investment (SR A% 15 %
IMEEEIRIFE) (28 October 2005 edition)”. Based on the Company’s need
to issue debt securities, the Board considered and approved the Management
Regulation of the Information Disclosure in the Interbank Bond Market on
30 October 2012. Meanwhile, in order to strengthen the Company’s risk
management of specific connected transaction, the Board considered and
approved the “Risk Control Regulation of the Connected Transaction with
Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd. (B2 LB 5 AR & (T A R FEE L 5
O R B A2 i 1L %)
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GENERAL MEETINGS

The procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to send enquiries to the Board, and the procedure for proposing
resolutions at general meetings are as follows:

According to the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association and rules
of meeting of general meetings of the Company, Shareholders may convene a
general meeting on their own, the major rules of which are as follows:

- Shareholder(s) either individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Such request shall be made to the Board in writing. The
Board shall, in accordance with the requirement of laws, administrative
regulations and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing
on whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting
within 10 days upon receipt of such request.

- If the Board refuses to convene the extraordinary general meeting, or
fails to make a response within 10 days upon receipt of such request,
Shareholder(s) either individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares may propose to convene an extraordinary general
meeting to the Supervisory Committee. Such proposal shall be made to
the Supervisory Committee in writing.

- If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, a notice convening the general meeting shall be
issued within 5 days upon receipt of such request. Should there be any
amendments to the original proposal in the notice, the consent of the
relevant Shareholders shall be obtained.

- If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the general
meeting within the specified time limit, it shall be deemed to have
failed to convene or preside over the general meeting, in which case,
Shareholder(s) either individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares for more than 90 consecutive days shall have the
right to convene and preside over the meeting by themselves.

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association and rules
of meeting of general meetings of the Company, Shareholders have the right
to inspect or make copies of the Articles of Association, minutes of general
meetings, resolutions of Board meetings, resolutions of meetings of the
Supervisory Committee and financial or accounting reports. Shareholders may
request to inspect the accounting books of the Company. In such case, such
request shall be made to the Board secretariat of the Company in writing and
state its purposes. If the Company, on reasonable grounds, considers that
the Shareholders are inspecting the accounting books for improper purposes
and may result in damage to the Company’s legal interests, the Company
may refuse the inspection and make written response to the Shareholders
stating its reasons within 15 days upon delivery of the written request by the
Shareholders. If the Company refuses the inspection, Shareholders may make
proposal to the People’s Court to request the Company to provide inspection
of the accounting books of the Company.
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Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association and rules ~ BIEAQATK AT ZR )R AT REASZEHRAVEE
of meeting of general meetings of the Company, the procedures for the  B3iE @ REAEREAS FEHZENIETA ¢

Shareholders to propose resolutions at the general meeting are as follows:

= Shareholder(s) either individually or jointly holding over 3% of the
issued shares of the Company carrying the right to vote may propose
extraordinary resolutions and submit the same in writing to the convener
prior to the holding of the general meeting. However, subject to the
requirement of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company shall issue
supplemental circular of the new extraordinary resolutions and the
relevant materials to the Shareholders at least 14 days before the date
of holding the general meeting, therefore, the time for the proposing
Shareholders to propose new extraordinary resolutions shall not be
later than such time limit for issuing the supplemental circular to the
Shareholders and shall consider and provide the Company reasonable
time to prepare and despatch the supplemental circular.

- The aforesaid proposed resolutions shall be reviewed by the Board and
shall be included in the agenda of such meeting if the matters fall within
the scope of terms of reference of the general meeting. The convener
shall announce the content of the extraordinary resolutions by issuing a
supplemental notice of the general meeting upon receipt of the proposed
resolutions as soon as possible. If the Board considers that the content
of the proposed resolutions do not fall within the scope of terms of
reference of the general meeting, explanation and description shall be
given at such general meeting, which, together with the content of such
proposed resolutions and explanation of the Board, shall be published
along with the resolutions of the general meeting in announcement after
the conclusion of the meeting.
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the Board shall review the proposed resolutions in accordance with the
following principles:

Q)

Relevance. The Board shall review the resolutions proposed by the
Shareholders. Matters in resolutions proposed by the Shareholders
which have direct impact on the Company and are not outside the
terms of reference of the general meeting as stipulated in the laws,
regulations and the Articles of Association shall be submitted to
the general meeting for discussion. For matters which fail to meet
the above requirements, it is recommended not to submit the
proposed resolutions for discussion at the general meeting.

Procedural issues. The Board may make decisions on procedural
issues concerning resolutions proposed by the Shareholders.
Consent of the proposing Shareholders shall be obtained if the
proposed resolutions will be split up or combined for voting.
In the event of any objection to the change by the proposing
Shareholders, the convener of the general meeting may present
the procedural issues to the general meeting for decision and
discussions shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures
decided by the general meeting.

Please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance — Investor
Relations” of this report for details of the contact information for Shareholders
to inspect the relevant information and propose extraordinary resolutions.

64

— EESRATRAEREETER

(—) Bt - EESHBRBRETER - R
BERESREERATNAEERG LA
TREER ERMATER)ATHRE
REBEBED  EIRIWRAG T « ¥
RTHA ERERE - TRIBEAGTH -

(D) 12t - EES A UHBRRIERS RNEF
MR MEORTE - M RFETH KA G
TR BHERERARE  RREEATH
BEEN  BRARESHIFATREFE
FREIRB AR AR MEIRE - WRBBRK
BRTEMIEFE T

BREMEREN RRRHBFREENBEEIAFL2EA
BERERIEFEER - HIREEME | -



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4 =R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
BXRER

The Company held two general meetings in 2012, details of which are set out
as follows:

The 2011 annual general meeting of the Company was held on 28 June 2012
at the Meeting Centre, Shanghai International Airport Hotel (&5 BB #4152
), 2550 Honggiao Road, Shanghai, the PRC. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 28 June 2012.

The 2012 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on
9 November 2012 at Shanghai International Airport Hotel (/852
), 2550 Honggiao Road, Shanghai, the PRC. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 9 November 2012.

Attendance of Directors at general meetings of the Company was as follows:

Directors

-

Liu Shaoyong
2R E

Ma Xulun
HEm

Xu Zhao

TRAB

Gu Jiadan
=S

Li Yangmin
FER
Tang Bing
BE

Luo Zhuping
ET
Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
BB

Wu Xiaogen
REER

Ji Weidong
TR
Shao Ruiging
BRIm
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MEETING OF THE BOARD

The Chairman leads the Board to ensure that the Board performs its various
duties effectively and he is responsible for drawing up the agenda of the
meeting of the Board and considering other matters that the other Directors
propose to be included in the agenda. The agenda together with documents
of the Board should be, as far as practicable, circulated at least 3 days prior
to the meeting of the Board or its specialized committees. The Chairman is
also obliged to ensure that all the Directors are suitably briefed on matters
to be raised in the meeting of the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Directors receive information that is accurate, timely and clear. Through on-
the-job training of Directors, continuous participation in meetings of the Board
and of specialized committees of the Board and meetings with key persons in
headquarters and other departments, the Directors are encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and their understanding of the Group.

The Company has established a specialised organisation, i.e. the secretariat of
the Board, to work for the Board. All the Directors have access to the service
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary periodically updates the
Board of the latest information on governance and regulatory matters. The
Directors may seek independent professional advice through the Chairman for
the purpose of performing their duties, with the cost borne by the Company.
Specialized committees may also seek professional advice. The Company
Secretary is responsible for the records of the Board meetings. These minutes
of meetings together with other related documents for the Board meetings
shall be made available to all members of the Board. Board meetings are
meant to enable the Directors to have open and frank discussions.

In order to ensure sound corporate governance, as at the date of the
announcement of this annual report, the Board had 4 committees in place:
Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nominations and Remuneration
Committee, Planning and Development Committee and Aviation Safety and
Environment Committee with their terms of reference drawn up in accordance
with the principles set out in the Code. The Company Secretary drafts the
minutes of meetings for these committees, and the committees report to the
Board.
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The Board held 13 meetings in 2012. Details of attendance of each Director at
the Board meetings were as follows:

Directors

=

Liu Shaoyong
]

Ma Xulun
S8R

Xu Zhao

TRAB

Gu Jiadan
=S

Li Yangmin
FER

Tang Bing
BE

Luo Zhuping
‘T
Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
BB

Wu Xiaogen
RER

Ji Weidong
TR

Shao Ruiging
BRIm

Note: Each Director attended the respective Board meetings in person.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

All the Directors shall declare to the Board upon their first appointment their
capacities as directors or any other positions held in other companies or
institutions, the declaration of which shall be renewed once a year. When
the Board discusses any motion or transaction and considers any Director
has any conflict of interest, the Director shall declare his interest and abstain
from voting, and will excuse himself as appropriate. The Company shall,
pursuant to guidelines applicable to the Company, request from Directors their
confirmation if they or their associates are connected with any transactions
entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.
Material transactions which have been confirmed as having been entered into
with any connected person have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS of this annual report.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the securities transactions code for the Directors. Each of the
Directors and the Supervisors has been provided with a copy of the Model
Code upon his appointment.

All the Directors and the Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code in 2012.

The Company has also adopted the related provisions set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, and has established its Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees of the Company according to its own situation
and with reference to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. The aforesaid code of conduct shall apply to the conduct of dealings
in the securities of the Company by the Supervisors and members of senior
management of the Company.

In addition, pursuant to the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Stock on Shanghai Stock Exchange, the shares of the Company transferred
by each of the Directors, Supervisors and members of senior management of
the Company every year shall not exceed 25% of the total number of shares
held by each of them, and they are not allowed to purchase the shares of the
Company within six months after they have sold their shares. They are also not
allowed to sell the shares of the Company within six months after they have
bought the shares of the Company. Additionally, within six months after their
retirement, they are not allowed to transfer the shares of the Company held by
them.

All the employees who may have inside information related to the Group are
also required to comply with the Model Code. During the Reporting Period,
the Company is not aware of any breach of laws and regulations.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group.

The Auditor’s Report of the Company’s auditors in respect of the financial
statements is set out on page 88 to page 89 of this annual report.
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TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Content of development of skills and training

BRRENEIEERE

Participated in training on amendments to the Listing Rules and Corporate
Governance Codes in February 2012

RZZ——F=F 2 LmHRAREEERTRDNERT AR HE

On-site training conducted by Hong Kong securities partners of Baker &
McKenzie regarding amendments to the Listing Rules and case study
thereof in April 2012

RZZE—_FNA Bn EBRNEMNEBMEEESFEHERAT MR
A ERT AR SR BIEI TR 5155

Lecture on the basic concept and typical case study of the anti-corruption
laws of the United States by US securities partners of Baker & McKenzie
in April 2012

RZZE—_FNA AR EBRNEMEEMEEZESFEHEEAEKER
[RIE BUE IR B B A S A E R ZR

Participated in 4-day training on independent directors qualification
organized by the Shanghai Stock Exchange, covering a total of 7 areas
of operation framework and information disclosure of a listed company, in
April 2012

RZB——FMA - 2 LEBFRFABMOSPARNBELEFERE
Fl - HF R EHAREEERERG SHESTPIRIZ

Provided the book “Corporate Governance — An Obstacle Impossible to
Overcome for Entrepreneur (R FAIE — —B 1 EFBTBAIR)” to all the
Directors, Supervisors and members of the senior management for study
in June 2012

RZZE—ZFRA  ARARMKAFIRE - —ErERETBNR)—F
HEARR2BES  EERGREEAEEE

Participated in training for directors and supervisors organized by the
Association of Shanghai Listed Companies in September 2012
RZB——FAA 2NEEETRARHSERNES - BFE

Participated in training for directors and supervisors organized by the
Association of Shanghai Listed Companies in December 2012
RZB—"F+-F 2NMELTARGERRNES - BRIE

The board secretariat of the Company is responsible to arrange and review
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and the
members of the senior management of the Company.
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Directors participated

SmMES

Liu Shaoyong, Ma Xulun, Xu Zhao, Gu Jiadan, Li
Yangmin, Tang Bing, Luo Zhuping, Sandy Ke-Yaw
Liu, Wu Xiaogen, Ji Weidong, Shao Ruiging

BIRE - BER - RE - BES - FER BE-
BT - BIE - RER - FHE - BMmE

Liu Shaoyong, Ma Xulun, Xu Zhao, Gu Jiadan, Li
Yangmin, Tang Bing, Luo Zhuping, Sandy Ke-Yaw
Liu, Wu Xiaogen, Ji Weidong, Shao Ruiging

BIRE - BER 7@ BES - FER CBE-
BT - BIE - RER - FHE - BMmE

Liu Shaoyong, Ma Xulun, Xu Zhao, Gu Jiadan, Li
Yangmin, Tang Bing, Luo Zhuping, Sandy Ke-Yaw
Liu, Wu Xiaogen, Ji Weidong, Shao Ruiging

BIRE - BER 7@ BES - FER CBE-
BT - BIE - RER - FHE - BMmE

Luo Zhuping

BERF

Liu Shaoyong, Ma Xulun, Xu Zhao, Gu Jiadan, Li
Yangmin, Tang Bing, Luo Zhuping, Sandy Ke-Yaw
Liu, Wu Xiaogen, Ji Weidong, Shao Ruiging

2HE - BER 1B BERN  FER BX
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Xu Zhao, Gu Jiadan
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Luo Zhuping
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2012, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Company comprises Mr. Shao Ruiging, Mr. Wu Xiaogen and Mr. Ji Weidong,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Shao Ruiging,
the chairman of the committee, possesses professional qualifications in
accounting.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a specialized committee under
the Board. It is responsible for checking and monitoring the financial reports
and internal control of the Company, checking and evaluating the overall risk
management of the Company, in particular the risk management and risk
control policy for material decision, significant events and major business, and
overseeing their implementation.

(1) INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal control system

The Board shall be responsible for the overall internal control system
of the Company/Group and periodically review the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company through the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. The internal control system is essential to risk
management which, in turn, is important in ensuring that operational
objectives can be achieved. Internal control procedures are designed
to prevent assets from unauthorised use or disposal, to ensure the
maintenance of appropriate accounting records and to provide reliable
financial information either for internal use or for dissemination externally.
However, the control procedures aim at reasonably (but not absolutely)
assuring that there will not be material misrepresentation, loss or
misconduct. The internal control system is prepared in accordance with
the relevant laws, subsidiary regulations and constitutional documents.

The Company reviews the effectiveness of its internal control system
annually, which includes control over finance, operations, compliance
with laws and regulations as well as risk management. The results of
the review have been reported to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board.

The Board confirms that the Company has systems and procedures
in place to identify, manage and report material risks in the course of
achieving its strategic objectives. The Board continues to monitor risks
with the support of the specialised committees and senior management.

(2) INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s internal audit department is responsible for conducting
an independent audit of whether or not the internal control system
is sufficient and effective. The auditing plan is prepared using a risk
based approach and is discussed and finalized by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee annually. Other than the pre-determined scope
of work for each year, the department is also required to conduct other
specific audits.
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The Group’s internal audit department primarily reports to the President;
it may also report directly to the chairman of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. All the internal audit reports are delivered to
the Chairman of the Board, the President, Chief Financial Officer, the
management of the department being audited and related departments.
The outcome of each audit, in summary, will also be discussed with
the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The Board and the Audit
and Risk Management Committee of the Company actively monitor
the number and seriousness of the inspection results submitted by the
internal audit department, and the relevant corrective measures taken by
the relevant department.

(3) RISK MANAGEMENT

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company is
responsible for checking and evaluating the overall risk management
of the Company and overseeing their implementation; checking and
evaluating the risk management and risk control system and duties on
developing aviation fuel, foreign exchange and interest rate hedging
businesses and overseeing their implementation.

The internal audit department of the Company has undertaken
related risk management duties and reports to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee periodically. It is responsible for coordinating
the implementation of appropriate procedures to manage the operational
risks of the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held eight meetings in 2012. In
each meeting, senior management and external and internal auditors were
invited to attend. Based on the reports of the external and internal auditors,
according to the accounting principles and practices, and internal controls
adopted by the Group with a view to comply with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, the Audit and Risk Management Committee conducted reviews
of audits, internal control, risk management and financial statements. The
Group’s first quarterly results, interim results and third quarterly results for
2012 and the final results for 2012 had been discussed in the Audit and Risk
Management Committee’s meetings before they were submitted to the Board
for approval.

Attendance of members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meetings is as follows:

Members
=8

Shao Ruiging
BRIR B

Wu Xiaogen
REBER

Ji Weidong

FER

Note: All members of Audit and Risk Management Committee attended the respective
Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings in person.
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Additionally, the Audit and Risk Management Committee also conducted
other compliance work to comply with PRC and US reporting requirements in
2012, including guiding and overseeing the development of internal controls,
hearing and reviewing the overall plan for risk management, implementing
risk management work in accordance with the requirements of the relevant
regulatory authorities in full scale, reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and considering the work undertaken by the
management, including management assessment, to ensure the Company’s
compliance with internal control regulations under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

The articles of association of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is
posted on the website of the Company and the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the Reporting Period, the annual audit fees payable to the external auditors
(both international and domestic auditors) is estimated to be RMB12.88
million for the regular annual audit of the Group’s 2012 financial statements
prepared under IFRS and PRC Accounting Standards and the other relevant
documents applicable for the purpose of Annual Report in Form 20-F filing.
A service fee of RMB1.5 million is also payable to the external auditors for
approved non-audit services rendered during the Reporting Period. The
auditors’ remuneration shall be approved by the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee obtained a brief understanding of
the scope of the non-audit service and related fees and was satisfied that the
non-audit service (in respect of the nature of service and the total cost of non-
regular audit services compared to regular audit service fee) had not affected
the independence of the accounting firm.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

As of 31 December 2012, the Planning and Development Committee of the
Company comprises three members: Mr. Li Yangmin, Mr. Luo Zhuping and
Mr. Shao Ruiging, all of whom are Directors. Mr. Li Yangmin, a Director, is the
chairman of the committee.

The Planning and Development Committee is a specialized committee under
the Board. It is responsible for studying, considering and making plans or
recommendation in regard to the long term development plans and material
investment decisions of the Company and overseeing their implementation. Its
main duties are:

- to consider the annual operational goals of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board;

- to consider the annual investment proposal of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board;
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= to consider the material investments (other than the annual investment =

proposal) of the Company and make recommendations to the Board;

= to consider the development plan of the Company and make  —

recommendations to the Board;

- to study and consider the fleet development plan and aircraft purchase =

plan of the Company and submit independent report to the Board;

= to study other major events which may have influence on the =

development of the Company and make recommendations in
connection with the same;

= to oversee the implementation of the above matters and conduct =

inspection of the same;

- to consider other matters as authorized by the Board and oversee their =

implementation.

BRARAFERETRIMEARESTE 1A
EFgRNER

FHALRBRAL  TAEFRIRLESE
FENBHAD ARG ER BB E - L
EFRRTBURE
HRMPEARNEROEATRETHRLRY
%

BEU EEEONTER - DHN L FROEICH
iR

EREFERENEMEIR  UEBHEE -

Attendance of members of the Planning and Development Committee & ZEHFEHIABREZEeSZHNEFEBRNOT ¢

meetings is as follows:

Members

z8

Li Yangmin
FER

Luo Zhuping
ET

Shao Ruiging
BRIm

Attendance/
Eligibility Attendance
of Meetings rate
HERSE,
PEHFEIR B HREE
77 100%
77 100%
77 100%

Note: All members of Planning and Development Committee attended the respective s AR ELZEeREEHHRSEEREREREZEeS

Planning and Development Committee meetings in person.

3

The Detailed Working Rules for the Planning and Development Committee are  #RE|ZEEZ 8 € T EMMAISHA AR BI48HE -

posted on the website of the Company.

73



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MU A N

TEER

NOMINATIONS AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board comprises three
members: Liu Shaoyong, Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu and Ji Weidong. Liu Shaoyong
is the chairman of the committee (Note), while both Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu and Ji
Weidong are independent non-executive Directors.

Note: With effect from 1 April 2012, when considering and approving nomination related
matters, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall be chaired by Mr.
Liu Shaoyong; when considering and approving remuneration related matters, the
Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall be chaired by Mr. Sandy Ke-Yaw
Liu or Mr. Ji Weidong.

The main duties of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the
Board are:

- to make recommendations to the Board regarding its size and
composition based on the relevant provisions of the Company Law and
in the light of specific circumstances such as the characteristics of the
Company’s equity structure;

- to study the criteria and procedures for selecting Directors and
management personnel, and to make recommendations to the Board;

- to conduct wide-ranging searches for qualified candidates to become
Directors and members of the management personnel;

- to examine the candidates for the positions of Director and manager and
make recommendations in connection with the same;

- to examine candidates for other senior management positions
whose engagement is subject to approval by the Board and make
recommendations in connection with the same;

- to study and review the policies and plans for remuneration of the
Directors and senior management personnel;

- to study the criteria for assessing the Directors and senior management
personnel, carry out such assessments, and make recommendations in
connection with the same;

- to evaluate the performance of the Directors and senior management
personnel based on the Company’s actual business circumstances, and

make recommendations in connection with the same;

- to be responsible for monitoring the implementation of the Company’s
remuneration system;

- other matters delegated by the Board.
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible to make

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and the members of the Senior Management.
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In 2012, under the leadership of the Board, the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee performed their duties diligently to standardize the
election of Directors and members of senior management of the Company,
establish and refine the incentive and assessment mechanism of Directors and
members of senior management of the Company and realize the long-term
goals of the Company pursuant to the requirements of the “Detailed Working
Rules for the Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board of
Directors”. Major tasks completed by the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee in 2012 were as follows:

1)

2)

3)

Standardizing the election of Directors and
members of senior management and nominating
candidates to become Directors and members of
senior management to the Board

In 2012, pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Detailed Working
Rules for the Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board of
Directors, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, after review
and study, nominated Mr. Tang Bing to the Board as a candidate for
Director of the sixth session of the Board. Also, according to the actual
work needs of the Company, the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee, after review and study, nominated Mr. Wang Jian to the
Board as a candidate for Board Secretary and Company Secretary of
the Company.

Guiding and considering the share incentive plan of
the Company

In order to establish a long-term incentive mechanism which is closely
linked to the results and the long-term strategy of the Company, as
well as optimize the overall remuneration structure and system of the
senior management personnel and key management personnel of the
Company, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee held three
meetings in 2012 to listen to the specific presentation on the share
incentive plan of the Company, and actively studied and considered
the share incentive plan in a timely manner. With the coordination and
efforts in the earlier stages, the plan was officially approved by SASAC
in October 2012. The resolution was approved by a majority vote at the
Company’s general meeting held on 9 November 2012 and the initial
grant was completed on 30 November 2012.

Revising and considering the Detailed Working
Rules for the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee

According to the requirements of the new amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in 2012, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee
revised and considered the Detailed Working Rules for the Nominations
and Remuneration Committee based on its actual working conditions.
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4) Considering the remuneration of the Directors and
members of senior management for year 2011

The members of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee
seriously reviewed the remuneration of the Company’s paid Directors
and members of senior management for year 2011 and have requested
the Company to make disclosure in its 2011 annual report in accordance
with the relevant requirements.

According to the Detailed Working Rules for the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors, the procedure for electing
Directors and management personnel is as follows:

(1) the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall actively liaise with
the relevant departments of the Company to study the requirement for
Directors and management personnel, and produce a written document
thereon;

(2) the Nominations and Remuneration Committee may conduct a wide-
ranging search for candidates for the positions of Director and manager
within the Company, within enterprises controlled by the Company or
within enterprises in which the Company holds equity, and on the human
resources market;

(8) the profession, academic qualifications, professional titles, detailed work
experience and all concurrently held positions of the initial candidates
shall be compiled as a written document;

(4)  the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall listen fully to the
opinion of the nominee regarding his/her nomination;

(6) a meeting of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall
be convened, and the qualifications of the initial candidates shall be
examined on the basis of the conditions for appointment of Directors
and managers;

(6) before the selection of a new Director and the engagement of a new
member of the management personnel, the recommendations of and
relevant information on the relevant candidate(s) shall be submitted to
the Board;

(7)  the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall carry out other
follow-up tasks based on the decisions of and feedback from the Board.
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Attendance of members of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

Members
£8

Liu Shaoyong
2288

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
Bl E

Ji Weidong
TR

Note: All members of Nominations and Remuneration Committee attended the
respective Nominations and Remuneration Committee meetings in person.

The Detailed Working Rules for the Nominations and Remuneration Committee
are posted on the website of the Company and the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS

Directors generally do not receive remuneration from the Company except
independent non-executive Directors who receive a fixed remuneration.
However, Directors who serve in other administrative positions of the
Company will receive salary separately for those positions.

Certain Directors received emoluments from CEA Holding, the parent
company, in respect of their directorship or senior management positions in
the Company and its subsidiaries.

Generally, the policy regarding the remuneration packages of Directors are
aimed primarily at linking the remuneration of Directors and their performance
to the objectives of the Company, in order to motivate them in their
performance and retain them. Pursuant to the policy, the Directors are not
allowed to approve their own remuneration.

The remuneration of the Directors mainly comprises basic salary and bonus.
BASIC SALARY

The Directors review the basic salary of each Director on an annual basis
pursuant to the remuneration policy of the Company. In 2012, pursuant to
the service contracts entered into between the Company and each of the
Directors, the Directors are entitled to receive a fixed basic salary.

BONUS

Bonuses are calculated based on the measurable performance and
contribution of the operating units for which the Directors are responsible.
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Remuneration (before tax) received by the Company’s independent non-
executive Directors in 2012 were as follows:

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu

25

Wu Xiaogen
RIEER

Ji Weidong
FHR

Shao Ruiging
BRIm

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior management of the

Company in 2012 are set out as follows:

CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

B IFNITE S 2 B

RRABLIFATESZ T —FEERO & (S

) :

AN
v

S EE A B H B

TR

HK$120,000
75#120,000

0

0
RMB120,000
AE#120,000
RMB120,000
AE#120,000

AATSRERAR =B FENHENT -

FifRE

Name Position
i o
Ma Xulun Vice Chairman, President
Yl BlESR - K8
Li Yangmin Director, Vice President
FER EE - BlagsE
Tang Bing Director, Vice President
BE EE - BlagsE
Shu Mingjiang Vice President
ETEAIT BliassE
Wu Yongliang Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
RAKR Bl4RAEIE - WTS4REE
Tian Liuwen Vice President
X BliassE
Wang Jian Board Secretary, Joint Company Secretary
pas e EFEWE BREATMWE
Notes:
1. Mr. Shu Mingjiang, our Vice President, is a pilot. His remuneration includes air

crewman packages.

2. Mr. Wang Jian, was appointed as our Board Secretary and Joint Company
Secretary from April 2012. His remuneration covers period from April 2012 to

December 2012.
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before tax
AT EA
(RMB)
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696,500
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592,025
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AVIATION SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT
COMMITTEE

The Aviation Safety and Environment Committee comprises Mr. Ma Xulun,
Mr. Li Yangmin and Mr. Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu, and Mr. Ma Xulun serves as the
chairman of the committee.

The Aviation Safety and Environment Committee is a specialized committee
under the Board. It is responsible for consistent implementation of the
relevant laws and regulations of national aviation safety and environmental
protection, examining and overseeing the aviation safety management of the
Company, studying, considering and making recommendation on aviation
safety plans and major issues of the related safety duties and overseeing their
implementation, studying, considering and making recommendation on major
environmental protection issues in relation to aviation carbon emission on
domestic and international levels and overseeing their implementation.

Attendance of members of the Aviation Safety and Environment Committee
meetings are as follows:

Members

z8

Ma Xulun

Hafm
L| Yangmin
FER
Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
252 B

The Detailed Working Rules for the Aviation Safety and Environment
Committee are posted on the website of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company undertakes that the disclosure it makes is fair and the reports
it provides are comprehensive and transparent. The ultimate responsibility of
the Chairman of the Board is to ensure effective communication with investors
and to ensure that the Board is aware of the views of substantial shareholders.
Accordingly, the Chairman is required to meet the Shareholders in this regard
and the routine communication of the Board with the substantial shareholders is
mainly conducted through the Company Secretary.

The Company has drawn up and implemented the Information Disclosure
Management System and has further improved the Company’s information
disclosure system in order to ensure the accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of information disclosed to public; the Company has also
established an information disclosure office for which the Company Secretary
is responsible. The information disclosure office is mainly responsible for
the collection, collation and compilation of basic information for disclosure,
and is also responsible for drawing up the rules and systems for information
disclosure and related internal control and procedures. It is responsible for
monitoring the correct implementation of the various control measures.

The Company has also drawn up and implemented the Investor Relations
Management System and Investor Relations Management Detailed
Implementation Rules, which specifies the basic principles and the institutional
structure of investor relations management, as well as the duties and
responsibilities of investor relations work, so as to further foster corporate
integrity and self-discipline, and to realize standardized operation, with the
ultimate aim of maximizing corporate value and Shareholders’ interests, and
ensuring that interests of investors are protected.

The Company has released information in relation to its quarterly results.
The latest annual general meeting was held on 29 June 2012 in Shanghai.
The meeting was open to all the Shareholders and the media. A total of 13
Shareholders attended in person or by proxy.

In the annual general meeting, each matter was proposed as an individual
resolution and voted by poll.

Investors and the public may access our website and download related
document briefings. The website also sets out details of each of the Group’s
operations. Announcements, notices or other documents issued by the
Company may also be downloaded from the website of the Company.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Please refer to section headed “Report of Directors — Significant Events” of
the annual report for details of the amendments of the Articles of Association
made in 2012.

The Company Secretary and the managers of the investor relations department
and the capital investment market department held two specialized meetings
with securities analysts in respect of the 2011 annual financial results and the
2012 interim financial results and one press conference with financial media
and organized 16 one-to-one roadshows and investors’ meetings.
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Based on publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company is
held by the public. As at 31 December 2012, there were a total of 250,268
Shareholders on the Company’s register of members.

For any enquiries of the Board, Shareholders may contact the Company
Secretary by phone at 8621-22330928, 22330921 or by e-mail at
ir@ceair.com or they may put forward their questions in the annual general
meeting or extraordinary general meetings. In respect of the procedures for
Shareholders to convene annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meetings and propose resolutions, they may enquire with the Company
Secretary through the aforesaid channels.

Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary or Representative
of the Company’s securities affairs to inspect the relevant information and
propose extraordinary resolutions at the contact given below:

Board Secretary,
Joint Company Secretary
EZSUE HWELTANE

Name Wang Jian

G EfE

Address The Secretariat of the Board, China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited, 92 Konggang 3rd Road,
Changning District, Shanghai

HEEE - AT REREE =2 R BIR S MRS
ERAFEEFSGWER

Telephone 021-22330928

Fax 021-62686116

=

Email ir@ceair.com

BEFEM

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shaoyong
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
26 March 2013
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Representative of
the Company’s securities affairs
BHEBEHERE

Yang Hui

oy

The Secretariat of the Board, China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited, 92 Konggang 3rd Road,
Changning District, Shanghai
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Dear Shareholders,

In the new year, the Supervisory Committee will, as in the past, conscientiously
exercise the powers bestowed upon it by the Articles of Association and
perform corresponding obligations, further strengthen its supervision of the
Company’s financial affairs and ensure compliant business practices. It will
continue to explore a monitoring and control mechanism which is useful in
protecting the investors and promoting the Company’s development.

l. Meetings Convened by the Supervisory Committee

1. On 28 March 2012, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at
which it adopted the Report of the Supervisory Committee for the year
2011; the Supervisory Committee considered the financial report of
the Company for the year 2011 truly reflected the financial position and
operating results of the Company which was objective and fair, and
resolved that it would be put forward to the 2011 annual general meeting
of the Company for consideration; the Supervisory Committee adopted
the 2011 profit distribution proposal of the Company, and resolved
that it would be put forward to the 2011 annual general meeting of
the Company for consideration; the Supervisory Committee reviewed
the full text and summary of the annual report for 2011 prepared by
the Company and expressed a written audit opinion. Meanwhile, the
Supervisory Committee reviewed the resolution on the day-to-day
connected transactions of the Company for the year 2011 and the self-
assessment report on the internal control of the Company for the year
2011;

2. On 26 April 2012, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at which it
reviewed the full text and summary of the Company’s 2012 first quarterly
report and expressed a written audit opinion;

3.  On 25 August 2012, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at
which it considered and approved the Opinion on the List of Incentive
Recipients of Initial Grant Scheme of the H Shares Appreciation Rights
Scheme of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (77 B2 /5 i 2= fi%
AR AFHRRRIEERE SR TR R 2 ERZEER) and
expressed an audit opinion;

4. On 30 August 2012, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at
which it reviewed the 2012 interim financial report, full text and summary
of the Company’s interim report for 2012 and expressed a written audit
opinion;

5. On 11 September 2012, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at
which it considered and approved the Resolution on the Description of
Use of Proceeds of the Previous Fund-Raising Activities (B BlX &%
B4 ERIERA R EE) and expressed an audit opinion;

6. On 30 October 2012, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at

which it reviewed the full text and summary of the Company’s 2012 third
quarterly report and expressed a written audit opinion.
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Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee
Legality of the Operation of the Company:

In 2012, the Supervisory Committee monitored the procedures of
convening the general meetings and Board meetings of the Company
and their resolutions, execution of the resolutions passed in the general
meetings by the Board, and execution of the resolutions passed in the
Board meetings by the management. It is of the view that the Company
has strictly complied with the Company Law, the Securities Law, the
Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Articles of Association and other regulations in
drawing operational decisions, monitored its operations based on law,
continuously optimized the internal control system and further enhanced
its corporate governance standards. The Directors and the senior
management of the Company were able to protect the interests of the
Shareholders and the Company as a whole and carry out their duties
with dedication. The Supervisory Committee did not discover any of
their actions that in any way violated laws, regulations, or the Articles of
Association or were prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

Financial Position of the Company:

The Supervisory Committee seriously reviewed the Company’s 2012
financial report, 2012 profit distribution proposal, 2012 annual report
and the 2012 financial audit report issued by the PRC and international
auditors expressing unqualified opinions. The Supervisory Committee
resolved that the Company’s 2012 financial report truly reflects the
financial position and operating results of the Company for the year
2012. The Supervisory Committee agreed to the 2012 financial audit
report issued by the auditors and the 2012 profit distribution proposal of
the Company.

Purchases or Sale of Assets of the Company:

In 2012, the Supervisory Committee conducted examination on the
resolutions in respect of major acquisitions, asset disposal and connect
transactions. The Supervisory Committee did not discover any acts of
insider trading, any acts prejudicial to the interests of the Shareholders or
resulting in loss of assets or prejudice to the interests of the Company.
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4.  Connected Transactions of the Company:

In 2012, the Supervisory Committee conducted examination on the
resolutions in respect of the connected transactions of the Company.
The Supervisory Committee conducted examinations on all the
connected transactions of the Company in the current year, and believes
that all the contracts, agreements and other relevant documents related
to the connected transactions of the Company in the current year had
complied with the legal procedures and the terms of the transactions
were fair and reasonable to the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. The connected transactions were dealt with under stringent
principles of “fairness, impartiality and transparency”. The Supervisory
Committee did not discover any acts of insider trading or breach of
good faith by the Board in making decisions, signing agreements and
information disclosure.

5. Internal Control of the Company:

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the Assessment Report of the
Company’s Internal Control for the year 2012 in a prudent and cautious
manner and has no objection with the self-assessment report of the
Board. The Supervisory Committee also seriously reviewed the internal
control audit report issued by the auditor. The Supervisory Committee
considers that the Company has a developed internal control regulation
system in place and the implementation in actual circumstances is
satisfactory.

The Supervisory Committee is extremely grateful for the continuous support

for its work offered by all the Shareholders, the Board and its staff.

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee

Yu Faming
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, the PRC
26 March 2013
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group adhered to the philosophy of “cherished by staff, preferred by
customers, satisfactory to shareholders and trusted by society” for its social
responsibility. While pursuing sustainable development of enterprise, the
Group incorporates its social responsibility philosophy into the whole process
of corporate decision and production operation, with a view to unify corporate
development and social responsibilities.

LOW-CARBON FLYING

The Group advocate the idea of low-carbon flying and initiate an operational
mode of “Consuming and emitting less but performing more efficiently” to
establish an environmentally friendly and resource conservative enterprise, and
achieve harmonious development of the enterprise, the environment and the
community. Jet fuel consumption accounted for more than 98% of the energy
consumption of the Group. More than 90% of the Group’s flights undergo
refueling and flying in accordance with the “low-carbon flying” scheme. “Low-
carbon flying” is implemented via standardized and regulated management.
Fuel consumption and carbon emission are lowered through approaches such
as system restrictions, procedural enhancement and technological innovation.

Optimization of Fleet

The Group strives to enhance the environmental protection functionality of
its operating fleet by eliminating and surrendering the lease of old aircraft
and introducing high performance and environmental friendly aircraft on an
annual basis. The Group also adopted new engines with higher fuel efficiency
but lower noise pollution and refitted its existing fleet. In 2012, the Group
disposed five A340-300 aircraft which have higher fuel consumption per hour
and entered into purchase agreement of twenty B777-300ER aircraft and
sixty A320 aircraft as well as disposal agreement of eighteen regional aircraft.
Meanwhile, additional winglets were installed in twelve B737NG aircraft to
save fuels.

Optimization of Routes

The Company strengthened its control and management over the DOC (Direct
Operation Control) system, facilitated precise refueling according to flight plans
and stringently implemented cost-saving flight control requirement and weight
and balance operation. The Group also reduced the flying time of flights and
thus effectively lowered fuel consumption by selecting the most economical
route. The Group saved 67,000 tons of jet fuel in 2012.

APPLICATION OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES

Emphasizing and promoting the application of new technologies are important
measures adopted by the Group to achieve continuous flight safety, ensure
regular flights and realise low carbon flying.
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¢ PBN (Performance-based Navigation Technology Flying Program)

The application of PBN technology is an important reform of the flight
operation. It can effectively facilitate the continuous safety of the civil aviation,
increase airspace capacities, decrease input of ground navigation facilities,
decrease fuel consumption and increase energy saving and emission
reduction. In 2012, the Group has completed the verification of trail flying of
PBN program in 9 airports, namely Yangzhou, Nantong, Kunming, Zhoushan,
Ningpo, Yulin, Linyi, Hangzhou and Xining, thereby establishing operation
capacities of RNP APCH (Approach) for A330, A320 and B737NG aircrafts
at those airports; and established operation capacities of RNP AR (required
navigation functionality which require specific authorization) for B737-700 and
A319-133 aircraft at Jiuzhai Airport.

e ADS-B (Air Traffic Control and Surveillance Technology - Automatic
Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast)

CEA is the pilot unit that is appointed by CAAC to operate with ADS-B
(Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast) in the early stage. The ADS-B
operation verification of trail flying of A340-600 aircraft in the airspace of
Hudson Bay, Canada has been completed and approved by CAAC in 2011.
In 2012, CEA has successfully completed the ADS-B verification of trial flying
of its A330 aircraft along the Hawaii routes. With the application of ADS-B, the
workload of the flight crew and fuel consumption would decrease while the
flying capacity would increase, providing better assurance of flight safety.

e EFB (Electronic Flight Bag)

On 26 December, CEA was approved to implement Class 1 EFB trial flying
for its A330 fleet, which is the first airline being approved to adopt Class 1
EFB in China. EFB is an electronic equipment which provide the flight crew
various types of flight information including manuals, documents, flight
maps, navigation notices and climatological data in the aircraft cockpit.
The promotion and application of EFB can realise electronisation of aircraft
information, thereby reducing operation cost, increasing operation efficiency
and enhancing the level of safety operation.

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

The Group continued to promote energy saving and emission reduction.
Capacities has increased year by year while fuel consumption per traffic
volume has decreased year by year, resulting in a decrease in energy
consumption intensity and an increase in energy utilization rate every year.
In 2012, the carbon dioxide emission reduced by 225,000 tons through the
implementation of various energy saving and emission reduction measures.

GREEN OFFICE

The Group actively promotes the application of the internet office system
and advocates the concept of a paperless office. The energy consumption at
ground facilities is also reduced by promoting energy-saving measures, such
as video conferencing and telephone conferencing, double-sided printing and
“turning off lights as you leave”, and through other measures such as the oil-
to-gas boiler conversion project, central air-conditioning refitting project and
energy-saving lighting refitting project. Meanwhile, traveler rest card of upper
class cabins have been canceled at Terminal T2 of Honggiao International
Airport. Eligible travelers may take rest in the VIP lounges directly with their
boarding pass, thereby reducing waste of resources resulted from printing of
the rest cards.
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COMMUNITY CHARITY

The Group proactively supported and participated in social charitable events.
During 2012, the Group continuously strengthened its effort in supporting
poverty relief activities, including providing a special subsidy for Shuangjiang
and Cangyuan, Yunnan and selecting two young talented individuals for
secondment to develop their experience in these regions. Over the past ten
years, the aggregate amount of subsidies given to Yunnan has exceeded
RMB10 million.

Meanwhile, the Group continued its large-scale voluntary service campaign
called “Love at China Eastern”. In 2012, 693 activities were held with 55,609
staff members participated, serving a total of over 34,000 people. Activities
which have brought about great impact on the society included “LingYan Crew
bring you back to Wenchuan County (Z84s A& #3)1])”, “China Eastern
Airlines Provides Study Subsidy to Children in Lincang, Yunnan to fulfill their
dreams (ElZB)EeE/mERR T EE R /). The Company has engaged nine
university students from Hong Kong to join our internship program, reinforcing
exchange between young talented individuals in Hong Kong and Mainland
China.

KEY AWARDS IN 2012

The Company was awarded the “Golden Tripod Award”, the highest award, at
the 8th Annual Meeting of China’s Securities Market.

The Company was awarded the “Golden Bauhinia Award” of “Listed Company
with the Most Valuable Brand 2012 (& &M E(EE_ET A 712012)" by China
Securities.

The Company was awarded “2012 Best Mid-cap Company of the Best Managed
Company in China” by Hong Kong Asiamoney Magazine.

The Company was recognized as “Top 50 Most Valuable Chinese Brands” by
WPP, a global brand communication and public relations firm, for consecutive
two years, ranking 25th in 2012.

The Company was recognized as one of the 2012 Top 25 Companies in
China with the Best Corporate Social Responsibility (1> #4t & ST HE1T
1%2558) by Fortune China Magazine; and was named 2013 CSR Ranking
Top 10.

The Company was named “2012 China State-owned Listed Enterprise
Social Responsibility Top 20 (2012FFEEA bt & & T12038)” by
Southern Weekly.

The Company was named “The Best Board of Directors of State-owned Listed
Holding Companies of China Top 20 ({3 FHA BREEE©2058)
by various major financial media, including Moneyweek.

The Company was named as “Healthy China — Best Employee Health & Benefit
Unit (@R Bl & E 8 TiEEEFIEA)” by Health Times (@ #R) and
Tsinghua University.

The Company was named as “Internal Audit Leading Enterprises in terms of
Risk Management and Internal Audit (k& & I8 8L #2821 5 B N 2P 25148
F > 2) by China Institute of Internal Audit.

The Company was named as “Best 100 Employer (S{={& 3 1003%)” by Zhilian
Zhaopin (' EHEEE).

The Company was awarded “The World’s Most Improved Airline” by SKYTRAX.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BN E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 208, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AN RS

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Bt RER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
——HE+ZA=t+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —

2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE ARETR ARETT
Revenues A 5 85,253,317 82,403,130
Other operating income Hib& 2 A 6 1,719,626 1,061,451
Operating expenses BETH
Aircraft fuel TR (29,871,506) (29,229,011)
Gain on fair value movements of derivatives TETEAREE
financial instruments SEULES 8 24,831 86,851
Take-off and landing charges FROME RE P B2 (9,065,649) (8,350,181)
Depreciation and amortisation PrE R (7,556,910) (6,965,570)
Wages, salaries and benefits I8 HakEH 9 (10,059,043) (8,664,854)
Aircraft maintenance U e (4,432,741) (4,405,900)
Impairment reversals/(charges) BEMEED (1BX) 10 13,467 (638,316)
Food and beverages MZEEREE (2,031,425) (2,022,367)
Aircraft operating lease rentals RS EHERS (4,438,169) (4,128,420)
Other operating lease rentals HEmee e HER S (609,111) (491,901)
Selling and marketing expenses HERTHER (8,727,437) (3,739,682)
Civil aviation infrastructure levies RMEMRGEERES (1,414,457) (1,321,373)
Ground services and other charges RIS N it E A (594,057) (567,552)
Office, administrative and other expenses W BEEREMER (8,982,628) (8,853,751)
Total operating expenses BESHAE (82,744,835) (79,292,027)
Operating profit R 11 4,228,108 4,172,554
Share of results of associates B(ERE N RS 23 103,209 75,435
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BEAENREE 24 29,960 31,437
Finance income BIRSHA 12 348,601 2,024,002
Finance costs sl 13 (1,697,474) (1,462,727)
Profit before income tax i B A58 3,012,404 4,840,701
Income tax fRIE 14 (204,801) (264,229)
Profit for the year FERHE 2,807,603 4,576,472
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHMERE (FER) WE
for the year
Cash flow hedges, net of tax ium%ﬁﬁﬁ HEREIR 40 (9,211) (132,446)
Fair value movements of available-for-sale HEESREEZ
investments /& REEEZH (389) 486
Fair value movements of available-for-sale BEmE AR R HEES
investments held by an associate BEZANEBEZS 23 2,188 (2,701)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEAZEWNE 2,800,191 4,441,811
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
PN RN
SR E s R

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 8l 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B s AR¥ T ARET T
Profit attributable to: FEFANERBR :
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREREFREE 2,953,645 4,575,732
Non-controlling interests FEP2R | M A 2 (146,042) 740
2,807,603 4,576,472
Total comprehensive income FEASSKRZEBR :
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARRIERIEEE 2,946,271 4,441,071
Non-controlling interests FEIE ) A 2 (146,080) 740
2,800,191 4,441,811
Earnings per share attributable to the FEARDFAERFEE
equity shareholders of the Company iR ST €
during the year
Basic and diluted (RMB) EAXAREE(ARE) 17 0.26 0.41
The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements.  2599E % 5208 B A M7t A& 81 75 Rk KB AE I -
2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%T R ARETT
Dividends R& A 15 - _
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED $EEHFMERHERLD
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEEAEBR
(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
As at 31 December 2012 R=T——F+=A=+—H
2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE ARETR ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets B EE 18 11,449,099 11,353,590
Property, plant and equipment YIS - IR R tE 19 82,518,761 73,757,795
Lease prepayments FEHEER 20 1,781,846 1,471,272
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft — FREETEFF 21 11,894,891 10,968,344
Investments in associates BN R T 23 833,472 837,589
Investments in jointly controlled entities ?x BEREE AT 24 418,159 423,256
Available-for-sale financial assets HEECRMEE 234,690 240,380
Other long-term assets ﬁﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁﬂ BE 25 1,958,256 1,929,834
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 37 54,561 44,418
Derivative assets MHEERE 40 = 4,365
111,143,735 101,030,843
Current assets RENEE
Flight equipment spare parts TR R 26 2,087,978 1,555,544
Trade receivables FEW AR 27 2,962,181 2,504,026
Prepayments and other receivables SENE e LN 28 3,368,648 2,410,895
Derivative assets PTEERE 40 18,074 =
Restricted bank deposits and short-term PR &l R 1T R R RE
bank deposits SFITIEER 29 1,726,251 2,894,287
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 30 2,511,696 3,860,973
Assets held for sale FEGEEE 44 - 482,313
12,674,828 13,708,038
Current liabilities REEE
Sales in advance of carriage FHEER 3,094,427 3,197,649
Trade payables and notes payable R BRFR N B 2= 31 3,075,325 2,692,624
Other payables and accrued expenses HibEM R R TEIRE B 32 16,256,225 16,267,287
Current portion of obligations under REAEBENREE D
finance leases 88 2,605,269 2,459,259
Current portion of borrowings (EENEobinE2E e 34 22,639,955 18,171,130
Income tax payable R FR TR 181,788 172,319
Current portion of provision for return KETHETRIMIE EXEM
condition checks for aircraft under KM EIEE D
operating leases 86 734,205 375,409
Derivative liabilities TEaRE 40 35,813 51,063
48,623,007 43,386,740
Net current liabilities BRBAMS (35,948,179) (29,678,702)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABDERS 75,195,556 71,352,141
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

aHEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 8l 4R 3L )

As at 31 December 2012 R=T——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo=E AR¥ T ARET T
Non-current liabilities FkRBAE
Obligations under finance leases MEHERE 33 19,252,709 17,801,563
Borrowings fETx 34 23,096,163 23,603,463
Provision for return condition checks EETHE TR
for aircraft under operating leases RIS ERE 35 3,064,557 2,923,717
Other long-term liabilities HEmRAEE 36 1,635,537 2,047,099
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE 37 29,326 29,326
Post-retirement benefit obligations IR T2 38(b) 3,259,529 2,859,945
Derivative liabilities TEEE 40 304,338 281,921
50,642,159 49,547,034
Net assets FEE 24,553,397 21,805,107
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to the equity BB RAAR R AERIEA L
shareholders of the Company N =
Share capital A& s 42 11,276,539 11,276,539
Reserves b 43 11,649,259 8,849,353
22,925,798 20,125,892
Non-controlling interests FEd RS 1,627,599 1,679,215
Total equity BRES 24,553,397 21,805,107

The notes on pages 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26

March 2013 and were signed on its behalf.

Liu Shaoyong
2mE
Director

EE

BHOETIE - URREFSHE -

Ma Xulun
FAfR

Director

EF
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COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEET

NEEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
As at 31 December 2012 R =T ——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE AR¥ T ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets B EE 18 11,431,806 11,343,374
Property, plant and equipment YIS - IR R tE 19 56,015,173 50,246,293
Lease prepayments TESHEER 20 781,146 497,301
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft ~ FRATET X 21 10,733,899 10,195,340
Investments in subsidiaries RERHEB A A 22 10,455,900 7,104,106
Investments in associates BRI E A T] 23 578,836 578,836
Investments in jointly controlled entities KEREGERT] 24 323,238 323,238
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESRmEE 216,256 221,557
Other long-term assets HEtRAEE 25 1,077,036 980,434
Derivative assets MHEERE 40 = 4,365
91,613,290 81,494,844
Current assets RENEE
Flight equipment spare parts R BT 26 1,794,447 1,270,586
Trade receivables FEW AR 27 3,601,021 2,462,623
Prepayments and other receivables SENE e LN 28 6,908,992 3,647,648
Derivative assets PTEERE 40 18,074 =
Restricted bank deposits and short-term PR Il (4 4R 1 T 17 SRR 2 HA
bank deposits RITIER 29 109,543 360,168
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 30 617,422 852,012
Assets held for sale FEGEEE 44 - 482,313
13,049,499 9,075,350
Current liabilities REEE
Sales in advance of carriage FHEER 2,808,175 2,817,980
Trade payables and notes payable FER R R BN Z i 31 7,558,342 3,480,109
Other payables and accrued expenses HibEM R R TEIRE B 32 11,087,271 10,661,352
Current portion of obligations under REAEBENREE D
finance leases 88 1,978,018 2,010,988
Current portion of borrowings (EENEobinE2E e 34 20,335,797 14,830,480
Income tax payable FES TR 1,528 25
Current portion of provision for return 4L TH E TR R T i (&2
condition checks for aircraft under B EIEE D
operating leases 34 88,081 174,151
Derivative liabilities TEaRE 40 35,813 51,063
43,893,025 34,026,148
Net current liabilities BRBAMS (30,843,526) (24,950,798)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABDERS 60,769,764 56,544,046
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COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEET
NRIEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B 81 7 3R 5 £ A /5 )
As at 31 December 2012 R=T——F+=A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo=E AREFr ARET T
Non-current liabilities FkRBAE
Obligations under finance leases MEHERE 33 15,498,192 14,123,184
Borrowings fETx 34 15,087,334 15,184,868
Provision for return condition checks L TH E TR N BE B
for aircraft under operating leases RIS ERE 35 1,674,553 1,546,944
Other long-term liabilities HEmRAEE 36 962,719 1,331,811
Post-retirement benefit obligations RIR BT ERE 38(b) 2,508,450 2,191,722
Derivative liabilities PTEEE 40 304,338 281,921
36,035,586 34,660,450
Net assets FEE 24,734,178 21,883,596
Equity =
Share capital A& 42 11,276,539 11,276,539
Reserves (e 43 13,457,639 10,607,057
Total equity WRER 24,734,178 21,883,596

The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements.  $99H £ 208 B HIMi 7t &M 15K A A 2D ©

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 ~ AMBHMEEBHARBEFTER _T—=F=A=+~

March 2013 and were signed on its behalf. AELETIE  WRREESEE -
Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun

2mE FAfR

Director Director

BE BE
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BHRERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE AR¥ T ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHNELSRE
Cash generated from operations KEEFANES 45(a) 12,822,835 13,781,419
Income tax paid BERETSH (205,476) (158,394)
Net cash inflow from operating activities & EBEENTRER 12,617,359 13,623,025
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNEESRE
Additions of property, plant and equipment BEME - WS RERE (6,148,139) (5,414,101)
Payment of short-term deposits with original ST R EARR R R
maturity over three months =8 AR EER = (1,963,289)
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft S RMETERT X 21 (7,328,529) (8,180,128)
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets B Al HH & & R & 2= = (1,472
Acquisition of cargo business of Great Wall WEE R =R R A A
Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Great Wall Airlines”), (T=HMmz=E])  MKRESRE
netting of cash acquired (87,316) (60,736)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale  H&iFHRAEEEEER 209,586 411,535
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - Bk
plant and equipment REBFTER 181,246 33,881
Proceeds of short-term deposits with original U [B1 773X HAPR #8238
maturity over three months =8 AR EER 29 958,489 -
Interest received BUF 2 215,789 146,529
Dividends received =l 112,446 82,294
Proceeds from disposal of interests in an HE RIS A RS
associate 3R & 2,439 -
Proceeds from disposal of interests in HERAMEHESMEENER
available-for-sale financial assets F5IRE 94,890 6,426
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEFEBELENTRER (11,789,099) (14,939,061)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

@Fﬁiﬁiﬂmgeﬁi

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 8l 4R 3L )

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —

—ZFtZ A=t HILFE

2012 2011
—E-=F —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥ T ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities BRETBNREERE
Proceeds from draw down of short-term BAEHAERK
bank loans 23,101,136 19,647,120
Repayments of short-term bank loans BE R HER (25,619,898) (18,514,150)
Proceeds from issuance of short-term BITH AR E HF R ES
debentures and bonds WHIRIR S 4,000,000 2,490,417
Proceeds from draw down of long-term BARHER
bank loans 10,887,474 5,693,281
Repayments of long-term bank loans EERHER (8,352,313) (5,245,147)
Principal repayments of finance lease EEREHEAESNS
obligations (4,004,636) (2,191,369)
Receipts of restricted bank deposits LB 9 PR 1 117 K 236,475 1,108,726
Interest paid EAFE (1,936,842) (1,701,253)
Capital contribution from non-controliing B A R 2 FEHE I i e ) (&
interests of subsidiaries 453,850 1,004,500
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in W BB B A 1A FEFE ) M A 2
subsidiaries (670,956) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of S HIB A T FELZ b RS
subsidiaries A& A (178,580) (156,526)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing BRETBHEEFRSORE) FA
activities (2,174,290) 2,135,599
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBLEEWECRD), /H#E0
cash equivalents (1,346,030) 819,563
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A—BHBEERESEEY 3,860,973 3,078,228
Exchange adjustments FE R (3,247) (36,818)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +—A=+—HMWHEER
HEeEEY 30 2,511,696 3,860,973

The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BOHERB R

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAREREEERGER

Non-
Share Other Accumulated controlling
capital reserves losses Subtotal interests  Total equity
BRA& i RiER N FEERIMER ‘R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2011 i =13 11,276,539 16,950,255  (12,955,507) 15,271,287 1,290,699 16,561,886
Total comprehensive income FEBEA NS
for the year - (134,661) 4,575,732 4,441,071 740 4,441,811
~ Profit for the year —FREHE = - 4575732 4575732 740 4576472
— Other comprehensive loss —EfirAEE = (134,661) = (134,661) = (134,661)
Accumulated losses shared WB L RIS e & 1k
by non-controlling interests after AERBEER
capital injection in a subsidiary - 426,439 - 426,439 (427,264) (825)
Dividends paid to non-controlling SO
interests of subsidiaries JEE | MRS AR F - - - - (156,526) (156,526)
Capital contribution by non-controlling P& 72 F13E#= 14
interests in a subsidiary EmgE - - - - 1,004,500 1,004,500
Acquisition of non-controlling interests ~ YeBEHIB A A
in subsidiaries JEE R AR = (12,905) - (12,905) (32,834) (45,739)
Balance at 31 December 2011 —E——H5+-fA=+—HB&#H 11,276,639 17,229,128 (8,379,775) 20,125,892 1,679,215 21,805,107
Balance at 1 January 2012 —E-"E-A—-HEH% 11,276,539 17,229,128 (8,379,775) 20,125,892 1,679,215 21,805,107
Total comprehensive income FEASANE
for the year = (7,374) 2953645 2,946,271 (146,080) 2,800,191
- Profit for the year -EEFE - - 2,953,645 2,953,645 (146,042) 2,807,603
- Other comprehensive loss -HivmAERE - (7,374) - (7,374) (38) (7,412)
Dividends paid to non-controlling X {SHEA
interests of subsidiaries ISR - - - - (178,580) (178,580)
Capital contribution by non- il PNGIE 220 S
controlling interests in subsidiaries &
(Note 22(a)&(b)) (Htr22(a)&(b) - = - - 453,850 453,850
Acquisition of non-controlling W BB B B 2 R
interests in subsidiaries EnRE
(Note 22(c)&(d)) (BFF22(c)&(d)) - (490,151) - (490,151) (180,806) (670,957)
Others Hity - 343,786 - 343,786 - 343,786
Balance at 31 December 2012 “E-"E+ZA=1+-—HE&H 11,276,539 17,075,389 (5,426,130) 22,925,798 1,627,599 24,553,397

The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR E IR

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B 81 7 3R 5 £ A /5 )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”), a joint
stock company limited by shares, was incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 14 April 1995. The address of the
Company’s registered office is 66 Airport Street, Pudong International
Airport, Shanghai, the PRC. The Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation,
including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery, tour operations
and other extended transportation services.

The Company is majority owned by China Eastern Air Holding Company
(“CEA Holding”), a state-owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC.

The Company’s shares are traded on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and The New York Stock
Exchange.

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s
Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 26 March 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss.

() Going concern

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s accumulated losses
were approximately RMB5.43 billion and its current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately RMB35.95
billion. For the year ended 31 December 2012, cash and
cash equivalents of the Group decreased by RMB1.35 bhillion.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board considers
the adequacy of cash inflows from operations and financing
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ARk BT ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Going concern (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total unutilised
credit facilities of approximately RMB27.09 billion from
banks. The Board believes that, based on experience to
date, it is likely that these facilities will be rolled over in future
years if required.

With the cash inflows from operations and available credit
facilities, the Board considers that the Group will be able to
obtain sufficient financing to enable it to operate, as well as
to meet its liabilities as and when they become due, and the
capital expenditure requirements for the upcoming twelve
months. Accordingly, the Board believes that it is appropriate
to prepare these financial statements on a going concern
basis without including any adjustments that would be
required should the Company and the Group fail to continue
as a going concern.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new standards and
amendments to existing standards which are relevant for the
Group'’s existed business and mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2012:

o Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfer of financial assets: this
amendment promotes transparency in the reporting of
transfer transactions and improve users’ understanding
of the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial
assets and the effect of those risks on the Company’s
financial position. The Group did not have any
significant transfers of financial assets in previous year
or the current year which require disclosures in current
accounting year under the amendments and these
amendments have had no material impact on the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 R Y ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B[R 81 75 3 & #£ 8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

I#m%)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EZelREHE(8)

POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

o Amendment related to IAS12, “Income taxes”.
Currently IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’ requires an entity
to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset
depending on whether the entity expects to recover
the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale.
It can be difficult and subjective to assess whether
recovery will be through use or through sale when the
asset is measured using the fair value model in IAS
40 “Investment Property”. Hence, this amendment
introduces an exception to the existing principle for
the measurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities
arising on investment property measured at fair value.
As a result of the amendments, SIC 21, ‘Income tax —
recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets’, would
no longer apply to investment properties carried at fair
value. The amendments also incorporate into IAS 12
the remaining guidance previously contained in SIC 21,
which is accordingly withdrawn. This improvement has
no material impact on the Group.

(iii) New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 but not currently relevant to

the Group

IFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of IFRSs - Limited
Exemptions from Comparative IFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

IFRS 1 (Amendment) First time adoption on hyperinflation and

fixed dates
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED B E 5 iz

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR BT ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B85 81 1 3 &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been issued but not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012 and which are relevant for the Group’s operations

The following standards and amendments to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on after 1 January
2013, but the Group has not early adopted them:

. IAS 19 (Amendment) (effective from 1 January 2013).
This amendment eliminate the corridor approach
and calculate finance costs on a net funding basis.
“Remeasurements” replace “actuarial gains and losses”
and include the difference between actual investment
returns and the return implied by the net interest cost
and any effect of an asset ceiling. They are recognised
in other comprehensive income and not recycled
to income. The “corridor” method and the option to
recognise immediately in the income statement are
no longer available. This will increase balance sheet
volatility for many entities. The Group will apply the
standard retrospectively from 1 January 2013 and the
“actuarial gains and losses” will be recognised in other
comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2012, the
unrecognised actuarial losses is RMB2.89 billion.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 R Y ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B 81 7 3R 5 £ A /5 )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

2ETHRBEE)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) MBREE(HE)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been issued but not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012 and which are relevant for the Group’s operations
(continued)

o IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective from January
1, 2013). The standard addresses classification and
measurement of financial assets, introducing the
following changes: (i) Introduces a single model that
has only two classification categories: amortised
cost and fair value, which are driven by the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual characteristics of the financial
assets. (i) Removes the requirement to separate
embedded derivatives from financial asset hosts,
and requires a hybrid contract to be classified in
its entirety at either amortised cost or fair value. (iii)
Prohibits reclassifications except in rare circumstances
when the entity’s business model changes and the
changes apply prospectively. (iv) Provides specific
guidance for contractually linked instruments that
create concentrations of credit risk, which is often
the case with investment tranches in a securitisation.
(v) Indicates that all equity investments should be
measured at fair value. However, management has
an option to present in other comprehensive income
unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses on
equity investments that are not held for trading. (vi)
Removes the cost exemption for unquoted equities and
derivatives on unquoted equities but provides guidance
on when cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair
value. The management is in the process of evaluating
the impact of IFRS 9 on the Group and will apply the
standard from 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ARk BT ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EZeiHEHE(8)

POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been issued but not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012 and which are relevant for the Group’s operations
(continued)

o IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” (effective
from 1 January 2013). The objective of IFRS 10 is to
establish principles for the presentation and preparation
of consolidated financial statements when an entity
controls one or more other entity (an entity that controls
one or more other entities) to present consolidated
financial statements. Defines the principle of control,
and establishes controls as the basis for consolidation.
Set out how to apply the principle of control to identify
whether an investor controls an investee and therefore
must consolidate the investee. Sets out the accounting
requirements for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements. The management is in the process
of evaluating the impact of IFRS 10 on the Group and
will apply the standard from 1 January 2013.

o IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” (effective from 1
January 2013). IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely
aligned between IFRSs and United States Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“‘US GAAP”), do not
extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standards within
IFRSs or US GAAP. The management is in the process
of evaluating the impact of IFRS 13 on the Group and
will apply the standard from 1 January 2013.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B 81 7 3R 5 £ A /5 )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

2ETHRBEE)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) MBEE(HE)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been issued but not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012 and which are relevant for the Group’s operations
(continued)

. IAS 1 (Amendment) (effective from 1 July 2013)
“Financial statements presentation” regarding other
comprehensive income. The main change resulting
from these amendments is a requirement for entities
to group items presented in “other comprehensive
income” (OCI) on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not
address which items are presented in OCI. The Group
will apply the standard from 1 July 2013 and it is not
expected to have material impact on the Group’s or
Company’s financial statement.

o IFRS 11 (effective from 1 January 2013) “Joint
arrangement”. IFRS 11 is a more realistic reflection
of joint arrangement by focusing on the right and
obligation of the arrangement rather than its legal
form. There are two types of joint arrangement:
joint operations and joint ventures. Joint operations
arise where a joint operation has right to assets
and obligations relating to the arrangement and
hence accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where
the joint operation has rights to the net assets of
the arrangement and hence equity accounts for its
interest. Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is
no longer allowed. The Group will apply the standard
from 1 January 2013 and it is not expected to have
material impact on the Group’s or Company’s financial
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been issued but not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012 and which are relevant for the Group’s operations
(continued)

o IAS 28 (Revised 2011) (effective from 1 January 2013)
“Associates and joint ventures”. The amendment
includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well
as associates, to be equity accounted following the
issue of IFRS 11. The management is in the process of
evaluating the impact of IAS 28 on the Group and will
apply the standard from 1 January 2013.

o IFRS 12 (effective from 1 January 2013) “Disclosure of
interests in other entities”. The amendment includes
the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles. The management is in the process of
evaluating the impact of IFRS 12 on the Group and will
apply the standard from 1 January 2013.

o IAS 27 (revised 2011) (effective from 1 January 2013)
“Separate financial statements”. The amendment
includes the provisions on separate financial statements
that are left after the control provisions of IAS 27 have
been included in the new IFRS 10. The management
is in the process of evaluating the impact of IAS 27 on
the Group and will apply the standard from 1 January
2013.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B[R 81 75 3 & #£ 8

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

I#m%)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. E£Z&

POLICIES (continued)
(b) Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control. De-facto control may arise in circumstances
where the size of the Group’s voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give
the Group the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at
the acquisition date through profit or loss.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. #=Z=
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed (Note (k)(i)). If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. #=Z=
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Consolidation (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &

POLICIES (continued)

(b) Consolidation (continued)

(iv) Associates (continued)

v)

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2(n)). The results of associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity in which the Group has
joint control over its economic activity established under a
contractual arrangement. The Group’s investments in jointly
controlled entities includes goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting based on
the audited financial statements or management accounts
of the jointly controlled entities. The Group’s share of its
jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements is adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the jointly controlled entity.

The Group recognises the portion of gains or losses on
the sale of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it
is attributable to the other venturers. The Group does not
recognise its share of profits or losses from the joint venture
that result from the Group’s purchase of assets from the joint
venture until it resells the assets to an independent party.
However, a loss on the transaction is recognised immediately
if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net
realisable value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2(n)). The results of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Segmental reporting

(d)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(*CODM?”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the office of the General Manager that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Company and
the Group’s entities.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges
or qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings

and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or costs’.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EZeiHEHE(8)
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Revenue recognition and sales in advance of

(e) BMAWERERERM

carriage

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and the provision of services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of business taxes or value-added taxes, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

The Group operates frequent flyer programmes that provide travel
awards to programme members based on accumulated miles. A
portion of passengers revenue attributable to the award of frequent
flyer benefits is deferred and recognised when the miles have been
redeemed or have expired.

(i) Traffic revenues
Passenger, cargo and mail revenues are recognised as traffic
revenues when the transportation services are provided. The
value of sold but unused tickets is recognised as sales in
advance of carriage (“SIAC”).

(i) Ground service income

Revenues from the provision of ground services are
recognised when the services are rendered.

(iii) Tour operation revenues
Revenues from tour and travel services and other travel
related services are recognised when the services are
rendered.

(iv) Cargo handling income

Revenues from the provision of cargo handling income are
recognised when the service are rendered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f

(9)

Revenue recognition and sales in advance of
carriage (continued)

(v Commission income
Commission income represents amounts earned from other
carriers in respect of sales made by the Group on their
behalf, and is recognised in the income statement upon
ticket sales.

(vi) Other revenue

Revenues from other operating businesses, including
income derived from the provision of freight forwarding, are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of aircraft and engines under operating leases, the
Group has obligations to fulfill certain return conditions under the
leases. Provision for the estimated cost of these return condition
checks is made on a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

In respect of aircraft and engines owned by the Group or
held under finance leases, overhaul costs are capitalised as a
component of property, plant and equipment and are depreciated
over the appropriate maintenance cycles (Note 2())).

All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement as and when incurred.
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B AR BT ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Interest income

(i)

)]

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest
rate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset, including the interest attributable to loans for advance
payments used to finance the acquisition of aircraft, are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the jurisdictions where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill and deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B[R 81 7 i &
For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —

—ZFtZ A=t HILFE

ZAREL)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

)]

(k)

Current and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising

on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled

entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary, associate or jointly
controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisition of subsidiaries is included in “intangible assets”.
Goodwill on acquisition of associates and jointly controlled
entities is included in “investments in associates” and
“investments in jointly controlled entities” and is tested
for impairment as part of the overall balances. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually
or whenever there is an indication of impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or Groups of cash-generating
units according to the identified operating segments that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose.

Computer software costs

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 5
years. Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programs are recognised as expense
when incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &

—ZFtZ A=t HIEFE

POLICIES (continued)

0

(m)

Deferred pilot recruitment costs

Deferred pilot recruitment costs represent the cost bore by the
Group in connection with securing certain minimum period of
employment of pilots and are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the anticipated beneficial period of five years, starting from the
pilot joins the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognised initially at cost which
comprises purchase price, and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to the condition for their intended use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

When each major aircraft overhaul is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment and is depreciated over the appropriate
maintenance cycles. Components related to airframe overhaul
cost, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 5 to 7.5 years.
Components related to engine overhaul costs, are depreciated
between each overhaul period using the ratio of actual flying
hours and estimated flying hours between overhauls (equivalent to
approximately 2 to 5 years). Upon completion of an overhaul, any
remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous overhaul is
derecognised and charged to the income statement.

Except for components related to overhaul costs, the depreciation
method of which has been described in the preceding paragraph,
other depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to write down their costs or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Owned and finance leased aircraft and engines 15 to 20 years
Other fight equipment, including rotables 10 years
Buildings 15 to 45 years
Other property, plant and equipment 5 to 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the assets’ carrying amount and are recognised in
the income statement.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and equipment pending installation. This includes the costs of
construction or acquisition and interest capitalised. No depreciation
is provided on construction in progress until the asset is completed
and ready for use.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, jointly controlled entities and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or which are not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
for impairment at least annually or whenever there is indication of
impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwiill
that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each balance sheet date.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and are classified as
assets held for sale.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent acquisition costs of land use rights
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is provided over the
lease period of the land use rights on a straight-line basis.

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft represent payments
to aircraft manufacturers to secure deliveries of aircraft in future
years, including attributable finance costs, and are included in non-
current assets. The balance is transferred to property, plant and
equipment upon delivery of the aircraft.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Flight equipment spare parts

Flight equipment spare parts are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of flight equipment spare parts comprises the
purchase price (net of discounts), freight charges, duty and value
added tax and other miscellaneous charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price of the flight equipment in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the provision
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &

FH-A=t—HLFE

POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date in which case such
borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

For the contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it, the present obligation under the
contract is recognised and measured as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &

POLICIES (continued)

(x) Leases

(i)

A Group company is the lessee
Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has acquired substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other short-term and other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the income statement over the lease period
SO as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. Leased
assets are depreciated using a straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives to residual values.

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting in a finance
lease, differences between sales proceeds and net book
values are deferred and amortised over the minimum lease
terms.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting in an operating
lease, differences between sales proceeds and net book
values are recognised immediately in the income statement,
except to the extent that any profit or loss is compensated
for by future lease payments at above or below market value,
then the profit or loss is deferred and amortised over the
period for which the asset is expected to be used.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. ZEZeiHEHE(8)
POLICIES (continued)

(x) Leases (continued) (x) #HE(E)
(i) A Group company is the lessor (i) SERHNAFHHEA
Assets leased out under operating leases are included in NEEHEARDHEANEEIBIEESE
property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet. They EBERNYE  #ERERER - TR
are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis FEYE « EeS R RENERT AI{ERE
consistent with similar property, plant and equipment. Rental BE SHEITE - Fﬂzﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁzi\&ﬁﬁi
income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease RIBEHAERA
term.
(y) Retirement benefits (v) EEERKEREF
The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes AEERENRS REEEFNS2HEEAE TR

regarding pension and medical benefits for employees organised
by the municipal governments of the relevant provinces. The
contributions to the schemes are charged to the income statement
as and when incurred.

EEMNERMEHEE -
EHIINAEE -

It E R B R A

In addition, the Group provides retirees with certain post- BEAN - ANEEIR IR KEE NEN B FEERER
retirement benefits including retirement subsidies, transportation AR REER  EREEERMMA L E MR

subsidies, social function activity subsidies as well as other welfare.
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains
or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined

M o REE B BERAFE MR RE ARG B8
ROBEREERBRARKEREMNEED

RERABEENAAE Rk EFERER
HEE IS M AR RIS B BEVRE - EFIRAK
BN e BEEFREBEMER AN G AR
8 o BRI E ENREREREARRER
EndkERMNEEXNERHEREZHAA
EARRE M RREN B EENRENBFES

by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest HFRITE - FFARER N BE BRI
rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency EENBERLZ  BBRFEEEMN10%EE

in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions in excess of the greater of 10% of the
value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligation are
charged or credited to the income statement over the employees’
expected average remaining working lives.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the income
statement, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional
on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. &
POLICIES (continued)

(z) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the
balance sheet at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.
The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are accounted for as trading instruments and any
unrealised gains or losses, being changes in fair value of the
derivatives, are recognised in the income statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges and that are highly effective, are
recorded in the income statement, along with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities that are attributable to
the hedged risk.

Derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge accounting
and which are designated as a specific hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a highly probable forecast transaction, are accounted
for as follows:

(i)  the effective portion of any change in fair value of the
derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in
equity. Where the forecast transaction or firm commitment
results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are included in
the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
Otherwise, the cumulative gain or loss on the derivative
financial instrument is removed from equity and recognised
in the income statement in the same period during which the
hedged forecast transaction affects net profit or loss.

(i)  the ineffective portion of any change in fair value is
recognised in the income statement immediately.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. ZEZeiHEHE(8)
POLICIES (continued)

(z) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-
current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
items is more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or
liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised in the income statement when the committed or
forecast transaction ultimately occurs. When a committed or
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was recorded in equity is immediately transferred
to the income statement.

(aa) Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in securities other than subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, being held for non-trading purposes, are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are recognised
on the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date,
the fair value is remeasured, with any resulting gain or loss being
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses. When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is
recognised in the income statement.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. In the case
of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities below its
cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement.

(ab) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

(ac) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—T——F+-_A=+—HILtFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. &RiEkE?

(a) £REREE

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and fuel price risk), credit risk, and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage risk
exposures whenever management consider necessary.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(the “Group Treasury”) under policies approved by the Board. The
Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close cooperation with the Group’s operating units. The overall
risk management strategies, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest-rate
risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments were approved by the Board.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates its business in many countries and
territories. The Group generates its revenue in different
currencies, and its foreign currency liabilities at the end of
the period are much higher than its foreign currency assets.
The Group’s major liability item (resulting from purchases
and leases of aircraft) is mainly priced and settled in foreign
currencies, primarily US dollars. The Group is exposed to
currency risks from fluctuations in various foreign currency
exchange rates against RMB.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is regulated
by the PRC government. Limitation on foreign exchange
transaction imposed by the PRC government could cause
future exchange rates to vary significantly from current or
historical exchange rates.

In addition, fluctuations in exchange rates will affect
the Group’s future costs for purchases of aircraft, flight
equipment and aviation fuel, and take-off and landing
charges in foreign airports.

The Group entered into certain foreign exchange forward
option contracts to manage part of these foreign currency
risks. Details of foreign currency forward contracts are
disclosed in Note 40(b) to the financial statements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aRAEAREE(E)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) &mEEEEEE)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) NERERE)
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TERFEETEBERARETBHHREEDN
exposure at the balance sheet date to major currency risk. SNEE R ©
Group
&m
2012 2011
—E-ZF —T——F
usb Euro JPY usb Euro JPY
EYH B A% e B0 = b

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR AR%TR ARBTR ARETT ARKTT ARETE

Trade and other receivables JEMCEE T % L MR 1,259,043 156,354 161,020 1,308,300 121,646 140,143
Restricted bank deposits and [l 7z FIE A8k 1T
short-term bank deposits fex 16,082 9,818 39,724 16,145 9,302 24,637
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEM 372,387 38,175 30,451 520,976 19,753 5,425
Deposits relating to aircraft KEURERKAE
under operating leases 562,199 - - 594,354 = =
Trade and other payables FER BRI R A A REATAR (248,604) (166) (3,355) (448,593 (278) (2,754)
Obligations under finance leases FiEHERF (18,751,982) - (667,351)  (17,891,918) - -
Borrowings fam (31,605,345) - (303,433)  (24,994,674) - -
Currency derivatives at TETEARAS
notional value 364,559 - - 289,841 = =
Net balance sheet exposire ~~ BEBEXREE (48,031,661) 204,181 (742,944)  (40,605,569) 150,423 167,451
Company
A
2012 2011
—E-CF —Z——fF
usbD Euro JPY usb Euro JPY
ES BT B EI BT =

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO0O  RMB'000
ARBTTE ARMTR ARETR ARMTL ARETR ARMTR

Trade and other receivables FEISER TR L A FE R 1,133,769 60,826 161,020 1,040,821 5,422 133,706
Restricted bank deposits and [z R S8R 1T

short-term bank deposits = 16,082 9,818 39,724 16,145 6,016 24,637
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEN 263,523 35,431 30,268 453,753 7,938 1,021
Deposits relating to aircraft RAMRERKAS

under operating leases 251,411 - - 262,420 - -
Trade and other payables FERT AR R E A B3 (215,474) - (254) (432,582) - -
Obligations under finance leases BAMREEE (14,733,182) - (667,351)  (14,133,574) = =
Borrowings B3 (25,176,398) - (303,433)  (18,587,048) - -
Currency derivatives at DEREEL Y

notional value 364,559 - - 289,841 - -
Net balance sheet exposire ~ AEBEREE (38,095,710) 106,075 (740,026)  (31,090,224) 19,376 159,364

125



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR BT ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE —T——F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aREAREER(E)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) &mESEEE)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i)

SME B (4E)

The following table indicates the approximate change

TRETNEEABRA - MAREY

in the Group’s profit and loss and other components of HMEEHEI%  SAREEMEARAF
consolidated equity in response to a 1% appreciation of the R RTIE RS RE S B B AR D B =2
RMB against the following major currencies at the balance 2.
sheet date.
Group
&5
2012 2011
—E-=F %
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit components profit ~ components
and loss of equity and loss of equity
HrEZHA HiEa B A
HEENEE BOoNPE HERNTFE  Ho0xpE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ART R ARETFT ARETT
US dollars ET 483,962 988 406,797 (222)
Euro BT (2,042) - (1,504) =
Japanese Yen = 7,429 - (1,675) =
Company
AT
2012 2011
—E-—fF %
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit components profit  components
and loss of equity and loss of equity
HREZHEAM g B A
HESNEE BINRE HEZNFE (o2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr ARBTT ARETFT ARETT
US dollars = 384,603 988 311,644 (222)
Euro BT (1,061) - (194) -
Japanese Yen Bt 7,400 - (1,594) -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aRAEAREIE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) &mEBEEE(E)

(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FERE

The Group’s interest-rate risk primarily arises from
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of borrowings made to the Group and
interest rate swaps are disclosed in Notes 34 and 40(a) to
the financial statements.

To hedge against the variability in the cash flows arising from
a change in market interest rates, the Group has entered into
certain interest rate swaps to swap variable rates into fixed
rates.

The following table details the interest rate profiles of the

AEBNFERBREZREBRRBE
HEBE - REPHFNEBANBRS
SEEZBESREFERR  REEF
ERANBARSAEEBERZ AR BENE
Bk o AEEBRFE  EHRIEFAR
) 2 422 HR 5% R A B S 3R 25 O B S B4 0 Bf
FF40(a) °

AT BRI IS RS AR
EREF - AEEER— ERH R
BRRFBN B SRBEEME -

TRERTEERARETBRE BN

Group’s and the Company'’s interest-bearing financial AOS R T ERELR o
instruments at the balance sheet date.

Group Company
&= AF]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=% =¥ & c-¥-=f =T &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTIT AR%¥TR ARETET

Floating rate instruments FEFETH

Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEEY 2,503,079 3,852,681 611,890 847,544
Restricted bank deposits and R &Il 417 2 AN %S 27

short-term bank deposits RITIFR 1,726,251 2,894,287 109,543 360,168
Borrowings fazk (35,256,709)  (35,256,801) (28,516,031)  (26,133,256)
Obligation under finance MEMERRE

leases (21,857,978)  (20,260,822) (17,476,210) (16,134,172

(52,885,357)  (48,770,655) (45,270,808) (41,059,716)

Interest rate swaps at MEFBRENZE
notional amount N 5,598,774 4,075,758 5,698,774 4,075,758

(47,286,583)  (44,694,807) (39,672,034)  (36,983,958)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

3. TRARERE(E)

(@) =REARREE(E)

Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FI=mEpx(E)
Group Company
£H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —E——%F —E-—fF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR%®Tx ARETT
Fixed rate instruments EEMNEITR
Borrowings (EE (10,479,409) (6,517,792) (6,907,100) (4,455,859)
Interest rate swaps at FIEFIMAELAE
notional amount PN 240,307 303,368 240,307 303,368
(10,239,102)  (6,214,424)  (6,666,793)  (4,152,491)
The following table indicates the approximate change in the TRAEAR T EEMESRFBENER
Group’s profit and loss and other components of equity, T WEBFEKERFTLEE  BFELE
taking into the consideration of the interest rate swap, if FHo5EE AR, ¥ B 2 A Bl IR A KR
interest rate had been 25 basis points higher with all other e AR I DR -
variables held constant.
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit components profit ~ components
and loss of equity and loss of equity
HER H A g B A
HERNFE I20FE HERNTE  Ior0xZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Tx ARETRT ARETT
Floating rate instruments FEFET A (122,532) (13,997) (118,952) (10,189)
Fuel price risk (iii) MUBRESRER

The Group’s results of operations may be significantly
affected by fluctuations in fuel prices which is a significant
expense component for the Group. Aircraft fuel accounts for
36% of the Group’s operating expenses (2011: 37%).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no open crude oil
option contracts, and all the contracts signed in past years
had been settled before 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, if fuel price had
been 5% higher/lower with all other variables held constant
(excluding the impact of crude oil option contracts), the
Group'’s fuel cost would have been RMB1,494 million higher/
lower.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aRAEAREIE(E)

(a) EmEREZRER)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iv) Credit risk (ivy EERE

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and derivative financial
instruments with banks and financial institutions, as well as
credit exposures to sales agents.

A significant portion of the Group’s air tickets are sold by
sales agents participating in the Billing and Settlements
Plan (“BSP”), a clearing system between airlines and sales
agents organised by the International Air Transportation
Association. The balance due from BSP agents amounted
to approximately RMB812 million as at 31 December
2012 (2011: approximately RMB756 million). The credit
risk exposure to BSP and the remaining trade receivables
are maintained by the Group on an on-going basis and
the allowance for impairment of doubtful debts is within
management’s expectations.

The Group’s cash management policy is to deposit cash
and cash equivalents mainly in state-owned banks and
other banks, which are highly rated by international credit
rating companies. The Group also deposits cash and cash
equivalents in an associate financial institution owned by its
holding company (Note 47(c)(iii)). The management does
not expect any loss to arise from non-performance by these
banks and the financial institution.

Transactions in relation to derivative financial instruments
are only carried out with financial institutions of high credit
rating. The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by these
banks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

v)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been for
day-to-day operations, additions of and upgrades to
aircraft, engines and flight equipment and payments on
related borrowings. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated
from operations, bonds and bank loans (both short and long
term). The Group generally finances the acquisition of aircraft
through long-term finance leases or bank loans.

The Group operates with a working capital deficit. As at 31
December 2012, the Group’s net current liabilities amounted
to RMB35,948 million (2011: RMB29,679 million). For the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a net
cash inflow from operating activities of RMB12,617 million
(2011:
investing activities and financing activities of RMB13,963
million (2011: outflow RMB12,803 million), and a decrease
in cash and cash equivalents of RMB1,349 million (2011:
increase of RMB820 million).

inflow RMB13,623 million), a net cash outflow from

The Directors of the Company believe that cash from
operations and short and long term borrowings will be
sufficient to meet the Group’s operating cash flow. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group’s treasury policy aims at maintaining flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available. The Directors of
the Company believe that the Group has obtained sufficient
general credit facilities from PRC banks for financing future
capital commitments and for working capital purposes (see
Note 2(a)).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

v)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities that will be settled into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

3. LRAMREIR(E)

(a) EmEREZRER)

v) RBEEER(E)

TRETAEENARRNSHAEN
R RBEEEEN SR EE - R
MZIHAR - REREEREBRAR
BHEH B WRIRBRETAN - X
ARBENSR AR AERMIRNIR SR
£ - ARIRMTETK  #itE12(8
HAZ B EE RN ERRE(E -

Group
£
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years Over 5 years
—EHT —-ZMER MELER BENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®ET R ARET R ARET
At 31 December 2012 —E2-—#+-A=t+—-H
Borrowings = 23,690,528 7,780,344 8,846,834 8,736,557
Derivative financial instruments SRITETA 504 - 122,751 216,895
Obligations under finance leases ~ FAHEEE 3,004,452 3,059,744 8,685,669 9,027,940
Trade and other payables FETERAA R L b FE 5% 18,871,661 71,236 329,988 58,665
Provision for return condition checks 4878 & R R R (&
for aircraft under operating lease ~ %Ef& 734,205 818,199 1,381,893 864,465
Other long term liability HitRHEE 26,500 26,988 76,610 79,629
Total k] 46,327,850 11,756,511 19,443,745 18,984,151
At 31 December 2011 —E—&+-H=+—H
Borrowings N 19,129,172 8,959,738 10,053,089 6,255,055
Derivative financial instruments SRITETA 1,099 1,987 110,487 219,411
Obligations under finance leases ~ EEHEEE 2,790,844 2,846,797 7,836,047 8,448,826
Trade and other payables JEA AR R o At FE 3R 18,650,034 71,410 148,515 67,210
Other long term liability HmRHEE 115,645 117,963 324,703 350,095
Total k] 40,686,794 11,997,895 18,472,841 15,340,597
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

v)

3. LRAREIR(E)

(a) E=mERER(ER)

Liquidity risk (continued) (v) REBESER(E)
Company
NE
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andb5 years Over 5 years
—EHT —EZMER MELER AELE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®T R AR®T R AR®T T
At 31 December 2012 —E--—&+-H=t+-H
Borrowings B 21,049,778 4,274,259 6,251,534 6,315,543
Derivative financial Instruments ERITETR 504 - 122,751 216,895
Obligations under finance leases ~ AMEAHEEE 2,306,694 2,348,170 6,776,545 7,707,677
Trade and other payables FETBR AR Eoth SR 18,383,799 71,236 131,913 58,665
Provision for return condition checks 4% fi & IR (S
for aircraft under operating lease %% 88,081 586,490 647,745 440,318
Other long term liability HitREEE 13,852 14,101 40,694 46,286
Total ek ) 41,842,708 7,294,256 13,971,182 14,785,384
At 31 December 2011 —E—&+-H=+—H
Borrowings B 15,480,104 7,656,356 4,808,315 3,630,257
Derivative financial Instruments SRITAETA 1,099 1,087 110,487 219,411
Obligations under finance leases ~ EEHEEE 2,278,734 2,298,934 6,190,003 6,690,780
Trade and other payables JE BRI e At FE 3R 13,905,802 71,410 80,041 67,210
Other long term liability HitREEE 88,004 88,784 239,055 258,395
Total ] 31,753,743 10,117,471 11,422,901 10,866,053
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. LEtERER(E)
(b) Capital risk management (b) EXEER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard REENERERBR  RRESEEES
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to BIE - LARRRHOFMAEMiERREE
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders ERENE - RS RRER B AR DUR
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of REARBA o
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BT HEESABRERGERE  AEE e R
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new BE M FIREAOMKREEEE « BITHREHE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. BENRIKER ©
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt ratio, which is AEBFHEERBBREREEAN » IR
calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets. The debt ratio IRIBABERINGEETE - Eé: =T ——
at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as follows: FP—TE——F+_-_A=+—H BEAEFEX
U
2012 2011
—E-=F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Total liabilities FEN=E 99,265,166 92,938,774
Total assets BEE 123,818,563 114,738,881
Debt ratio BEREE 0.80 0.81
Fair value estimation of financial assets and (c) cREENSRMABBNAAENME

(c)

liabilities

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aREAREIE(E)

(c) Fair value estimation of financial assets and (c) cRIEENSHEBN QD AETME
liabilities (continued) (#8)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities TREAREBEEMABIK -_T——FK
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012 and 31 —ET——F+_-HA=+—HitENALEE-
December 2011.
Group
%5
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—B E_E EZE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%T R ARETR AR%ETR
At 31 December 2012 —E--f+=-A=t—H
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRTETA
~ Forward foreign exchange —SNERHRE A
contracts (Note 40(b)) (Pff5E40(0)) - 18,074 - 18,074
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 1,955 - 232,735 234,690
Total Pt ] 1,955 18,074 232,735 252,764
Liabilities =L
Derivatives financial instruments SRTETR
— Interest rate swaps (Note 40(a)) —MEF#HE L (Fi7F40()) - 295,005 - 295,005
— Forward foreign exchange —SNERHEA & A
contracts (Note 40(b)) (Bf=E40(b)) - 45,146 - 45,146
Total Pt - 340,151 - 340,151
Group
£
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B—[E EE E=[E fEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFIT AREFT
At 31 December 2011 —T——%+-fA=+—H
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETR
— Interest rate swaps (Note 40(a)) —FMEEBREL(HFF40()) - 4,279 - 4,279
— Forward foreign exchange —SNERBA L
contracts (Note 40(b)) (Bi=E40(b)) - 86 - 86
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESREE 2,344 - 238,036 240,380
Total 4E%E 2,344 4,365 238,036 244,745
Liabilities &fE
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETR
— Interest rate swaps (Note 40(a)) —MEEHAL(HiFF40()) - 267,909 - 267,909
— Forward foreign exchange —SNERBAEL
contracts (Note 40(b)) (PBff5E40(0)) - 65,075 = 65,075
Total pk] - 332,984 - 332,984
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aRAEAREE(E)

(c) ESMEENSHMBEBEN D AMETMG

(c) Fair value estimation of financial assets and

liabilities (continued) (#&)
Company
NG
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E E_E E= Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR%T R AR¥ETR AR%ETR
As at 31 December 2012 —E——#+=-A=+—H
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETR
~ Forward foreign exchange —SNEEBEA
contracts (Note 40(b)) (Bf5E40(0)) - 18,074 - 18,074
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE - - 216,256 216,256
Total pb ] - 18,074 216,256 234,330
Liabilities afE
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETHR
— Interest rate swaps (Note 40(a)) —FEEHRAEL(MFF40()) - 295,005 - 295,005
— Forward foreign exchange —INEREA L
contracts (Note 40(b)) (B=E40(b)) - 45,146 - 45,146
Total 1Az - 340,151 - 340,151
Company
N
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—IE FEE E=E Het
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT ARETIT ARBTIT
As at 31 December 2011 —E—%+=-H=+—H1
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRIPTETH
— Interest rate swaps (Note 40(a)) —FEEHAL(FF40()) - 4,279 - 4,279
— Forward foreign exchange —SNERBAL
contracts (Note 40(b)) (Bi=E40(b)) - 86 - 86
Available-for-sale financial assets R ESHEE - - 221,557 221,557
Total pk] - 4,365 221,557 225,922
Liabilities =L
Derivatives financial instruments SRIPTETH
— Interest rate swaps (Note 40(a)) —FEEHAL(FF40()) - 267,909 = 267,909
— Forward foreign exchange —SNERBAL
contracts (Note 40(b)) (Bi=E40(b)) - 65,075 = 65,075
Total Faka) - 332,984 - 332,984
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aREAREIE(E)

(c) EMEENSMBEBHDQAMETML

(c) Fair value estimation of financial assets and

liabilities (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
Group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, these instruments are included in level 2 of the above
table.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

o The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,

are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial statements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises traffic revenues in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(e) to the financial statements.
Unused tickets are recognised in traffic revenues based on current
estimates. Management annually evaluates the balance in the SIAC
and records any adjustments, which can be material, in the period
the evaluation is completed.

These adjustments result from differences between the estimates
of certain revenue transactions and the timing of recognising
revenue for any unused air tickets and the related sales price,
and are impacted by various factors, including a complex pricing
structure and interline agreements throughout the industry, which
affect the timing of revenue recognition.

Frequent flyer programme

The Group operates frequent flyer programmes that provide travel
awards to programme members based on accumulated miles. A
portion of passengers revenue attributable to the award of frequent
flyer benefits is deferred and recognised when the miles have been
redeemed or have expired. The deferment of revenue is estimated
based on historical trends of redemptions, which is then used to
project the expected utilisation of these benefits and estimated fair
values of the unredeemed miles. Different judgements or estimates
could significantly affect the estimated provision for frequent flyer
programmes and the results of operations.

Provision for costs of return condition checks
for aircraft under operating leases

Provision for the estimated costs of return condition checks for
aircraft under operating leases is made based on the estimated
costs for such return condition checks and taking into account
anticipated flying hours, flying cycle and time frame between each
overhaul. These judgments or estimates are based on historical
experience on returning similar airfframe models, actual costs
incurred and aircraft status. Different judgments or estimates
could significantly affect the estimated provision for costs of return
condition checks.
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BRI BRA

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. SZE eIt R Uk (8)
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(d) Retirement benefits

(e)

(f)

The Group operates and maintains defined retirement benefit
plans which provide retirees with benefits including transportation
subsidies, social activity subsidies as well as other welfare. The
cost of providing the aforementioned benefits in the defined
retirement benefit plan is actuarially determined and recognised
over the employees’ service period by utilising various actuarial
assumptions and using the projected unit credit method in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2(y) to the
financial statements. These assumptions include, without limitation,
the selection of discount rate, annual rate of increase of per capita
benefit payment and employees’ turnover rate. The discount rate is
based on management’s review of government bonds. The annual
rate of increase of benefit payments is based on the general local
economic conditions. The employees’ turnover rate is based on
historical trends of the Group. Additional information regarding
the retirement benefit plans is disclosed in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

Deferred income tax

In assessing the amount of deferred tax assets that need to be
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2(j) to the financial statements, the Group considers future
taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning
strategies. In the event that the Group’s estimates of projected
future taxable income and benefits from available tax strategies are
changed, or changes in current tax regulations are enacted that
would impact the timing or extent of the Group’s ability to utilise
the tax benefits of net operating loss carry forwards in the future,
adjustments to the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets
and taxation expense would be made.

Provision for flight equipment spare parts

Provision for flight equipment spare parts is made based on the
difference between the carrying amount and the net realisable
value. The net realisable value is estimated based on current
market condition, historical experience and Company’s future
operation plan for the aircraft and related spare parts. The net
realisable value may be adjusted significantly due to the change
of market condition and the future plan for the aircraft and related
spare parts.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. &
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(9)

(h)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of components related to airframe and engine
overhaul costs are based on the Group’s historical experience
with similar airframe and engine models and taking into account
anticipated overhauls costs, timeframe between each overhaul,
ratio of actual flying hours and estimated flying hours between
overhauls. Different judgments or estimates could significantly
affect the estimated depreciation charge and the results of
operations.

Except for components related to airframe and engine overhaul
costs, other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets have been impaired in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(k) and Note 2(m) to the financial
statements. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
have been determined based on fair value less cost to sell and
value-in-use calculations. Value-in-use calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
and certain key assumptions, such as passenger-kilometres yield
level, load factor, aircraft utilisation rate and discount rates, etc.
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5. REVENUES

5 WA

= B

BERA

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation,
including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery, tour operations
and other extended transportation services.

ZK‘*I‘E%%%%EE%?% BEEE BE B
« RS TS B EL AT R B AR TS

Group
58

2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFIT
Traffic revenues B UL A 79,444,443 76,513,636
— Passenger —=iE 71,418,995 68,433,970
— Cargo and mail —EERIE 8,025,448 8,079,666
Tour operation income BREEARFSUZA 2,111,051 2,115,520
Ground service income HE ARG U A 1,959,107 2,104,604
Cargo handling income EYREIA 160,328 278,724
Commission income [EERON 96,418 95,426
Others Hih 1,481,970 1,295,220
85,253,317 82,403,130

Notes:

Before 1 January 2012, the major elements of the Group’s revenues were subject
to business tax levied at rates of 3% or 5%. The Group’s revenues from the
provision of international transportation services are exempted from business tax
from 1 January 2010, pursuant to the notice of exemption of business tax on the
provision of international transportation services (Cai Shui [2010] No. 8) jointly issued
by the Ministry of Finance (“MoF”) and the State Administration of Taxation (“SAT”).

Pursuant to the notice of the pilot programme for the transformation of
transportation and certain modern service industries in Shanghai from business
tax (“BT”) to Value Added Tax (“VAT”) (Cai Shui [2011] No. 111) issued by MoF
and SAT, traffic revenue of the Company and subsidiaries located in Shanghai
and other revenues (including ground service income, cargo handling income,
commission income and part of others) generated in Shanghai are subjected to
VAT levied at rates of 11% or 6% from 1 January 2012, instead of BT.

Pursuant to the notice of the pilot programme for the transformation of
transportation and certain modern service industries from BT to VAT in Beijing and
other eight provinces/cities (Cai Shui [2012] No.71) issued by MoF and SAT, traffic
revenue and other revenues (including ground service income, cargo handling
income, commission income and part of others) generated by subsidiaries located
in Beijing and other eight provinces/cities scoped in the notice are subjected
to VAT levied at rates of 11% or 6% with different effective date ranging from 1
September 2012 to 1 December 2012.

The VAT input generated from purchase of fuel, take-off and landing services,
food and beverages, property, plant and equipment, and certain BT paid by the
branches of the Company outside above notice scope can be used to deduct the
VAT output generated from taxable revenue.

The traffic revenue and other revenue generated in other locations of China will
continue to be subject to business tax at rates of 3% or 5%.

As a result of the implementation of aforementioned reform from BT to VAT (i.e.
the relevant portion of the Group’s operations have been changed to VAT instead
of BT as they were in prior year), revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 decreased by RMB2,954 million and operating expenses of the
Group decreased by RMB3,132 million resulting in an increase in profit before
income tax of RMB178 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The business tax incurred and offset against the above Group’s revenues for the

year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB670 million (2011:
approximately RMB1,803 million).
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 8l 4R 3L )

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ —T——

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

FH-A=t—HLFE

6. Hfth=RIA

Group
58
2012 2011
—E-=F 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBT T
Other operating income (Note) Hihw WA (GE)
— Government subsidies — BT AR RN 1,719,626 1,061,451

Note:

Government subsidies represent (i) subsidies of RMB353 million (2011: RMB78
million) based on certain amount of tax paid granted by governments to the Group;
and (i) subsidies granted by various local governments to encourage the Group to

HEt AR¥3.531E7T

operate certain routes to cities where these governments are located.

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies related to subsidies that
have been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2012.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) CODM, office of the General Manager, reviews

7. DEERE

BAHBER A : ()& BIFARASBNFBGRE -
—T——F : ARKO.781ETT) : (i
B BT RSB A S B & B AR AR T ROMRL

BE—T——F+-A=+—HLFE FTEEWIEH
ERERE IR T RLAR R m R A IR R At sk B =R -

() FREERRE (REERIE)E

the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources.

The Group has one reportable operating segment, reported as
“airline transportation operations”, which comprises the provision
of passenger, cargo, mail delivery, ground service and cargo
handling income.

Other services including primarily tour operations, air catering and
other miscellaneous services are not included within the airline
transportation operations segment, as their internal reports are
separately provided to the CODM. The results of these operations
are included in the “other segments” column.

Inter-segment transactions are entered into under normal
commercial terms and conditions that would be available to
unrelated third parties.

In accordance with IFRS 8, segment disclosure has been
presented in a manner that is consistent with the information used
by the Group’s CODM. The Group’s CODM monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment based
on financial results prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises (the “PRC Accounting Standards”), which
differ from IFRS in certain aspects. The amount of each material
reconciling items from the Group’s reportable segment revenue
and profit or loss, arising from different accounting policies are set
out in Note 7(c) below.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER(E)

(a) CODM, office of the General Manager, reviews (a) TELEERKRE(ALERLE)E
the Group’s internal reporting in order to BEMAEENATRELUSTE
assess performance and allocate resources. XEBERARSEER - (&)
(continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as BE_Z——F+-_A=1+—HILFEND
follows: BEEN TR
Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
MEERIB  HHEHIH 2 EBRE S RAWMER* Ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥TR ARETR AR®TR ARBTR

Reportable segment revenue HINEPRIRED HRA

from external customers 83,127,233 2,442,017 - - 85,569,250
Inter-segment sales Vok: ki - 261,631 (261,631) - -
Reportable segment revenue  SEH A 83,127,233 2,703,648 (261,631) - 85,569,250
Reportable segment profit TN

before income tax 3,176,660 104,938 - 234,058 3,515,656

Other segment information ~ H# 75 H&EH

Depreciation and amortisation ~ HTEANE 4B 7,892,045 114,430 - - 8,006,475
Capital expenditure EAETH 18,490,801 116,212 - - 18,607,013
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as HE_ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFENS
follows: BEEWN TR
Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
MEXBHIH  AMEHHH Db ROBIER" G
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Reportable segment revenue  $5MRPHIRE D EULA

from external customers 81,597,560 2,376,945 - - 83,974,505
Inter-segment sales Vok: s - 201,989 (201,989) - -
Reportable segment revenue WED A 81,597,560 2,578,934 (201,989) - 83,974,505
Reportable segment profit W& AT

before income tax 4,997,606 41,986 - 128,122 5,167,714

Other segment information ~ Hit1 5 H& %

Depreciation and amortisation ~ FTEMEHER 7,282,207 88,500 - - 7,370,727
Impairment losses AERERE 799,105 259 - - 799,364
Capital expenditure BAMS 18,159,708 91,985 - - 18,251,693
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

CODM, office of the General Manager, reviews
the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources.
(continued)

7. DEBERI(E)

(a) FEEERKE(MEERQE)E
BEHAAKEENABHRE A TH
RERARIBEER ° ()

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 31 R_FE——F+_A=+—HMZT—&F
December 2011 are as follows: TZA=+—HNSHEEMNEBIITOAT :
Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
MEEBIB HEKLH panilckig ] RABEE* At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETR AR%TR ARBTR AR%TR
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—§+-A=1-H
Reportable segment assets BRENHEE 116,461,666 4,706,382 (1,691,890) 1,486,321 120,962,479
Reportable segment liabilities BREHHEE 94,047,698 3,564,029 (1,691,890) - 95,919,837
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-fF=+—H
Reportable segment assets REDHEE 106,818,323 4,658,780 (763,176) 1,501,225 112,215,152
Reportable segment liabilities RENTHEE 87,272,414 3,560,501 (763,176) - 90,069,739

Unallocated assets primarily represent investments in associates
and jointly controlled entities, and available-for-sale financial assets.
Unallocated results primarily represent the share of results of
associates and jointly controlled entities, and also the gain arisen from
available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group’s business segments operate in
three main geographical areas, even though
they are managed on a worldwide basis.

The Group’s revenues by geographical are analysed based on the
following criteria:

(1)  Traffic revenue from services within the PRC (excluding the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (‘Hong Kong”),
Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) and Taiwan
(collectively known as “Regional’)) is classified as domestic
operations. Traffic revenue generated from international
routes (excluding regional routes) is classified as international
operations.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEPER(EE)

(b) The Group’s business segments operate in three
main geographical areas, even though they are
managed on a worldwide basis. (continued)

(2)  Revenue from ticket handling services, ground services, (2]

cargo handling service and other miscellaneous services are

classified on the basis of where the services are performed.

(b) AEHEZEHIBR=MFEEENH
HEgKE SEHEERZRMA
By o (4)

RMEZRBWA - HEREEA - &
W) BE TR UL Ko E At S [R] AR 7% P R B A 4R
AR Z RGP B8R Rzt R e
EBRA -

Group
%E
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARETT
Domestic (the PRC, excluding Hong Kong, 3ER(FE - TNEFESR SR )

Macau and Taiwan) 57,612,675 57,675,579
Regional (Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) 78 & b & 3,704,064 3,771,339
International R 24,252,511 22,527,587
Total BT 85,569,250 83,974,505

The major revenue-earning assets of the Group are its
aircraft, all of which are registered in the PRC. Majority of
the Group’s other assets are also located in the PRC. Since
the Group’s aircraft are deployed flexibly across its route
network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such assets
and the related liabilities by geography and hence segment
assets and capital expenditure by geography have not been

AEBTZWARRNREEE @ b
REEMNRPE - REBHEME
EHWTIENMNAE - ARAEE 2R
HATE T RfARS B B R E Rt
SEEMMBBEERIMREEDIHE
- Bt oR R R R IREEENE
AT -

presented.

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (c) HMEDBWA ~ 2ERE > 2EE
profit, assets and liabilities to the consolidated ERSBEERSHMBERRIT
figures as reported in the consolidated financial ZEEE s E 2R -
statements.

Group
£8

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETR ARETT

Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue wMED WA LLEE 85,569,250 83,974,505

— Reclassification of business tax and — R M AT E =R

expired sales in advance of carriage HEEWANEDLE (i) (315,933) (1,571,375)
Consolidated revenue A HFURA 85,253,317 82,403,130
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEERE)

(c) HmMEDIMYA ~ 2 BAE - 2 3WE
ERSHEEESHUBRRIIR
ZEHBBZE=RAE - ()

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit, assets and liabilities to the consolidated
figures as reported in the consolidated financial

statements. (continued)

Group
%M
2012 2011
—E—=F 5
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥ T ARETFT
Profit before income tax A1
Reportable segment profit s B ATFE 3,515,656 5,167,714
— Difference in depreciation charges for — BRI ERERTME
aircraft and engines due to different BN N BB
depreciation lives MENZR (ii) (21,958) (9,288)
— Provision for post-retirement benefits —RINERA A (iif (401,901) (326,145)
_ Others —Htt (79,393) 8,420
Consolidated profit before income tax A BRTAE 3,012,404 4,840,701
Group
&8
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FffaE AR¥F T ARETT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WMEDEAELRTE 120,962,479 112,215,152
— Difference in depreciation charges for —HRAERFRTE
aircraft and engines due to different SEBUTRME Ky B E ik
depreciation lives heEn=2 (i 52,901 74,859
— Difference in intangible asset (goodwill) — R E O EMBR D EAE
arising from the acquisition of MEREE(EE)
Shanghai Airlines =2 (v) 2,760,665 2,760,665
— Others —Hb 42,518 (311,795)
Consolidated total assets ABHEERE 123,818,563 114,738,881
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For the year ended

31 December 2012 HE—T——F+_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER(E)

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (c) MEDIBWA ~ 2BRE - 2HE
profit, assets and liabilities to the consolidated ERSPEBEESHTBRRITR
figures as reported in the consolidated financial ZEHEB o EZRFAG - (HF)
statements. (continued)

Group
2012 2011
—EB—C—F —T——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥F AREBTFT
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities DEl A ERRE 95,919,837 90,069,739
— Provision for post-retirement benefits —IRIKE R R RO 2 (iii 3,345,329 2,943,428
— Others —Efth = (79,393)
Consolidated total liabilities aPfEERRE 99,265,166 92,933,774
Notes: R

(i)

(i)

The difference represents the different classification of business tax
and expired sales in advance of carriage under PRC Accounting
Standards and IFRS.

The difference is attributable to the differences in the useful lives
and residual values of aircraft and engines adopted for depreciation
purpose in prior years under PRC Accounting Standards and IFRS.
Despite the depreciation policies of these assets have been unified
under IFRS and the PRC Accounting Standards in recent years,
the changes were applied prospectively as changes in accounting
estimates which results in the differences in the carrying amounts
and related depreciation changes under IFRS and PRC Accounting
Standards.

In accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards, certain
employees’ post-retirement benefits are recognised upon payment.
Under IFRS, such post-retirement benefits under defined benefit
schemes are required to be recognised over the employees’ service
period using projected unit credit method.

The determination of the fair values of the acquisition costs and
identifiable assets and liabilities of Shanghai Airlines acquired is
different under IFRS and the PRC Accounting Standards, which
results in difference in the intangibles/goodwill recognised arising from
the acquisition.
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8. GAIN ON FAIR VALUE MOVEMENTS OF 8. $T&TAAL EEEF IS
DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group
58
2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART R ARETT
Gain arising from fair value movements of PTAETAEA R BEZHKE
derivatives financial instruments
— Interest rate swap and forward foreign —FEFRAINERHAE 4
exchange contracts (Note 40(a) & (b)) (FizE40(@) & (b)) 15,755 19,541
— Crude oil option contracts — RS A 9,076 67,310
24,831 86,851
9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS 9. I& - #HalEh
Group
&5
2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances TE& - Fe - LKL 7,007,883 5,992,672
Employee welfare and benefits BEEEF 428,791 335,464
Defined contribution retirement schemes TE RN B 5T (7E38(a))

(Note 38()) 1,262,017 1,142,167
Post-retirement benefits (Note 38(b)) 1B ERIREEFE R (M7E38() 581,775 478,502
Staff housing fund (Note 39(a)) BTIRAREES (KME39@) 607,336 544,674
Staff housing allowance (Note 39(b)) B T{EFEAL (MI7E39()) 171,241 171,375

10,059,043 8,664,354
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9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (continued) 9. IT& - #& KEF(E)

(a) Emoluments of directors and supervisors (a) EEREENMS
Details of the emoluments paid to the Company’s directors and YA ARIEERESENNS S TYISE -

supervisors are as follows:

2012
—E-—F
Salaries and
Allowance Bonus Total
e R TEAL wE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETR AR¥T T
Executive Directors HITESE
Liu Shaoyong* 24REE - - -
Ma Xulun 5w 697 - 697
Xu Zhao* e = = =
Gu Jiadan*e*** Eﬁﬁi:*&*** - - -
Li Yangmin FER 625 - 625
Tang Bing** fE B 592 - 592
Luo Zhuping ERT 402 - 402
Independent non-executive BIAFHTES

Directors

Liu Keya 2508 97 - 97
Wu Xiaogen REER = = -
Ji Weidong EST 120 - 120
Shao Ruiging BhEm 120 - 120
Supervisors E=
Yu Faming* FIAIE* - - =
Xi Sheng*&*** ’%E*&*** - - -
Liu Jiashun EIEJE - - -
Feng Jinxiong B 396 - 396
Yan Taisheng IR 344 - 344
Total a5 3,393 - 3,393
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9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (continued) 9. IT& - #& MEF(E)

(@) Emoluments of directors and supervisors (a) EEREENEHE(E)
(continued)
2011
—T—F
Salaries and
Allowance Bonus Total
e KRG TEAL #axE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKETTT ARETT AREETF T
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Shaoyong* 2R B~ - - -
Ma Xulun 5w 670 - 670
Li Yangmin ZER 636 - 636
Luo Zhuping T 559 - 559
L| Jun*&** $E*&H¢ — — _
Luo Chaogeng*&** TR B R ar* - - -
Independent non-executive BIAFHITES

Directors

Liu Keya 250 E 97 - 97
Wu Xiaogen REER = - _
Ji Weidong ESET 120 - 120
Shao Ruiging BlEm 120 - 120
Supervisors E=
Yu Faming* FEE* - - -
Feng Jinxiong B 366 - 366
Yan Taisheng ML 317 - 317
Liu Jiashun e - - -
Liu Jiangbo*&* BI5T o ex* - - -
Xu Zhao* RAE* - - -
Total a% 2,885 - 2,885

- AARMHNEE  EEREMITBRARAA

These directors and officials of the Company received emoluments

from CEA Holding, the parent company, part of which were in NE REMEARERSE - WHE QR
respect of their services to the Company and its subsidiaries. No EEMEELIEMES - AR ARIEEZRA
apportionment has been made as it is impracticable to apportion this HARREEMNRG D B A S E KA B R
amount between their services to the Group and their services to CEA S8 - Bttt o R EEILRP R ©
Holding.

*  These directors and officials of the Company retired or resigned ** ARAHHESE EEREMITHRAERZ
during the year ended 31 December 2011. T——FERRNEER -

**  These directors and officials of the Company were newly appointed o KRN ES BEERHMITBABRZ
during the year ended 31 December 2012, T FEHEEMT -

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no directors and REE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HIEFE "

supervisors waived their emoluments (2011: Nil). BESREEHEEMS(ZT—F : &) -
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9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (continued) 9. IT& - #& KEF(E)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EuBREHFAENHES
None of the Company’s directors and supervisors was among the RZZE—ZFE ' ARARAUZRFAER
five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year ended 31 REEMN—UAEERES(ZE——F:
December 2012 (2011:Nil). The emoluments payable to the five ) o A= AR S BERT ¢

highest paid individuals are as follows:

Group
=@
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances IE - %< - CAKMER 6,407 4,910

The emoluments fell within the following band: e &ZBIAT :

Number of individuals

A
2012 2011
—E-—=F —T—F
Below HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T A T 5 5
During the year ended 31 December 2012, no emoluments REBEZZT——F+=-A=+—HLFE -
were paid by the Group to the Directors, supervisors and the five REBEBBEAFRAEMAER TE
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining F EFdAUsEaFAEEAME (=T

the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office (2011: Nil). ——F ) o
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10. IMPAIRMENT CHARGES/(REVERSALS) 10. BER(ERK 7 (8[E)
Group
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment charges HERITRESHRELEES
on flight equipment spare parts (Note (a)) (%) (103,337) 26,100

Impairment charges on assets held for sale BEFEEEREGE®D)

(Note (b)) - 612,216

Impairment charge on property, EEEERE

plant and equipment 89,870 -
(13,467) 638,316

Note: e

(@)  After acquisition of Shanghai Airines Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Airlines”) in 2010, (8 T —TFWELEMRGOE - NARRER T HEER
the Company has reviewed the composition of its aircraft fleet, aiming to HERK A R L PR AR - (B TT R R AL © ANAR]
simplify the models of aircraft and maximise operation efficiencies. In 2012, EZT——FEE TARKEITHE A - WiTE
the Company has defined the main model of aircraft for future operation and REZT—NFE=T— A FHEE KA AR -
signed series of contracts to dispose other models of aircraft between 2014 WEF T —RINEEHZ - Bt - REBE=T
and 2016. As a consequence, the Company has reassessed the provision ——F+-A=1t—HILFE ' ARAREHTEHT
for the flight equipment spare parts in relation to the main models of aircraft = SRRV RN BE B A B TR B T B (B 2
and also the spare parts in relation to the aircraft to be disposed, and & WIREFHMEHARE R 71.03F TR E%ERE -
reversed provision of RMB103 million during the year ended 31 December
2012 in accordance with the reassessment results.

(b)  In December 2011, the Group management entered into an agreement b)) R=ZT—F+=-f AEEEBEHE-—F=H%FF]
with a third party to dispose certain aircraft and related engines in the BEWZ  EARARIEARNEHEHEXNTIRSHE
forthcoming 12 months in view of high maintenance costs of those aircraft. FREFMZESE R T —F+=-_A=+—8 "
The aircraft and engines has been classified as assets held for sale at 31 ZERBREDRE RS BRABTERFEEE - &%
December 2011, and an impairment loss of approximately RMB612 million EREREEBETNLEERNRESBHAENF
was made against those aircraft and engines by reference to the contracted B W SRR EBMTRREERBARKE.12
selling price less estimated cost to sell (Note 44). B (fiaEad) -

470 K13
11. OPERATING PROFIT 1. &L= F)E

Operating profit is stated after charging the following items:

EENBIAIR THIEER 5

Group
£

2012 2011

—B-=F 5

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETT

Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 38,404 26,167
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YIE - IS REREITE

— owned —BE 5,073,307 4,523,903

- leased (finance leases) —THE(REEE) 2,397,541 2,361,919

Amortisation of lease prepayments TEf TR E SR 47,658 41,777

Consumption of flight equipment spare parts TSR BT HEFE 747,268 739,663

(Reversal)/provision of impairment of trade and ~ JEUERF
other receivables H b FORECRE) A (6,872) 161,048
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN S 12,880 16,100
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12. FINANCE INCOME 12. BRI
Group
&5
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARETT
Exchange gains, net (Note) FE e (FERE) 147,836 1,872,369
Interest income FEWA 200,765 151,633
348,601 2,024,002
Note: FTRE
The exchange gain primarily related to the translation of the Group’s foreign EHWaEZRRRAEEINEGT ENRERERER
currency denominated borrowings and obligations under finance leases. fE RO HE S i -
13. FINANCE COSTS 13. I
Group
£8
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Interest on bank borrowings HRITIEIFE 1,359,644 1,379,452
Interest relating to obligations under RIEHERERE
finance leases 411,547 268,487
Interest on bonds and debentures BHFERMESFH B 149,425 40,833
Interest relating to notes payable ENZEFRS 73,855 34,289
1,994,471 1,723,061
Less: amounts capitalised into advanced B BANME BTRETER A
payments on acquisition of aircraft (Note) SR (FEE) (296,997) (253,027)
amounts capitalised into construction in B ABERETRN
progress (Note) SR (FEE) - (7,307)
1,697,474 1,462,727
Note: TR
The average interest rate used for interest capitalisation is 3.73% per annum for BE_ZT——F+-A=+—HLFE  EXNMFBHRA
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 3.84%). KT FERER3.78% (=T ——4 : 3.84%) °
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14. INCOME TAX 14, FiIE

Income tax charged to the consolidated income statement is as follows:

SEARGIRERMBIADT

Group
EE

2012 2011
e 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARET T
Provision for PRC income tax BT R 214,944 255,947
Deferred taxation (Note 37) IEXERIE (10,143) 8,282
204,801 264,229

Prior to 2008, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (the “Pudong
Subsidiaries”) located in Pudong District, Shanghai, were entitled to a
reduced rate of 15% pursuant to the preferential tax policy in Pudong
District, Shanghai. Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), which was approved by the
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 and became effective
from 1 January 2008, the Company and the Pudong Subsidiaries
are entitled to a transitional arrangement to gradually increase the
applicable corporate income tax rate to 25% over five years from 2008.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the corporate income tax rate
applicable to the Company and the Pudong Subsidiaries was 25% (2011:
24%). Other subsidiaries of the Company, except for those incorporated
in Hong Kong, which are subject to Hong Kong corporate income tax
rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%), are generally subject to the PRC standard
corporate tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%) under the New CIT Law.

Pursuant to the “Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State
Administration of Taxation and the General Administration of Customs
on Issues Concerning Relevant Tax Policies for Enhancing the
Implementation of Western Region Development Strategy” (Cai Shui
[2011] No.58), and other series of tax regulations, the enterprises,
located in the western regions and engaged in the industrial activities as
listed in the “Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in Western Regions”,
will be entitled to a reduced income tax rate of 15% from 2011 to 2020
upon approval from tax authorities. In 2012, China Eastern Yunnan
Airlines Co., Ltd. (“CEA Yunnan”), a subsidiary of the Group, obtained
approval from tax authorities and enjoy the reduced tax rate of 15% from
1 January 2011.
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14. INCOME TAX (continued)

15.

16.

Tax on the Group’s consolidated income statement differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the standard taxation rate of
the Company as follows:

14, FIA(E)

REBEF A HABERABIR - EARFEAAER
B A 2 B AR DL AR A Z AN T

Group
£
2012 2011
—E-=F %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARETT
Profit before income tax R A5 B A 3,012,404 4,840,701
Adjusted by: FHE
Share of result of associates and jointly BhBENR A SRR MEE
controlled entities (133,169) (106,872)
2,879,235 4,733,829
Tax calculated at the tax rate of 25% 1225%FH KT EH 15T & A

(2011: 24%) (20114F : 24%) 719,809 1,136,119
Effect attributable to subsidiaries charged M B A A115%8%16.5%FT 1S Fi i R s/ £

at tax rates of 15% or 16.5% (20114F : 25%5%16.5% )

(2011: 25% or 16.5%) (48,669) 10,637
Income not subject to tax ERHBUA = (12,426)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A H 2 & F 12,989 31,858
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {8 LA B FE R ERIRLET & &

Eokybidatizt (654,996) (1,222,570)
Unrecognised tax losses for the year INEERFHERELER EENTISER 210,777 95,291
(Realisation of)/Unrecognised deductible REE(BR) RERRLEH &=

temporary differences for the year RS =2 (35,109) 225,320

Tax charge HREEH 204,801 264,229

The Group operates international flights to overseas destinations. There
was no material overseas taxation for the year ended 31 December
2012 and 2011, as there are avoidance of double tax treaties between
the PRC and the corresponding jurisdictions (including Hong Kong)
relating to aviation businesses.

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
RMB2,661 million (2011: RMB4,523 million).
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17.

18.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB2,954 million
(2011: RMB4,576 million) and the weighted average number of shares of
11,276,538,860 (2011: 11,276,538,860) in issue during the year ended
31 December 2012. The Company has no potentially dilutive option or
other instruments relating to the ordinary shares.

AR

17. tHXJ’I&JIIl

BRERNE DIEA AR EEREFEAR
295418 (=T ——F : ARK45.76(87L) FIR
FABEFITHINE T AR E11,276,538,860% (=
T ——1F : 11,276,538,860% ) 5t & - A1 A) I &
BT RRMERESEEmTA

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8. MILEE
Group
&5
Goodwill Computer
(Note (a)) software Total
e
(F¥(@)) B =Y st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARET T

Cost Jo %
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE—F—F—H 11,269,695 217,411 11,487,106
Additions nNE - 46,381 46,381
At 31 December 2011 N-—ZE—F+=-_HA=+—H 11,269,695 263,792 11,633,487
At 1 January 2012 R-ZZE——F—H—H 11,269,695 263,792 11,533,487
Additions NE - 133,913 133,913
At 31 December 2012 N-EB——HF+=-B=+—8H 11,269,695 397,705 11,667,400
Accumulated amortisation E-5E £
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H - 153,730 153,730
Charge for the year PN - 26,167 26,167
At 31 December 2011 R_Z—F+—-_A=+—H - 179,897 179,897
At 1 January 2012 NW—E——F—H—H - 179,897 179,897
Charge for the year ANFH - 38,404 38,404
At 31 December 2012 N-—EBE——HE+=-_B=+—8H - 218,301 218,301
Net book amount BREFE
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE—F+_-_A=+—H 11,269,695 83,895 11,353,590
At 31 December 2012 N-—EB——H&+=-B=+—H 11,269,695 179,404 11,449,099
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

BRI BRA

8. BILEE(E)

Company
AT
Goodwill Computer
(Note (a)) software Total
mE
(F%(a)) B e et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR¥TT

Cost R
At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—H—H 11,269,695 161,095 11,430,790
Additions AE - 41,842 41,842
At 31 December 2011 RZT—F+=A=+—H 11,269,695 202,937 11,472,632
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H 11,269,695 202,937 11,472,632
Additions NE - 122,762 122,762
At 31 December 2012 R=-ZF——=—+=-A=+—A” 11,269,695 325,699 11,595,394
Accumulated amortisation E-5g: 0
At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—H—H - 107,491 107,491
Charge for the year IRERE S - 21,767 21,767
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=A=+—H - 129,258 129,258
At 1 January 2012 R-ZT——F—F—H - 129,258 129,258
Charge for the year PN - 34,330 34,330
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H - 163,588 163,588
Net book amount BRTER{E
At 31 December 2011 RZZE—F+=—A=+—H 11,269,695 73,679 11,343,374
At 31 December 2012 R-s——F+=-H=+—H 11,269,695 162,111 11,431,806
Notes: FTRE

The balance represents the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Shanghai
Airlines. The goodwill is attributable to strengthening the competitiveness of
the Group’s airlines operation business, attaining synergy through integration
of the resources and providing the evolution of Shanghai international air
transportation center. For the purpose of impairment assessment, the
goodwill is allocated to the airline operation business, the principal cash-
generating-unit (“CGU”) that the Group operates and benefits from the
acquisition.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is principally based on the Company’s
fair value, which is determined by reference to the observable quoted market
price of the Company’s shares less the costs of disposal. No impairment for
the goodwill is required based on the Company’s fair value as at the balance
sheet date.
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. M5 - RN RME

Group
5
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
M BRBRERTRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand Construction
Owned Leases Buildings  equipment in progress Total
NaE Hitst -
BE HERE BF HERRE ERIR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR%TRT ARETn AR¥Trn AR¥TR AR%T:R
Cost BAE
At 1 January 2012 N=—E——F—f—H 59,860,668 37,640,743 5,237,670 5,632,102 2,139,160 110,510,343
Transfers from construction in progress #7£2 T128 A - - 1,584,745 69,657  (1,654,402) -
Transfers from advanced payments  #¢TRIETER ZEE A
on acquisition of aircraft (Note 21) (FizE21) 4,716,802 1,982,177 - - - 6,698,979
Sales and finance leased back ERpERME (1,583,999) 1,583,999 - - - -
Additions R 5,443,597 2,862,007 3,721 562,357 1,576,395 10,448,077
Other decrease HitpiD (25,656)  (664,141) = = - (689,797)
Transfer to other long term assets BEHEMEHEE - - - - (55,506) (55,506)
Disposals RBE (906,650) (486,316) (7,079) (195,284) - (1,595,329)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—§+-A=t-H 67,504,762 42,918,469 6,819,057 6,068,832 2,005,647 125,316,767
Accumulated depreciation RitiE
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—A—H 22,677,254 8,391,720 1,293,602 3,538,955 - 35,901,531
Charge for the year AEEHE 4,394,601 2,397,541 234,749 443,957 - 17,470,848
Sales and finance leased back ERETRME (32,363) 32,363 - - - -
Disposals RBE (855,457) (486,315) (5,062) (148,301) - (1,495,135)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—§+-A=t-H 26,184,035 10,335,309 1,523,289 3,834,611 - 41,877,244
Impairment REERE
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—A—H 721,101 107,770 - 550 21,596 851,017
Charge for the year AEEFHE 89,870 = - = = 89,870
Disposals BRE (20,125) - - - - (20,125)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—fF+=-A=1+—H 790,846 107,770 - 550 21,596 920,762
Net book amount BREFE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—%+-A=+-H 40,529,881 32,475,390 5,295,768 2,233,671 1,984,051 82,518,761
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—HF—H 36,462,313 29,141,253 3,944,068 2,092,597 2,117,564 73,757,795
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Bt

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

19. M5 - W LRE(E)

il

Group
5]
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
M - B RRITRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand  Construction
Owned Leases Buildings  equipment in progress Total
VAREE Hips
BE HERE BF  WEREE T2 Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARETRT AR%ETT ARETE ARETR
Cost ﬁEZNE
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——%—f—H 55,025,526 36,728,572 4,881,463 5,256,126 1,063,659 102,955,346
Transfers from construction in progress 1&&@1&@;/\ - - 310,006 179,927 (489,933)
Transfers from advanced payments  #ARIETERT & A (Fifzt21)
on acquisition of aircraft (Note 21) 1,691,142 2,230,271 = = - 3,821,413
Additions NE 4,022,991 2,967,931 78,279 533,186 1,720,738 9,323,125
Transfer to assets held for sale EEREHELSE
(Note 44) (Pizta4) - (3,863,025) = = - (3863,025)
Transfer to lease prepayments BEEREER - - - - (153,880)  (153,880)
Disposals BE (778991)  (423,006) (32,078 (337,137) (1,424)  (1,572,636)
At 31 December 2011 R-_E——F+-A=1—H 59,860,668 37,640,743  5237,670 5,632,102 2,139,160 110,510,343
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 January 2011 R=F—F—F—H 19,584,670 8,855,680 1,125,373 3,349,386 - 32,915,009
Charge for the year AEEHE 3871675 2,361,919 177,049 475,179 - 6885822
Transfer to assets held for sale BRREGELE
(Note 44) (R - (2,402,873 - - - (2,402,873
Disposals EE (778991)  (423,006) (8820)  (285610) - (1,498,427)
At 31 December 2011 R=ZE——F+-A=1+—H 22,677,254 8,391,720 1,293,602 3,538,955 - 35,901,531
Impairment REEE
At 1 January 2011 R=—Z—%—F—H 721,101 473,393 - 550 23,020 1,218,064
Transfer to assets held for sale BRRBARELSE
(Note 44) GEZY - (365,629) - - - (365629)
Disposals HitR g = = = = (1,424) (1,424)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+-_A=1+—H 721,101 107,770 - 550 21,596 851,017
Net book amount BREFE
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+-A=+—H 36,462,313 29,141,253 3,944,068 2,092,597 2,117,564 73,757,795
At 1 January 2011 R=ZE—F—F—H 34,719,855 27,399,499 3,756,090 1,906,190 1,040,639 68,822,273
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ « M2 020 (48)
(continued)

Company
AT
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
H - RBRRRTRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand Construction
Owned Leases Buildings  equipment in progress Total
D= Hitehpsk
RE HERE BT HBERRE  ERIR A&t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR ARBTRT ARMTR ARETR AR%T:R

Cost RAME
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—F—H 39,657,570 29,237,581 2,706,474 3,295,543 994,541 75,891,709
Transfers from construction in progress #EZ TiZE A - - 50,510 807 (51,317) -
Transfers from advanced payments & FRHLTEFTFEEA

on acquisition of aircraft (Note 21) (FrzE21) 4,716,802 1,982,177 - - - 6,698,979
Sales and finance leased back ERRERM (1,583,999) 1,583,999 - - - -
Additions nNE 3,565,109 2,741,934 3,149 360,683 559,260 7,230,135
Invests to subsidiaries as capital BRENKBAR

contribution (1,393,517) - - (52,460) - (1,445,977)
Transfer to subsidiaries EANBAA (309,240)  (1,929,542) - - - (2,238,782)
Disposals RE (533429)  (334,251) (1,093)  (79,831) - (949,504)
Other decrease HAE - (537,294) - - - (537,294)
At 31 December 2012 R-B-——&+=-A=1+—-H 44,119,296 32,744,604 2,758,140 3,524,742 1,502,484 84,649,266
Accumulated depreciation RIE
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—HF—H 15,139,068 6,446,397 751,256 2,474,624 - 24,811,345
Charge for the year REEHE 2,839,275 1,882,829 96,758 247,833 - 5,066,695
Sales and finance leased back ERREMM (32,363) 32,363 - - - -
Invests to subsidiaries as capital BRENHBAR

contribution (566,468) - - (42120 - (608,588)
Transfer to subsidiaries LN YN (23,677)  (579,193) - - - (602,870)
Disposals RE (502,365)  (334,251) (1,523)  (77,139) - (915278)
At 31 December 2012 R-B-——&+=-H=1+—-H 16,853,470 7,448,145 846,491 2,603,198 - 27,751,304
Impairment REEE
At 1 January 2012 R-—E——F—F—H 721,101 107,770 - - 5,200 834,071
Impairment charge for the year REEHE 48,718 - - - - 48,718
At 31 December 2012 R-—B-—#+-F=1+-R 769,819 107,770 - - 5,200 882,789
Net book amount RREFE
At 31 December 2012 WoB-—#+-P=+-HF 26496007 25188680 1,911,649 921,544 1,497,284 56,015,173
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—-H—H 23,797,401 22,683,414 1,955,218 820,919 989,341 50,246,293
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

10. VD2 - #

as M ikt (48D

Company
NG
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
M - BERRITRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand  Construction
Owned Leases Buildings  equipment in progress Total
LARRE Hith#z -
BE HERE BF WERREE T2 Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFrT ARETR
Cost BAE
At1 January 2011 R-E——%—f—H 41,725,668 30,512,148 2,522,648 3,225,784 823,081 78,809,329
Transfers from construction in progress #72 T128 A - - 154,235 47,500 (201,735) -
Transfers from advanced payments ¢ HETE T3R8 A
on acquisition of aircraft (Note 21) (BzE21) 1,684,261 2,230,271 - - - 3814532
Additions HNE 2,853,247 2,312,515 55,710 336,622 956,481 6,514,575
Transfer to assets held for sale ERREREEE
(Note 44) (PFisE44) - (3,863,025) - - - (3,863,025
Invests to a subsidiary as capital BRERHB AR
contribution (5,537,968) - (16,500)  (138,085)  (429,406)  (6,121,959)
Transfer to subsidiaries BAMERR (301,521)  (1,654,184) = = - (1,955,705)
Transfer to lease prepayments EREAAER - - - - (153,880)  (153,880)
Disposals BE (666,117)  (300,144) ©619  (176278) - (1,152,158)
At 31 December 2011 R=F—F+-A=+—H 39,657,570 29,237,581 2,706,474 3,295,543 994,541 75,891,709
Accumulated depreciation REiNE
At 1 January 2011 R=E——%—F—H 15,161,832 7,595,373 661,402 2,413,261 - 25,831,868
Charge for the year AEEHE 2,745,666 1,922,252 94,444 294,242 - 5,056,604
Transfer to assets held for sale BEREHELE
(Note 44) (HyzE44) - (2,402,873 - - - (2,402,873
Invests to a subsidiary as capital BERHWBAR
contribution (2,102,313) - (1918)  (96,946) - (2,201,177)
Transfer to subsidiaries EANRBAR - (368,211) - - - (368,211)
Disposals RE (666,117)  (300,144) (2672)  (135933) - (1,104,866)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE—&+-A=1—H 15,139,068 6,446,397 751,256 2,474,624 - 24,811,345
Impairment REEE
At 1 January 2011 R-E——%—Hf—H 721,101 473,393 - - 5,200 1,199,694
Transfer to assets held for sale BRREGELE
(Note 44) (ista4) - (365629 = = - (365629
At 31 December 2011 R=F—F+=-A=+—H 721,101 107,770 - - 5,200 834,071
Net book amount RREFE
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+-A=+—H 23,797,401 22,683,414 1,955,218 820,919 989,341 50,246,293
At 1 January 2011 R=E—%—f—H 25,842,735 22443382 1,861,246 812,523 817,881 51,777,767
Note: TR

(@  Asat 31 December 2012, certain aircraft and buildings owned by the Group
and the Company with an aggregate net book amount of approximately
RMB22,544 million and RMB15,078 million, respectively (2011:
approximately RMB18,317 million and RMB10,005 million, respectively)
were pledged as collateral under certain loan arrangements (Note 34).
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20. LEASE PREPAYMENTS

21.

20. FENHEER

Group Company
58 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
- =—T 4% c-®B--f =—T &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETR ARETT
Cost A
At 1 January —A—H#&#% 1,796,276 1,696,575 659,611 551,785
Additions hE 358,232 159,306 304,935 157,547
Disposals RE - (59,605) - (49,721)
At 31 December +-—A=+—H#&H% 2,154,508 1,796,276 964,546 659,611
Accumulated amortisation ESE
At 1 January — A —B#&% 325,004 290,419 162,310 152,925
Charge for the year IRE S 47,658 44,777 21,090 15,019
Disposals RE - (7,192 - (5,634)
At 31 December +-—A=+—HB#&H% 372,662 325,004 183,400 162,310
Net book amount BRERE
At 31 December +—-A=+—H#&% 1,781,846 1,471,272 781,146 497,301

Lease prepayments represent unamortised prepayments for land use
rights.

The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and the majority
of these land use rights have terms of 50 years from the date of grant.
As at 31 December 2012, the majority of these land use rights had
remaining terms ranging from 34 to 50 years (2011: from 35 to 50
years).

TR E R R B SR T b E AR &R
18 o

KNEEFTA RN EAEEMRPE - A H L
HE B EERAEBBEERRARETE - R
T——F+—-_A=+—8  APHHLHERHE
FesrlFRFHA=TONER +HF(ZT——F :
=t+HER+E) -

ADVANCED PAYMENTS ON ACQUISITION OF 21. #7817k
AIRCRAFT
Group Company
&5 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——%F —E-—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARET T ARETT
At 1 January —A—B#&&% 10,968,344 6,356,602 10,195,340 6,231,270
Payment during the year REZ 7,328,529 8,180,128 6,947,846 7,533,475
Interest capitalised (Note 13) EARMEFE(HIFE13) 206,997 253,027 289,692 245127
Transfers to property, plant and EEYZE MR REE
equipment (Note 19) (HH519) (6,698,979)  (3,821,413)  (6,698,979) (3,814,532
At 31 December +—A=+—H#&% 11,894,891 10,968,344 10,733,899 10,195,340

Included in the Group’s and the Company’s balance as at 31 December
2012, the amounts of accumulated interest capitalised are approximately
RMB630 million and RMB623 million respectively (2011: RMB632 million
and RMB617 million).
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. BB A A]

Company
AE]
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
Investment, at cost A BB ANME 10,455,900 7,104,106

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, majority of which are limited REBNETEWB AR BERBKS N EIENE
liability companies established and operating in the PRC, are as follows: BEEAT @ HARBERNMAT :
Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
NEER R H R A &R PR 4B TEER
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=f -T % <c-¥-=f -3 —F&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT
China Eastern Airlines Yunnan Co., PRC 3,661,540 3,661,540 90.36% 95.97%  Provision of airline services
Ltd. (‘CEA Yunnan’) (Note (a)) 2 August 2011 TR 7= fR A
HERAMEERARAR HE
([RMERE ) (FE(@) —T——F
NAZH
China Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. PRC 3,000,000 3,000,000 51% 51%  Provision of cargo carriage
(“China Cargo") 22 July 1998 services
HEEEMEERAR(HEMR]) +E RESMERRY
—NN\EF
tA-t+=H
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co.,  PRC 1,750,000 600,000 72% 96%  Provision of airline services
Ltd. (“CEA Wuhan’) (Note (b)) 16 August 2002 TRz IR
FERAMEREEREER HE
(RMEE]) (D) —TTH
NA+A<A
China United Airlines Co., Ltd. PRC 1,320,000 100,000 100% 80%  Provision of airline services
(“United AirIines”) (Note (c)) 21 September 1984 R TR
PR EMEERAR([FBf]) HE
—N\mE
nA=t+—8H
Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics  PRC 1,150,000 200,000 100% 70%  Provision of cargo logistics
Co., Ltd. (‘Eastern Logistics”) 23 August 2004 services
(Note (d) i RESEMRIRS
PERFERDRARRR “TTME
([REWR]) NA=t=H
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

22 IRE BT (4

=]
E)

Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
ARER R A EMER FEAE R TEEHR
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=f “T—% ¥ T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARETRL
China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., PRC 2,000,000 2,000,000 62.56% 62.56%  Provision of airline services
Ltd. (“CEA Jiangsu’) 3 May 1993 R RS
FERAMETIHERAR 211
([RASIE ) —NN=F
hA=H
Shanghai Eastern Flight Training PRC 608,443 608,443 100% 100%  Provision of flight training
Co., Ltd. (“Flight Training’) 18 December 1995 services
PERARITEIERAR Rl RERIT SRR
([R5 1) —NEF
+=ZR+TNH
Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd. PRC 500,000 500,000 100% 100%  Provision of airline services
FEMERR AR 16 March 2010 Rz IR
HE
—ETEF
=R+RH
Eastern Airlines Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC 70,000 70,000 86% 86%  Provision of hotel services
RMABERRAR 18 March 1998 primarily to crew
H members
—ANF FERBRITABRM
=RA+NH EIERRTS
Shanghai Airlines Tours PRC 50,090 50,090 100% 86%  Tour operations, travel and
International (Group) Co., Ltd 29 August 1992 air ticketing agency and
(“Shanghai Airlines Tours”) H transportation
HEmEERRE(EE)ERAR —hAF RERENRZEZBRER
([ LABH®R]) NAZ+AE iR
Eastern Business Airlines PRC 50,000 50,000 100% 100%  Provision of airlines
Service Co., Ltd. 27 September 2008 consultation services
RAABMERB AR HE FRREMEELHES
—ZTTN\F
AA=++H

Notes:

(@) In 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the People’s
Government of Yunnan Province to (“Yunnan SASAC”) establish CEA
Yunnan with registered capital of RMB3,662 million, in which the Company
holds 65% interests. As at 31 December 2012, the Company has
contributed all its share of RMB2,380 million in cash and net assets; Yunnan
SASAC has contributed its share of RMB254 million in cash, of which
RMB154 million was injected in 2012,
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

22. WENHB AR (&)

Notes: (continued) = (/)

() In 2012, the existed shareholders of CEA Wuhan and certain new ) EMRZENRERBRRMELFREERER =T —
shareholders decided to increase the registered capital of CEA Wuhan FERMEE 2 TMERE ARES.00E TIE T
from RMB600 million to RMB1,750 million. As at 31 December 2012, the ARBATE0EBT - BE-T——F+=-A=1+—
Company has contributed capital of RMB525 million in cash, among which H  ARBILBRSHEARKES25ET - EFAR
RMB237 million was recognized as registered capital and RMB288 million BOJTIEITERAEMER - ARK2.88 @Eﬁﬁw
was credited to the share premium of CEA Wuhan; and the other investors BRRAHE - HigEE HE ARES.00187T
have contributed capital of RMB300 million, among which RMB288 million R ARD 88{B e AEMEA - /\Eﬁ%o.m,%ﬁ
was recognized as registered capital and RMB12 million was recognized as VEBIRAEHE o Tk FalyFE 1% NARIFERME
share premium of CEA Wuhan. Upon completion of aforementioned capital R IRRELL B FH96% IR 72% ©
injections, the share percentage of the Company in CEA Wuhan was diluted
from 96% to 72%.

(©)  In 2012, the Company acquired 20% of interest in United Airlines owned (© ADRRAR-ZE——FUARKO.84ETHHBESE
by non-controlling interest with total consideration of RMB84 million, and T R EER20% B SR I A RS HE A 0 R B AR 2 o
United Airlines became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company after RSN AR KB B AR ATINEEFAT ° X
the acquisition. The difference of RMB41 million between the consideration - By 3 (B B FE P S M A e A MR R B AT AR (BB
and the net book value of non-controlling interest as at the acquisition date MZEFETARBOAMBILITR T EARERE - AR 7]
has been debited to capital reserve. Subsequent to the acquisition, the T ERE—PATBNEEARBIATELES
Company contributed RMB317 million in cash and RMB903 million in net MARKQ.OMBILFEE -
assets into United Airlines.

(d) In 2012, the Company acquired 30% interest in Eastern Logistic owned ) ARFR-ZZ—-—FUARKES2ETTHEENSG
by non-controlling interest with total consideration of RMB562 million, and T R Y7 30% e8 12 il M A am MR A WO SRR WA A
Eastern Logistic became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company after = REVARARBERKARNARNEETA
the acquisition. The difference of RMB449 million between the consideration 7] o ZATAY B IR B M S A MR B AR AR T
and the net book value of non-controlling interests as at the acquisition BEBNEZHETARBL49E TP T EARHRE ©
date has been debited to capital reserve. Subsequent to the acquisition, the ARARERBEEE—FTHREYRETE ARES0
Company contributed RMB950 million in cash into Eastern Logistic. BTIRE -

5 4
23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23, IWENEtZ A A
Group Company
£8 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —Z2——F ZE-Zf %
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT AR¥F T ARETT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEEHRENKAE 620,329 622,768 578,836 578,836
Share of results/reserves B RE B 213,143 214,821 - =
833,472 837,589 578,836 578,836
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The movement on investments in associates is as follows: BREREE R AIMEEINT :
Group Company
&= AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F —E--F —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%¥®TR AREBTT
At 1 January —A—B#&# 837,589 807,669 578,836 578,836
Share of results of associates R A AR 103,209 75,435 = -
Share of revaluation on B AT
available-for-sale investments Frist it B8 8
held by an associate HA R EE 2,188 (2,701) - -
Disposal of associates el UNG| (2,439) - - -
Dividend received/declared during the  ZAREUZI S5
year f% 8 (107,075) (42,814) - -
At 31 December +ZA=+—RH#&% 833,472 837,589 578,836 578,836
Particulars of the principal associates, which are limited liability ARE B T B ENRIHE AP BRK RS ENER
companies established and operating in the PRC, are as follows: EERQR)  HEBERAOT -
Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
ARERB R H R A H EMER PG TEXEH
2012 2011 2012 2011
%% %% =-B--f T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARETR
Eastern Air Group Finance Co., Ltd.  PRC 400,000 400,000 25% 25%  Provision of financial
(‘Eastern Finance”) 6 December 1995 services to Group
RMEEIBERETAR HE companies of CEA
([RMBAH ) —NAF Holding
TZHARA AHERMEE TELF
REAE RS
China Eastern Air Catering PRC 350,000 350,000 45% 45%  Provision of air catering
Investment Co., Ltd. 17 November 2003 services
RAMERMIZERRAR HE REMEERRS
—TT=
+—A+tA
Shanghai Pratt & Whitney Aircraft PRC USD39,500  USD39,500 51% 51%  Provision of maintenance
Engine Maintenance Company 28 March 2008 of aircraft, engine and
Limited (‘Shanghai P&W”) (Note(a)) other related components
ERERRBESREEERAR  —TTN\F maintenance services
([LBEE])(FE@E) =A=t+NR IRELRG - BRMAHE M
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(a) In 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with United Technologies
International Corporation (“Technologies International”) to establish
Shanghai Pratt & Whitney Aircraft Engine Maintenance Company Limited
(“Shanghai P&W”). Shanghai P&W has a registered capital of approximately
USD40 million in which the Company holds a 51% interests. According to
the shareholder’s agreement, Technologies International has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies and in this respect the Company
accounts for Shanghai P&W as an associate.
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. RENME A TFI(&)
Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
R BRI A &R P R 47 TEER
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--f T4 ZB-Zf "T——&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETRT
New Shanghai International Tower PRC 166,575 166,575 20% 20%  Provision of property
Co., Ltd. 17 November 1992 development and
¥ EEBEBAERRAR H management
—N=F REZFERRY
+—A+tA
Eastern Aviation Import & Export Co., PRC 80,000 80,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Ltd (‘Eastern Import & Export”) 9 June 1993 equipment, spare parts
RAEMEELABRAR FE purchase
(REELHD]) —N=F =R - RITRER
~ANR RITRBZEHES
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., PRC 51,369 51,369 27% 27%  Provision of traveling and
Ltd. (“Dongmei Travel”) 17 October 2004 accommodation agency
PEREMEREERA H services
([REME]) —TTNE RAHRIE OB B AR IE
TA++H R
Eastern Aviation Advertising Service  PRC 50,000 50,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Co., Ltd. (‘Eastern Advertising”) 04 March 1986 advertising agency
PERIMEEREERAR FE services
([RAEE]) —NN\RE HERBMEEE £
=RmA
Shanghai Hongpu Civil Airport PRC 25,000 25,000 30% 30%  Provision of cable and
Communication Co., Ltd. 18 October 2002 wireless communication
DBIERBRSRERRAR H services
—ZTF REB SR EGERE
TA+/\B
Collins Aviation Maintenance Service PRC USD7,000 USD7,000 35% 35%  Provision of airline electronic
Shanghai Ltd. 27 September 2002 product maintenance
DRIz EEREERA H services
—ET REMSE FEREERS
AAZ++tH
Notes: e

@ R=ZTNF ARREXEBARMBERERA
Al([BERMERR ) IRERT T L8 L EREED
BEEERARUATEME LBEE]) - LEEE
AEMEARROAMESRTT * ARAFFAE %A A5 %HIAR
# - RBAFRERE - BaRMBERE DeEENN
BMABKELRDHEEEGE - B ARRE LE

EEERBMERRRE -
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REMNHMERTFI(&)
Notes: (continued) = (8
(o)  The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets and liabilities () AEEBEHEATOKA - EE - BERAGBD
of its associates are as follows: T
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit
BE 8B ['ON FIiE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT AR¥ETFTT ARETFTT
2012 —E——F 4,021,663 3,188,191 2,973,719 103,209
2011 —T——fF 3,728,129 2,890,540 2,417,786 75,435

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24 RERBERTR
ENTITIES

2l

Group Company
£8 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--fF —T——F =—B--f —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT ARETR ARETT
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETRENKAE 323,238 323,238 323,238 323,238
Share of results/reserves BHBEEE T 94,921 100,018 = =
418,159 423,256 323,238 323,238
The movement on investments in jointly controlled entities is as follows: WEREENTINEENT :
Group Company
£8 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F % —E-—F ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT AR®F T ARETT
At 1 January —A—B#&#% 423,256 406,170 323,238 323,238
Share of results BEE 29,960 31,437 - -
Dividend received/declared during the ZARFEUE|, /55K
year % 8 (35,057) (14,351) - -
At 31 December +-—A=+—H#&% 418,159 423,256 323,238 323,238
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24. &

ENTITIES (continued)

—CHETZRA=t—HIEFE

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities, all of which are
limited liability companies established and operating in the PRC, are as

AEBENERRL AR RPBEKT R E

REEREN

GENAR

BEERR - HERERMT

follows:
Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NEER BRIt B K A HR BRER FEfE R4 TEER
2012 2011 2012 2011
- —T——% IZBE-Zf —T——F
Shanghai Technologies Aerospace  PRC USD73,000  USD73,000 51% 51%  Provision of repair and
Co., Ltd. (“Technologies 28 September 2004 maintenance Services
Aerospace’) (Note (3)) H @ RERBIEE REBRE
PEREFRERAR(NETMR]) —TTWF
(%) NA=Z+NH
Shanghai Eastern Union Aviation PRC USD2,100 USD2,100 40% 40%  Provision of spare parts
Wheels & Brakes Maintenance 28 December 1995 repair and maintenance
Services Overhaul Engineering /! Services
Co., Ltd. (‘Wheels & Brakes”) — /LIRS RETHEBRE
PERBRERRAEAETRE +-A=t+NA
ARAR([#EwA=E])
Eastern China Kaiya System PRC RMB10,000 RMB10,000 4% 41%  Provision of computer
Integration Co., Ltd. 21 May 1999 systems development
BRMERND RMERK H and maintainance
ARATF —ANNE services
RA=+—H RUEK RGBS
PR
Notes: g
(@)  Under a Joint Venture Agreement with the joint venture partner of (8 MBEAQRAEBEFME—EEREIR=ZZE=
Technologies Aerospace dated 10 March 2003, the Company has agreed FZA+HEENHAKRERHS  ARRRERES
to share control over the economic activities of Technologies Aerospace. —BEREFTHRZARBRFMLEE S A0E
Any strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activities of ¥ o E{] EERL R TS B B A B 7S IR AR R B
Technologies Aerospace require the unanimous consent of the Company BRAARERFEFRES —AEREFRE —BH
and the joint venture partner. [RE -
()  The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets and liabilities ) AEEBESEATNHKA @ XEE - BEERBGED
of its jointly controlled entities is as follows: T
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit
BE =Lt ['ON F;8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFT AR¥EFTT AR¥EFTT
2012 —E-—F 494,042 75,883 312,600 29,960
2011 —T——fF 524,573 101,317 287,822 31,437
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25. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

25. A RHIEE

Group Company
L | AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-=F % —E-—F —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT AR¥T R ARETFT
Deposits relating to aircraft under M EREAR R
operating leases (Note (a)) ¢ (@) 807,543 749,580 251,411 262,420
Deferred pilot recruitment costs EERITEEKE
(Note (b)) (FE%(b)) 869,082 886,177 769,908 650,822
Other long-term assets HEMREIEE 281,631 294,077 55,717 67,192
1,958,256 1,929,834 1,077,036 980,434
Notes: e
(a)  The fair values of deposits relating to aircraft held under operating leases (a) AEEERANFTHELEEREREABNESZA

of the Group and the Company are approximately RMB722 million and
RMB219 million (2011: RMB685 million and RMB248 million), respectively,
which are determined using the expected future refunds discounted at AU
market interest rates at the year end.

(b) Deferred pilot recruitment costs represent the cost bore by the Group in (b)
connection with securing certain minimum period of employment of pilots
and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the anticipated beneficial

period of five years, starting from the pilot joints the Group.

BAHTE -

HRRARY ST H

FIFRGR

REBEIBAARET.22E
T——4 : \R¥6.85(8
BERREBHI 3

BT Rk ARE2.19(E 7t(,
TR AREE2.48(87T) -
E&i*m%iﬂfﬁ

EIETRTT B A B AN B R R ERIT R EK
c RUEXHZ BHRRERTEALSE
B RS —EHIR - WARTEMARKEZ B #£I%5
AR E AR -

26. FLIGHT EQUIPMENT SPARE PARTS 26. MITRBZM
Group Company
&5 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-=F =% —E-—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT AR¥F R ARETT
Flight equipment spare parts RITERESH 2,765,291 2,506,388 2,402,863 2,011,234
Less: provision for spare parts B B REERE (677,313) (950,844) (608,416) (740,648)
2,087,978 1,555,544 1,794,447 1,270,586

Provision for flight equipment spare parts is made based on the
difference between the carrying amount and the net realisable value.
The net realisable value is estimated based on current market condition,
historical experience and Company’s future operation plan for the aircraft
and related spare parts.
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26. FLIGHT EQUIPMENT SPARE PARTS (continued)

27

26. RITREZH (4

Bt

)

il

’

Group Company
£ AT

2012 2011 2012 2011

—B--F —ZT——F =ZB-=F —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFTT AR¥F R ARETT

At 1 January —A—B#&&% 950,844 986,100 740,648 780,831

Provision written off in relation to THEBNBREESE

disposal of spare parts Z s (170,194) (61,356) - (61,263)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of =4k (E % (k@)

spare parts (Note 10(@)&(b)) TR (FEE10(@)&(b)) (103,337) 26,100 (132,232) 21,080

At 31 December +=—A=+—B#%&% 677,313 950,844 608,416 740,648

. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit terms given to trade customers are determined on an
individual basis, with the credit periods generally ranging from half a

month to two months.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

27. FEUBRIR

RTEENEERR
B EAEMEA TS -

v

PN

FEUBR SRV ARER DAT AT -

HIRERBREE - B

Group Company
&5 AFE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —E——%F —E-—fF —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR%®Tx ARETT
Within 90 days NTHR 2,851,736 2,381,707 3,527,071 2,372,192
91 to 180 days N+—HZ—B/N\+H 68,488 79,636 37,897 46,081
181 to 365 days —BNA\+—HZE
—AA~TARA 35,995 38,382 28,799 33,885
Over 365 days BA=A~THA 208,770 237,356 87,537 116,794
3,164,989 2,737,081 3,681,304 2,568,952
Less: provision for impairment Rk FEURER IR
of receivables B (202,808) (233,059) (80,283) (106,329)
Trade receivables FEMBR R 2,962,181 2,504,026 3,601,021 2,462,623

Balances with related companies included in trade receivables are
summarised in Note 47(c)(i).

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their fair
value.

Trade receivables that were neither over due nor impaired relate to a
large number of independent sales agents for whom there is no recent
history of default.
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of RMB137 million (2011:
RMB101 million) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent sales agents for whom there is no recent history
of default. The Group holds cash deposits of RMB680 million (2011:
RMB627 million) from these agents. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

27.

EREARR)

FEWBR N (48 )

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H ' BKRERARY
1371 (2T ——F : ARA1.01{E7m) B 488 5
BIERE - WERBL RS .E’H REHRIER
EHENBYRR HRUBURF  AKERES
HAARESSVMEIL(ZZE——F : AR¥B.271E
T E o L ERKERRAEREIR ST

Group Company
&= AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T F =%B-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%¥®TR ARBTT
Within 90 days =1EALAA 48,017 31,974 18,956 12,602
91 to 180 days =ZXEA 52,997 41,793 37,897 46,081
181 to 365 days ANE+ZEA 35,995 26,920 28,799 33,885
137,009 100,687 85,652 92,568

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of RMB167 million (2011:
RMB198 million) were impaired and fully provided for. The remaining
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. The factors considered by management in determining the
impairment are described in Note 2(s).

The ageing of impaired receivables is as follows:

R=F—=—F+=-A=+—8 ' BKREZ AEM
1678 (=T ——F : ARM1.981E7) B AR
B WELIRZFRERE - S TRERNERIER
FREFLEEMBHBRENTS - MET R B0 EUK
BRRAI IR E - B ERERERENE REER
Fi5E2(s)E it

EFHFERERENELARRARENT

Group Company
55 AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-TF —E——%F —E-—fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥T R ARBTIT
181 to 365 days over due BEAGME A = 14F 15,490 9,910 7,843 1,657
1 to 2 years over due BH E24 22,714 25,873 9,469 18,337
Over 2 years over due BHEF LA E 186,057 211,483 78,069 99,373
224,261 247,266 95,381 119,367
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

i

27. FEWEBRF(4E)

BRI BRA

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables FEUBR FUORBEBERNEFH T -
are as follows:
Group Company
£ AFE]
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F —ZT——F =ZB-=F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFTT AR¥F R ARETT
At 1 January —A—R#%& 233,055 245,961 106,329 125,553
Receivables written off FAY| AARERE
during the year as uncollectible FEU A 8H (30,064) (13,970) (26,046) (12,992)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment AN 5H4E (@) A
of receivables B (183) 1,064 - (6,232)
At 31 December +=-—A=+—H#&#% 202,808 233,055 80,283 106,329
The net impact of creation and release of provisions for impaired HEW R BEN IR MR AR 22 BEET
receivables have been included in ‘Provision for impairment of trade and 2 AR [ E UL BR 2k & Eoph fE UG ORI BEZE M | A (MY RE

other receivables’ in the income statement (Note 11). Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated

in the following currencies:

11)

o FEEEMBRR P R R M B — RS TR EE
U EZRINR S A% o

AR B AR RO RRE (B R RN

Group Company
&8 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=f <-T—F =¥-=f =-F %
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE AREBTT AR%®TR ARETT
Currency Bk
Renminbi AR 2,510,514 2,124,351 3,211,196 2,148,659
Japanese Yen = 161,020 140,143 161,020 133,706
US Dollars ETT 119,362 131,720 30,523 22,192
Euro BR T 156,354 121,646 60,826 45174
HK Dollars TS 66,565 121,089 66,565 121,089
Other currencies H{th & 151,174 98,132 151,174 98,132
3,164,989 2,737,081 3,681,304 2,568,952
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying TEREHE - EEREH SRS E RS AYE A il gk
amount of receivable shown above. HKEEREE

172



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4 =R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 R Y ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 8l 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

28. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. FAMHR ~ T S A R UK

Group Company
&5 AT

2012 2011 2012 2011

—B—=F % —E-—F —T—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT AR¥T R ARETFT

VAT recoverable FE IR ER 920,135 - 919,517 -
Rebate receivables on aircraft FEATRIE TS EUE]

acquisitions Mk 676,126 836,647 645,781 801,002
Amounts due from related companies  fEUL A B:E A 13818

(Note 47(c)()) (FF=E47(0)) 402,844 249,865 4,577,552 2,326,225

Prepaid aircraft operating lease rentals FB K4 4T EFH & 314,600 280,638 130,622 130,760

Rental deposits HET& 236,508 222,455 201,103 246,636

Others Hit 1,106,486 1,148,628 689,173 397,781

Subtotal /IN&t 3,656,699 2,738,233 7,163,748 3,902,404

Less: bad debt provision B R B (288,051) (827,338) (254,756) (254,756)

3,368,648 2,410,895 6,908,992 3,647,648

29. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT- 29. fR &M R1T 17 %S BASR 1T 17 5Kk
TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Group Company
£H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F —E-—fF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARKETTT AR¥F R ARBTT
Bank deposits with original JREIEA B E
maturity over three months but less =@RAZ—F AN
than a year RITIER 1,657,568 2,616,057 55,806 110,782
Restricted bank deposits R HI14 IR TIF X 68,683 278,230 53,737 249,386
1,726,251 2,894,287 109,543 360,168
Note: A
As at 31 December 2012, the deposits are primarily denominated in RMB and RZTE——F+-_A=1+—H FREBEFH*2.85%
bore effective interest rates ranging from 2.85% to 4.65% per annum (2011: 0.5% £4.65%(=F——F : 0.5%25.3%) K ARKETFK °

to 5.3% per annum).
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29. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT- 29, IR |14 48 77 17 2% F 43 HA 4R 1T 15 2%

TERM BANK DEPOSITS (continued) (#8)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s restricted bank EBMAR 7R &4 R 1T1E RN E R 1TT1E A
deposits and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the following BRE B EREREY R
currencies:
Group Company
£ AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-=F —Z——F ZE-ZfF —ZT——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETFT AR®F T ARETT
Renminbi AR 1,625,891 2,837,308 9,183 306,475
Japanese Yen H7t 39,724 24,637 39,724 24,637
US Dollars Ev 16,082 16,145 16,082 16,145
HK Dollars pidind 15,973 6,895 15,973 6,895
Euro BT 9,818 9,302 9,818 6,016
Other currencies Hi B 18,763 - 18,763 -
1,726,251 2,894,287 109,543 360,168
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30. RELBEEFED
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s cash and cash AEERANRR S KRS EEYHNRABEIRE
equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: BRI
Group Company
£ AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-=F —Z——F ZE-Zf —ZT——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETFT AR¥F T ARETT
Renminbi AR 1,933,933 3,249,932 152,173 326,408
US Dollars ET 372,388 520,976 263,523 453,753
Euro B 38,172 19,753 35,431 7,938
Japanese Yen Hot 30,451 5,425 30,267 1,021
Hong Kong Dollars Pt 25,528 26,219 25,110 25,412
Others Hh gk 111,224 38,668 110,918 37,480
2,511,696 3,860,973 617,422 852,012
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31. TRADE PAYABLES AND NOTES PAYABLE

32.

The aging analysis of trade payables and notes payable is as follows:

31. ERER M BN R IE

FEN RS BN RIRHIRRER DATAA T

Group Company
L | AT

2012 2011 2012 2011

—g-=f ~T—% =-B--f _"T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETFT AR®F R ARETT

Within 90 days NTBUR 1,473,087 1,761,478 6,776,696 2,400,602

91 to 180 days N+—HZ—8BN+H 397,815 217,331 17,467 620,039
181 to 365 days —BN\t+—HZE

—H/THHA 675,630 409,475 420,700 243,903

110 2 years —EME 378,922 153,498 272,317 85,094

Over 2 years BB 149,871 150,842 71,162 130,471

3,075,325 2,692,624 7,558,342 3,480,109

As at 31 December 2012, the trade payables and notes payable
balances of the Group and the Company included amounts due to
related companies of RMB1,950 million (2011: RMB1,216 million) and
RMB7,175 million (2011: RMB2,925 million) respectively (Note 47(c)(ii).

As at 31 December 2012, notes payable amounted to RMB250 million
(2011: RMB48 million), which were unsecured, bore effective interest
rates ranging from 4.65% to 4.68% per annum (2011: 6% to 8%) and

are repayable within six months.

R-Z——F+—-A=+—8 KEEMKAQAFE
S BRFN K B AR pRBE AR FE S BB
AREA19.50BTT( = ——F : ARK12.16/E7T)
MARBN 75EBT(ZTE——F : AR¥D29.25(8

7T ) (i EE47(0)(i)

BIERER D B

R_ZT——F+-_A=+—H ENZEE\EAA
R 508 (=T ——F : AR¥0.48(8TT) ' £
R FREEB465%E4.68%(—FT——F : 6%
28%) + WHERANER RS »

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES  32. EfhfEN X X TEIR B A

Group Company
£8 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T F =%B-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT AR¥TR ARBTIT
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits  FEIET & - %4 RiEH 2,210,517 2,657,376 1,361,547 1,590,845
Accrued take-off and landing charges ~ TE32 RA4E[E £ 2,127,855 1,885,898 681,157 695,207
Accrued fuel cost TEHR A MR 2 A 2,175,948 2,223,904 1,219,983 1,326,225
Accrued expenses related to aircraft  FBIE B B B TR A(S
overhaul conducted =9:3) 1,675,056 1,941,007 871,867 1,087,209
Duties and levies payable BT NS 1,574,574 1,750,389 917,995 1,030,312
Other accrued operating expenses TEREMmEEER 2,038,930 1,671,843 1,061,784 1,030,312
Deposits received from ticket sales REBEHERIEYEH
agents HE 680,318 627,006 298,690 368,149
Current portion of other long-term HiREABERREEM D
liabilities (Note 36) (FF5E36) 314,996 398,701 184,183 249,259
Staff housing allowance (Note 39(b)) B T {5 85 (Ft5E39(p)) 391,358 389,719 242,614 262,964
Amounts due to related companies TET B REE N T ZIE
(Note 47(c)(i) (HtEE47(C)i) 194,884 96,590 2,412,228 1,101,154
Current portion of post-retirement BRIRBEFEERNRE)
benefit obligations (Note 38(0)) =545 (T 3E38(0)) 85,800 83,483 70,051 70,327
Other payables Hih 2,785,989 2,641,371 1,765,172 1,849,389
16,256,225 16,267,287 11,087,271 10,661,352
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33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33. MEHERE
As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had 98 and 72
aircraft (2011: 80 and 60 aircraft), respectively, under finance leases.
Under the terms of the leases, the Group and the Company has the
option to purchase, at or near the end of the lease terms, certain aircraft
at either fair market value or a percentage of the respective lessors’

RZF——FF+=—A=+—8 ' KEBERAEAARH
MEMREH A BIFEATRMISEFI 72 (=T ——
F : BOZEFN60RE) - BEFEMEKRK - NEBRAR
AIANES Sms B ERE - WS AT EA
Sk A B TR S MO B AN B B H AR LT - b

defined cost of the aircraft. The obligations under finance leases are
principally denominated in US Dollars.

The future minimum lease payments (including interest), and the present

BHEBBETEUETREMNE -

BEHEREAS (BEMNR) REERAESHNRED

value of the minimum lease payments under finance leases are as BgnR -
follows:
Group
2012 2011
—E-c-fF —T——F
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest payments
EERE RERE
EERE FE 2B EERE FE ZBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARET:R
Within one year —FR 3,004,452 399,183 2,605,269 2,790,844 331,585 2,459,259
In the second year FF 3,059,744 355,576 2,704,168 2,846,797 288,703 2,658,094
In the third to fifth year inclusive ~ E=FZEhF(BEEEMF) 8,685,669 760,777 7,924,892 7,836,047 600,836 7,235,211
After the fifth year AENE 9,027,940 404,291 8,623,649 8,448,826 440,568 8,008,258
Total ek} 23,777,805 1,919,827 21,857,978 21,922,514 1,661,692 20,260,822
Less: amount repayable within W —FA
one year g (3,004,452) (399,183)  (2,605,269)  (2,790,844) (331,585)  (2,459,259)
Long-term portion REEH D 20,773,353 1,520,644 19,252,709 19,131,670 1,330,107 17,801,563

176



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4 =R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 R Y ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B 81 7 3R 5 £ A /5 )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33 mi&fEaiE(8d)
(continued)

Company
DFE]
2012 2011
—E--F —2——F
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest payments
BiEES HEHEE
BEES FE ZHfE REEE HME ZBE

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETE

Within one year —ERX 2,306,694 328,676 1,978,018 2,278,734 267,746 2,010,988
In the second year F_E 2,348,170 300,158 2,048,012 2,298,934 226,849 2,072,085
Inthe third to fith year inclusive ~ $=4ZE A& (RELRAE) 6,776,545 662,500 6,114,045 6,190,003 471306 5,718,607
After the fifth year RFLAE 7,707,677 371,542 7,336,135 6,690,780 358,378 6,332,402
Total k] 19,139,086 1,662,876 17,476,210 17,458,451 1,324,279 16,134,172
Less: amount repayable within W —ER

one year EEgH (2,306,694) (328,676)  (1,978,018)  (2,278,734) (267,746)  (2,010,988)
Long-term portion REBEND 16,832,392 1,334,200 15,498,192 15,179,717 1,056,533 14,123,184
The fair value of obligations under finance leases of the Group and AEBRANGMEREEBZARENNAAR
the Company are RMB22,883 million and RMB18,353 million (2011: #228.831B T AR¥183.53B L (—Z T ——%F :
RMB20,866 million and RMB16,599 million), respectively, which are AR®208.661E TR ARK165.99(8 ) * EAA
determined using the expected future payments discounted at market BRRETE I N RIBRE RIS EF R E M
interest rates prevailing at the year end. 5o
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34. BORROWINGS

Group Company
55 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB--F —ZET——F CZB-Zf T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥F R ARETT
Non-current FEMENH D
Long-term bank borrowings REAIRITIER
— secured (Note (a)) — B (@) 15,780,892 11,988,500 10,621,656 6,439,802
— unsecured (Note (b)) — &I (FEE (D)) 4,815,271 9,114,963 4,465,678 8,745,066
Guaranteed bonds (Note (c)) BERESGEE@) 2,500,000 2,500,000 - =
23,096,163 23,603,463 15,087,334 15,184,868
Current B D
Long-term bank borrowings REAIRITIER
— secured (Note (a)) — BHEA (@) 2,612,055 1,973,744 1,772,886 983,602
— unsecured (Note (b)) — &I (FEE (D)) 7,147,656 4,743,506 7,007,649 4,081,231
Short-term bank borrowings R EASRTTIE R
— secured (Note (a)) —BEA(FE @) - 221,948 - 221,048
— unsecured (Note (b)) — AR (IR (b)) 8,880,244 11,231,932 7,555,262 9,543,699
Short-term debentures (Note (d)) RHRLE 5 (FHE(d) 4,000,000 = 4,000,000 -
22,639,955 18,171,130 20,335,797 14,830,480
Total borrowings et 45,736,118 41,774,503 35,423,131 30,015,348
The borrowings are repayable as RITIEFER T3
follows: B AERE -
Within one year —FR 22,639,955 18,171,130 20,335,797 14,830,480
In the second year F_F 7,272,821 8,407,984 3,880,837 7,335,988
In the third to fifth year inclusive FE=FEZERF
(BEEEME) 7,905,631 9,391,440 5,536,565 4,484,140
After the fifth year AFLAE 7,917,711 5,804,039 5,669,932 3,364,740
Total borrowings (EE G EEE] 45,736,118 41,774,593 35,423,131 30,015,348
Notes: TR

(@)

As at 31 December 2012, the secured bank borrowings of the Group and
the Company were pledged by the related aircraft and buildings with an
aggregate net book amount of RMB22,544 million and RMB15,078 million
respectively (2011: RMB18,317 million and RMB10,005 million) (Note 19).

Certain unsecured bank borrowings of the Group totaling of RMB95 million
(2011: RMB228 million) were guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note 47(c)).

On 1 August 2011, Eastern Air Overseas (Hong Kong) Corporation Limited
(“Eastern Air Overseas HK”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
issued three-year guaranteed bonds with a principal amount of RMB2.5
billion, at an issue price equal to the face value of the bonds. The bonds
bear interest at the rate of 4% per annum, which is payable semi-annually.
The principle of the bonds will mature and be repayable on 8 August 2014.

The Company has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due
payment and performance of the above bonds.

On 13 September 2012, the Company issued short-term debentures with
a principal of RMB4 billion. The debentures bear interest at the rate of 4.1%
per annum. The principal and interest will mature and be repayable on 10
June 2018.
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34. BORROWINGS (continued)

The terms of the long-term borrowings are summarised as follows:

RHMEROGRRBRLT

Group Company
&M 2R
Interest rate and
Currency final maturities 2012 2011 2012 2011
wE BERFERISA —E-CF T4 —E-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT
Long-term bank borrowings
RERITER
RMB denominated interest rate ranging from 4.86%
AR t0 6.4% with final maturities
through to 2020
FHENR4.86%E6.4% T
BN E2020F & 14 E 3,953,340 8,844,130 3,593,300 7,378,300
USD denominated interest rate ranging from libor
= 6 +0.03% to libor 6 + 5.3%
with final maturities through to
2022
FHENH6{EALIBOR +0.03% %=
618 ALIBOR +5.3% 15 -
BN E2022F 14 FI| 26,402,534 18,976,583 20,274,569 12,871,401
Guaranteed bonds
ERER
RMB denominated interest rate of 4.00% with final
AR maturities through to 2014
FFIEL0% - EHRE20145F
gt El 2,500,000 2,500,000 - -
Total long term borrowings
REER B 32,855,874 30,320,713 23,867,869 20,249,701

The fair value of long-term borrowing of the Group and the Company are

REBRARANERHRERZAABEIHIBAR

RMB32,881 million and RMB24,059 million (2011: RMB30,363 million
and RMB20,706 million), respectively, which are determined using the
expected future payments discounted at prevailing market interest rates
available to the Group and the Company for financial instruments with
substantially the same terms and characteristics at the balance sheet
date.

Short-term borrowings of the Group and the Company are repayable
within one year. As at 31 December 2012, the interest rates relating to
such borrowings were ranged from 1.11% to 6.56% per annum (2011:
1.30% to 6.31% per annum).
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A

34. BORROWINGS (continued) 34, B ()
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the H 25 BE T 4 B8 A N8 B M s B AT -

following currencies:

Group Company
£H AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-=F —E——%F —E-—fF —=——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARBFT
Renminbi AR 13,827,340 16,779,919 9,943,300 11,428,300
US Dollars e 31,605,345 24,994,674 25,176,398 18,587,048
Japanese Yen =P 303,433 - 303,433 -

45,736,118 41,774,593

35,423,131 30,015,348

35.PROVISION FOR RETURN CONDITION 35. &2 EREREFH RIS ERE
CHECKS FOR AIRCRAFT UNDER OPERATING
LEASES
Group Company
&5 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F —E-—fF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR%¥TR ARETR
At 1 January — A —B#&% 3,299,126 2,814,503 1,721,095 1,517,071
Additional provisions AEFHR 872,770 801,309 200,772 262,569
Utilisation REEZ (373,134) (316,686) (168,233) (68,545)
At 31 December +-—A=1+—B#&&% 3,798,762 3,299,126 1,762,634 1,721,095
Less: current portion B mEE D (734,205) (375,409) (88,081) (174,151)
Long-term portion RHEEMD 3,064,557 2,923,717 1,674,553 1,546,944
In respect of aircraft and engines under operating leases, the Group HRKEHENREANEZESE  NEEEERBM
has obligations to fulfill certain return conditions under the leases. The REEBERENREGRE - ———F+_H
balance as at 31 December 2012 represents the provision for the =+ BRRERERAERIAERETETARA
estimated cost of these return condition checks which is made on a RIEEES

straight line basis over the term of the leases.

180



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4 =R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 R Y ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 3 & # A1) 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——_F+_A=+—HILFE

36. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

37.

36. EMREIEE

Group Company
£H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F —E-—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥Fr AREFIT
Fair value of unredeemed points BIRER 8 R
awarded under the Group’s RAREEESH
frequent flyer program NREE 1,624,248 1,424,709 940,147 815,183
Long-term duties and levies payable  Fi&FE 1R HAE R
relating to finance leases BaR R A IR 209,727 908,406 114,934 674,238
Other long-term payables HAth R ERFE TR 116,558 112,685 91,821 91,649
1,950,533 2,445,800 1,146,902 1,581,070
Less: current portion included in other & : &t A B At {20
payables and accrued TERREATH
expenses (Note 32) mEnERa (FiFE32) (314,996) (398,701) (184,183) (249,259)
Long-term portion KHIEMD 1,635,537 2,047,099 962,719 1,331,811

DEFERRED TAXATION

37. EIERLTE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right of offsetting and when the deferred income

BRZEEMNAGHEEE  BSRRA-EEH
B AASEENAEERRENARBEERE

taxes relate to the same authority. The following amounts, determined

after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheets:

i o |IHER - BT SBAEEERABRAIIR

Group Company
£ AR
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F =% —E-—-F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFTT AR®TR ARETT
Deferred tax assets EETR IR A =
— Deferred tax asset to be utilised —12{@ B A LRI EIRA
after 12 months EER BB E 53,708 41,687 - -
— Deferred tax asset to be utilised — 1218 B AR R EIRAY
within 12 months RIEFI A A B 853 2,731 - -
54,561 44,418 - =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE A E
— Deferred tax liability to be realised — 128 A LA AT EIRAY
after 12 months REFIAEE (29,326) (29,326) = -
Net deferred tax assets R IR & R 58 25,235 15,092 = -
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 37. EREFIE(4E)
Movements in the net deferred tax assets are as follows: REF IR FEERZ ST
Group Company
&5 AF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —ZT——F ZB-=F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tr ARETTT AR¥F R ARETT
At 1 January —RA—B#&H% 15,092 23,374 - =
Charged to income statement FTAFER(H7E14)

(Note 14) 10,143 (8,282) = =
At 31 December +=-A=+—H#&s 25,235 15,092 - -
The deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting of balances BEFRIBEENRBERER —BOEKE NSRS
within the same tax jurisdiction) were made up of the taxation effects of BREU TS 2480 ¢
the following:

Group Company
£H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F —E-—fF —=——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT AR¥ TR ARETT
Deferred tax assets: EEFRIEEAE ¢

Impairment provision for obsolete  FRILERIEZ (B
flight equipment spare parts A 40,408 70,071 36,380 64,951
Impairment provision for receivables &Y R EXE R 23,950 34,745 20,034 31,537

Impairment provision for property, 473 - #422 R
plant and equipment DERIER 43,222 78,286 39,123 74,187
Derivative financial liabilities RHEeREE 20,339 29,201 20,339 29,201
Provision for post-retirement benefits iRk 1% 18 F 196,580 230,361 154,062 198,370
324,499 442,664 269,938 398,246
Deferred tax liabilities: RIENIRE R

Depreciation and amortisation e Mg (294,745) (426,481) (265,419) (397,155)
Derivative financial assets RGUETREE (4,519) (1,091) (4,519) (1,091)
(299,264) 427,572) (269,938) (398,246)
25,235 15,092 - -
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 37. EEFIA(E)

Movements of the net deferred tax assets of the Group for the year:

BAETIRF EEMEEINT

(Charged)/
At the credited to
beginning of income At the end
the year statement of the year
FE&
FHEREE (1818) &8 FRENEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ T AR¥TR
For the year ended 31 December 2012 —ZF— —F&
Impairment provision for obsolete flight R E
equipment spare parts THBREEE 70,071 (29,663) 40,408
Impairment provision for receivables FEUR SRR (B 2E 34,745 (10,795) 23,950
Impairment provision for property, plant — #7% - #25 &
and equipment and construction in RAEAERE TR
progress B 78,286 (35,064) 43,222
Derivative financial liabilities THEESRARE 29,201 (8,862) 20,339
Provision for post-retirement benefits RIKBIEFER 230,361 (33,781) 196,580
442,664 (118,165) 324,499
Depreciation and amortisation Pres RSy (426,481) 131,736 (294,745)
Derivative financial assets RSB EE (1,091) (3,428) (4,519)
(427,572) 128,308 (299,264)
Net deferred tax assets EERIBE )RR 15,092 10,143 25,235
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Bt

37. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 37. IRAEMIA ()

il

(Charged)/
At the credited to
beginning of income At the end
the year statement of the year
)RS
FHERER (t818),/E1E FRERFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFTT ARETTT ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2011  —ZF——F &
Impairment provision for obsolete flight  FRé#% & = 149
equipment spare parts PREZEE 83,365 (13,294) 70,071
Impairment provision for receivables FEM GBI B 2t 69,063 (34,318) 34,745
Impairment provision for property, plant  #7% - #85 &
and equipment and construction in REMERTLR
progress EZER 128,226 (49,940) 78,286
Provision for return condition checks for 4% &7 & TR
aircraft under operating leases S YEE 93,740 (98,740) -
Provision for frequent flyer programs BIRR LR R S E 44,001 (44,001) =
Derivative financial liabilities RE5EEHMAE 29,526 (325) 29,201
Provision for post-retirement benefits RINEBTIZERS 245,026 (14,665) 230,361
692,947 (250,283) 442,664
Depreciation and amortisation PrEs RSy (652,521) 226,040 (426,481)
Derivative financial assets REGEEMEE (17,052) 15,961 (1,091)
(669,573) 242,001 (427,572)
Net deferred tax assets EERIBE E)FRE 23,374 (8,282) 15,092

As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had following
balances in respect of which no deferred tax asset has been recognised:

REEBERRE  AEERARRHARERIELR
THEEREREREESIRT -

Group
£8
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
Deferred Temporary Deferred Temporary
taxation differences taxation differences
IEREBL IR HRFMER RAETIE TR ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Tax losses carried forward AT AR S 518 1,542,223 6,168,893 2,428,143 9,712,570
Other deductible temporary differences b A # 0 E f 1 2= 2 970,616 3,882,464 971,951 3,887,804
Total unrecognized deferred tax assets ARIERIELEF B EEA T 2,512,839 10,051,357 3,400,094 13,600,374
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37.

38.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Bt

37. EAEFAIA (4B )

il

Company
Y|
2012 2011
—E——fF —ZT——F
Deferred Temporary Deferred Temporary
taxation differences taxation differences
IEFERTE TRFMEER RIER IR R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥FR AREFIT AREFIT
Tax losses carried forward AN A 1R 966,430 3,865,719 1,544,268 6,177,072
Other deductible temporary differences  E i Al X1 E S|4 = E 858,662 3,434,648 737,072 2,948,288
Total unrecognised deferred tax assets ARIERIELEFIIBEEA T 1,825,092 7,300,367 2,281,340 9,125,360

In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses can be carried forward,
for a period of five years, to offset against future taxable income. The
Group and the Company’s tax losses carried forward will expire between
2013 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2012, management carried out an assessment
to determine whether future taxable profits will be available to utilise
the tax losses and deductible temporary differences. As there are still
uncertainties around the Group’s future operation results, such as future
fuel prices and market competition, management assessed that there
are significant uncertainties that future taxable profits will be available
and the deferred tax assets arisen from aforementioned tax losses and
deductible temporary difference were not recognised.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a) Defined contribution retirement schemes

() Pension

The Group companies participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by municipal governments of
various provinces in which the Group companies operate.
Substantially all of the Group’s PRC employees are eligible to
participate in the Group companies’ retirement schemes. The
Group companies are required to make annual contributions
to the schemes at rates ranging from 20% to 22% on the
employees’ salary and allowances subject to certain ceiling
as set up by the relevant municipal governments. Employees
are required to contribute to the schemes at rates ranging
from 7% to 8% of their salaries. For the year ended 31
December 2012, the Group’s pension cost charged to the
consolidated income statement amounted to RMB871 million
(2011: RMB768 million).
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(a) Defined contribution retirement schemes
(continued)

(i)

Medical insurance

Majority of the Group’s PRC employees participate in
the medical insurance schemes organised by municipal
governments, under which the Group companies and
their employees are required to contribute to the schemes
approximately 12% and 2%, respectively, of the employee’s
basic salaries subject to certain ceiling as set up by the
relevant municipal governments. For those employees
who participate in these schemes, the Group has no other
obligation for the payment of medical expense beyond the
annual contributions. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group’s medical insurance contributions charged
to the consolidated income statement amounted to RMB391
million (2011: RMB374 million).

(b) Post-retirement benefits

In addition to the above defined contribution retirement schemes,
the Group provides retirees with other post-retirement benefits,
including transportation subsidies, social function activities
subsidies and other welfares. The expected cost of providing these
post-retirement benefits is actuarially determined and recognised
by using the projected unit credit method, which involves a number
of assumptions and estimates, including inflation rate, discount
rate and employees’ turnover ratio.

8. EIk&

(%8

)

BRI BRA

BEEE
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(a) EHEMECRAKETEI(F)

(ii)

BRRE

RNEBAESAFEREE ST ST
HEHENEERRE AEERES
AN AIERETNRFMREEATSH
12% K% 2% AT &I HERR - 37 LA B8 T Bk
[FETREER =B AR « BRILHERN - &
EEYUL M ENES W ELMmEES
AEE -BE-ZE——-E+=-fA=+—
BLEFE  AEEREHFBRF
IRMERRRAARBINET(Z
——&F : AR¥3.74ETT) °

(b) BRIKEEEF

B Eatey = E ST EI -
& 13 7
ftb 4@ F
FIZ AR TS F HABE 5
THR®

AEBEIR R E
BIEZERE  HREERAKRE
o IRIRRABRFTE £ R %ﬁﬁ%ﬁf%%ﬂ%
DA IEEGERE - WIARK
RRMAEHARE  BEREEER HEI #

REREERKIESE -

The post-retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance CEEEBERTIBEROENREENE
sheets are as follows: (ELUNNE
Group Company
£H AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB--F —ET—F CZEB-Zf "T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT AR¥F T ARETT
Present value of funded post- FRESHIEBRKE
retirement benefit obligations BRI EREENIRE 343,871 350,210 - -
Fair value of plan assets SAEEENAAEBE (89,819) (92,450) - -
Present value of unfunded post- THRESHEBRKE
retirement benefit obligations BRI EREENIRE 5,979,600 5,826,053 5,066,745 5,032,085
Unrecognised actuarial losses RERKEEIER (2,888,323)  (3,140,385)  (2,488,244)  (2,770,036)
Post-retirement benefit obligations {2 B3R K& & T & B2 3,345,329 2,943,428 2,578,501 2,262,049
Less: current portion (Note 32) B RENED S (MIRE32) (85,800) (83,483) (70,051) (70,327)
Long-term portion R EA=B D 3,259,529 2,859,945 2,508,450 2,191,722
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Post-retirement benefits (continued)

38. Rk &
(&

+

il

pullle

)

| K 1 §

(o

/!

(b) BRIKEEEF (FE)

Changes in post-retirement benefit obligations are as follows:

NN OR R

RARENERERENESNT :

Group Company
£ AT

2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--F —E——%F —EB-—F T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETFT AR®F T ARBFT

At 1 January —H—B#&&% 2,943,428 2,617,284 2,262,049 1,946,006
Costs charged in the income T AFIERA

statement EH@EA 581,775 478,502 460,124 438,829

Payments SANE (179,874) (152,358) (143,672) (122,786)

At 31 December +=—A=+—H#&% 3,345,329 2,943,428 2,578,501 2,262,049

The costs of post-retirement benefits are recognised under wages,
salaries and benefits in the income statements as follows:

BRAREEMNEREIALER HoRENE
R - YERAFEAN R R :

Group Company
£ AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—B——F —T——%F —E-—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT AR¥TF R ARETFT
Current service cost = ARG E B 193,936 170,493 136,179 170,444
Interest cost FEER 270,177 224,064 217,457 182,737
Actuarial losses recognised ERRIsEIEKL 124,184 90,643 106,488 85,648
Estimated return on planned asset t& & E T8 Hi[E R (6,522) (6,698) - -
Total (Note 9) #@%E (M 39) 581,775 478,502 460,124 438,829

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as

follows:

NEEBERAETZFREMERRAOT

Group and Company

EERAT
2012 2011
g —z——%

Discount rate

Annual rate of increase of per capita benefit
payment

Employee turnover rate

Mortality rate

Medical inflation rate

Fr|E
R B A
FEHERX

Sh=
BEERE

4.30%-4.35%

3%-5%
3%-3.25%

9.83%
5.00%

4.20%-4.25%

3%-5%
3%-3.25%
9.83%
5.00%
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39. STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

Staff housing fund

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations, the Group
is required to contribute to the State-sponsored housing fund for
its employees at rates ranging from 7% to 15% (2011: 7% to 15%)
of the specified salary amounts of its PRC employees. At the same
time, the employees are required to contribute an amount equal
to the Group’s contribution. The employees are entitled to claim
the entire sum of the fund contributed under certain specified
withdrawal circumstances. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group’s contributions to the housing funds amounted to
RMB607 million (2011: RMB545 million) which has been charged
to the consolidated income statement. The staff housing fund
payable as at 31 December 2012 is RMB52 million (2011: RMB28
million). The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

Staff housing allowances

The Group also provides staff housing allowances in cash to
eligible employees. The total entitlement of an eligible employee
is principally vested over a period of 20 years. Upon an eligible
employee’s resignation or retirement, his or her entitlement
would cease and any unpaid entitlement related to past service
up to the date of resignation or retirement would be paid. As at
31 December 2012, the present obligation of the provision for
employee’s staff housing allowances is RMB391 million (2011:
RMB390 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the staff housing benefit

amounted to RMB171 million (2011: RMB171 million) which has
been charged to the consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

40. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

40. ®RIOTAHET R

Group and Company

SERAF
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CfF % —E-—F —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®TR ARETT
At 31 December +=—A=+—R&%
Interest rate swaps (Note (a)) FEEIRE K (@) - 4,279 295,005 267,909
Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ 4NEEEIS 4
(Note (b)) (FE%(b)) 18,074 86 45,146 65,075
Total S 18,074 4,365 340,151 332,984
Less: current portion W mENE D
— Interest rate swaps —FREIHRE L - = = -
— Forward foreign exchange —SNEREIA 4 (18,074) - (35,813) (51,063)
(18,074) - (35,813) (51,063)
Non-current portion IERB IS - 4,365 304,338 281,921

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of the derivative assets in the balance sheets.

Notes:

(a)

Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce the risk of changes in market
interest rates (Note 3(a)(ii)). The interest rate swaps entered into by the
Group for swapping variable rates, usually referenced to LIBOR, into fixed
rates are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Other interest rate swaps
are accounted for as fair value hedges. As at 31 December 2012, the
notional amount of the outstanding interest rate swap agreements was
approximately US$929 million (2011: US$695 million). These agreements
will expire between 2013 and 2022.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from the valuation of
these interest rate swaps have been dealt with in the income statements as
follows:

ERERH  FERARNGERRABRAESEERR
RATEBENAAREE -

(a)

FMRE]REN

AN B3R R F) R B R (R T 5 FI R 2 B ) &L (T
F3(a)(ii) - AEERTHFIREHRE L)FHELIBOR
HERARZ BRI BB AE TN ENFREREL
BRESTREES  HMEOAAABEESR - ©
—E——H#+-fA=+—0  AEBPEEEAR
SRMEERENNEESTENRIMEETL(=ZF
—— & :6.958FET) WHR=_T—=FFZ=F
ZZFMEIE -

AEEEERARARBERMNETEHRANEREBRS
RAABEZHIIRRFERAT

Group
&8
2012 2011
—E-—F —Z——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREBFIT
Realised losses (recorded in finance costs) EERBLRGIAMKER) (99,169) (118,016)
Unrealised mark to market losses REBER
— cash flow hedges (recognised in equity) —BEREHGIABLRRTE) (47,128) (133,526)
— fair value hedges (recognised in gain on fair value —AABEEHGIATEERTA
movements of derivatives financial instruments) AR BEEZSIEE) 15,755 9,062
(130,542) (242,480)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  40. €@fT7AET A (L)
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Forward foreign exchange contracts

i ()

(b) SNEEHMEN

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce the risk of A& EFEBINE R A 4R R R 4 & I E UL A
changes in currency exchange rates in respect of ticket sales and expenses J2 55 LASINGE 37 1<t Y B B AR A A P =ROR B L e (Ff =%
denominated in foreign currencies (Note 3(a)(i)). The Group’s forward foreign 3(a)(i)) ° NEBBEFTHARETEERHERTHEA
exchange contracts for selling Japanese Yen and purchasing U.S. dollars at ETTHIMNERIAN BRIBESAREBER - Hibsh
fixed exchange rates are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Other forward EEBMENRRABEER R_Z——F+=-A
foreign exchange contracts are accounted for as fair value hedges. As at 31 =1+—HB ' XEEBARARZHINEERE LK
December 2012, the notional amount of the outstanding currency forward ZHELHELYBOSSEEZET(ZE——F : 0461E=
contracts was approximately US$58 million (2011: US$46 million), which will o) YR =S —=FE T —+FMEIH -

expire between 2013 and 2017.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from the valuation of these NREFEBEERABHINERHESHBERIZEER
contracts have been dealt with in the income statements as follows: RARBEZEFIIRAFBERAT :
Group
&8
2012 2011
—B——F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T AREFIT
Realised losses (recorded in finance income) EERBRGIAVBKER) (12,407) (10,406)
Unrealised mark to market gains RERK
- cash flow hedges (recognised in equity) —HEREHGIABRATE) 37,917 1,080
— fair value hedges (recognised in gain on fair value —AABEEHGIATEERIA
movements of derivatives financial instruments) DA BEESHIER) - 10,479
25,510 1,163
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

A1, Rt T B (%58 5R)

(a) Group (a) &3
Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Available-
receivables profit and loss hedging for-sale Total
NAREE
#HEH
BHR HEFHIHA REERN AHHE
FEWRIE BENEE fTATIR SREE wct
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BESBRANEE ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR
Balance 31 December 2012 —T——%+-A=1+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HES A E - - - 234,690 234,690
Derivative financial instruments ETR - - 18,074 - 18,074
Trade receivables FEIER R 2,962,181 - - - 2,962,181
Prepayments and other receivables TB15 2 & FaTBIT ZUAINEY
excluding prepayments H b UK 2,544,967 - - - 2,544,967
Restricted bank deposits and TR &SR T AN A
short-term bank deposits RITER 1,726,251 - - - 1,726,251
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 2,511,696 - - - 2,511,696
Total 5t 9,745,095 - 18,074 234,690 9,997,859
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables profit and loss hedging amortised cost Total
NAREER
HfEE BRI
BRR HEHHA REESH EMN
FE R BRMHAE fETRE Hitemas @t
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEAERANAE ARETR AR®TF R AR¥TRT ARET R AR¥TR
Balance 31 December 2012 —E——F+-A=1-H
Borrowings B3R 45,736,118 - - - 45,736,118
Obligations under finance leases ~ FIAMERE 21,857,978 - - - 21,857,978
Derivative financial instruments fTETR - - 340,151 - 340,151
Trade payables and notes payable FERBEZ R ERZiE 3,075,325 - - - 3,075,325
Other payables and accrued HEfENT R ERER
expenses 16,256,225 - - - 16,256,225
Other long-term liabilities HitRHaE 209,727 - - - 209,727
Total ot 87,135,373 - 340,151 - 87,475,524
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. £ T E (IR (48)

(continued)

(@) Group (continued)

(a) &EE(&E)

Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Available-
receivables  profit and loss hedging for-sale Total
AR EE
2R
fER R HEBHA REESH AIEHE
MR BaRmEE fTETA SREE st
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BERERANEE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Balance 31 December 2011 —E—%+-fA=1—-H
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S FEAE - - - 240,380 240,380
Derivative financial instruments MTETE - - 4,365 - 4,365
Trade receivables FEMBRE X 2,504,026 - - - 2,504,026
Prepayments and other receivables  TE{% 2 & B BT EASMY
excluding prepayments H ARSI 1,437,444 - - - 1,437,444
Restricted bank deposits and short- FR |1t 88 17 20T
term bank deposits RARITER 2,894,287 - - - 2,894,287
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEY 3,860,973 - - - 3,860,973
Total Fobs 10,696,730 - 4,365 240,380 10,941,475
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables  profit and loss hedging  amortised cost Total
AR EE
itel AR AR
BTk HEFHHFA FEESM FEM
FEYIE BRrBE fTETE HttemBR st
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEABRANEE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Balance 31 December 2011 —E——%+-A=1-H
Borrowings &3 41,774,593 - - - 41,774,593
Obligations under finance leases ~ REHEEE 20,260,822 - - - 20,260,822
Derivative financial instruments PTETE - — 332,984 - 332,984
Trade payables and notes payable FERBEZ R FERZiE 2,692,624 - - - 2,692,624
Other payables and accrued Hib R R TER
expenses ZH 16,267,287 — = — 16,267,287
Other long-term liabilities HiRBEE 908,406 - - - 908,406
Total Fobs 81,903,732 - 332,984 - 82,236,716
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. £ T E (IR (48)

(continued)

(b) Company (b) 2~F]
Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Available-
receivables profit and loss hedging for-sale Total
HUARERE
=]
ERR HEBA RIEERN e
FEWRIE BENEE fTATIR SREE wct
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEGERANEE ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥BTR
Balance 31 December 2012 —T——%+-A=1+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HES EE E - - - 216,256 216,256
Derivative financial instruments TETR - - 18,074 - 18,074
Trade receivables FEIER R 3,601,021 - - - 3,601,021
Prepayments and other receivables TB15 2 & TBIT ZUAINEY
excluding prepayments Hit YR 6,494,290 - - - 6,494,290
Restricted bank deposits and PR &SR T AT
short-term bank deposits RERITER 109,543 - - - 109,543
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 617,422 - - - 617,422
Total 5t 10,822,276 - 18,074 216,256 11,056,606
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables profit and loss hedging amortised cost Total
NAREE
&R DA
ERR HEETA REERN EN
FEWRIE BRNEE fTEIE Httdmas @t
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEGERANEE ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR ARET T AR%TR
Balance 31 December 2012 —Z-——_F+-A=1—H
Borrowings B3k 35,423,131 - - - 35,423,131
Obligations under finance leases ~ FEFEARE 17,476,210 - - - 17,476,210
Derivative financial instruments TETR - - 340,151 - 340,151
Trade payables and notes payable  FEfF BRI S Z1E 7,558,342 - - - 7,558,342
Other payables and accrued HivENHRER
expenses R 10,942,271 - - - 10,942,271
Total #st 71,399,954 - 340,151 - 71,740,105
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. £ T E (IR (48)

(continued)

BRI BRA

(b) Company (continued) (b) ATF(H&)
Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Available-
receivables  profit and loss hedging for-sale Total
AR EE
FER
EE 0 A FEEM A E
FEWIE BRNEE PTETR SRHEE @it
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEBBRANEE ARETFT ARETFTT ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
Balance 31 December 2011 —E——F+-A=1+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HELREE - - - 221,557 221,557
Derivative financial instruments fTETR - - 4,365 - 4,365
Trade receivables JEUERTR 2,462,623 - - - 2,462,623
Prepayments and other receivables  TE{% 21 % B AT ASMY
excluding prepayments H bR 3,224,769 - - - 3,224,769
Restricted bank deposits and short- [ |1t 8517 510
term bank deposits ISECETED 360,168 - - - 360,168
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEED 852,012 = = = 852,012
Total st 6,899,572 = 4,365 221,557 7,125,494
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables  profit and loss hedging  amortised cost Total
AR EE
A8 PABEBARN AR
fERR HEBA RIEESH) AR
MR it =N fTETE HttemBR @t
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BERBRAMAE ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
Balance 31 December 2011 —T——&+-f=1+—H
Borrowings fE& 30,015,348 - - - 30,015,348
Obligations under finance leases ~ FIEHEAE 16,134,172 - - - 16,134,172
Derivative financial instruments TETE - - 332,984 - 332,984
Trade payables and notes payable  FEfTERTN M [ Z21E 3,480,109 - - - 3,480,109
Other payables and accrued ,H\WE IR TER
expenses R 10,661,377 - - - 10,661,377
Total Febs 60,291,006 - 332,984 - 60,623,990
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42. SHARE CAPITAL 42, &R
Group and Company
SEEAF
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARETFT
Registered, issued and fully paid of RMB1.00 each 31 « B 247 [z 2 &l G 1%
AR #1.007T
A share listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange 1 EBBEFERFF EmmALK
(“A Shares”) (TARZ]) 7,782,214 7,782,214
— Tradable shares held by CEA Holding with —HERMREBRFEN
trading moratorium BREGRARBR = 4,831,375
— Tradable shares held by other investors with —HiREERER
trading moratorium (Note) AR E G RBR(GERE) - 288,889
— Tradable shares without trading moratorium — 4R E (R BAR
(Note) (%) 7,782,214 2,661,950
H shares listed on the Stock Exchange of ERBBEFRZ G EHAHR(THR )
Hong Kong Limited (“H shares”) 3,494,325 3,494,325
— Tradable shares held by CES Global Holding — MBI (B8 BRA A
(Hong Kong) Limited with trading moratorium BEARNARE I REAR
(Note) (7H%8) - 1,437,375
— Tradable shares without trading moratorium — R E (R EAR ()
(Note) 3,494,325 2,056,950
11,276,539 11,276,539
Pursuant to articles 49 and 50 of the Company’s Articles of Association, BEARBHABIEREN - NRAE K - FRIE
both the listed A shares and the listed H shares are all registered iR~ AR RHIRE RS @Rk =ERE
ordinary shares and carry equal rights. TR o
Note: i
During the year ended 31 December 2012, listed A shares of 5,120,264 thousand REE_ZE——F+-_A=T—HIFE - 551202648
and listed H shares of 1,437,375 thousand with trading moratorium became listed FRAR% A% 52 F1143,737 .58 B HAR AR = R & HA B BAYF T
and tradable. i o
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43. RESERVES 43. i@
Group
Capital Hedging
Share reserve reserve Other Accumulated
Premium (Note (a)) (Note 40) reserves losses Total
RARE -ENC EHRE
GEZ0) (%) (FffzE40) HibfE R 2itER A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%TRT ARETr AR®Tx AR%Tn AR%ETx
At 1 January 2011 —T——5—fA—B&H 17,747,785 (720057)  (154,492) 77019 (12,955507) 3,994,748
Unrealised loss on cashflow ReEMMAEREE
hedges (Note 40) (KizE40) - - (132,446) - - (132,446)
Fair value movements of available  A[{tHERERN A1 BEEE
for sale investments - - - 486 - 486
Fair value movements of available  #{EHE4A BT )
for sale investments held by A ER AR
associates AREEZS - - = (2,701) - (2,701)
Profit attributable to equity ARAERFA ARG
shareholders of the Company pAlNE - - - - 4,575,732 4,575,732
Accumulated losses shared by FiB 2 RIS B E %
non-controling interests after AERBEEE
capital injection in a subsidiary 426,439 - - - - 426,439
Acaquisition of non-controlling e Ain=UNGE e
interests in subsidiaries AR E (12,905) - - - - (12,905)
At 31 December 2011 —T—F+ZA=+—A
Fe o 18,161,319 (720,057) (286,938) 74,804 (8,379,775) 8,849,353
At 1 January 2012 —E-—f-—fA-RA&% 18,161,319  (720057)  (286,938) 74804  (8379,775) 8,849,353
Unrealised loss on cashflow ReEMMAEREE
hedges (Note 40) (FizE40) - - (9,211) - - (9,211)
Fair value movements of available  #{EHE4 A BT £)
for sale investments held by A ER AR
associates AR BEES - - - 2,188 - 2,188
Fair value movements of available [t HEREH AL E
for sale investments - - - - (351) - (351)
Profit attributable to equity ARFERFAERGHE
shareholders of the Company - - - - 2,953,645 2,953,645
Acquisition of non-controlling WEEHB R A
interests in subsidiaries JErR R R
(Note 22(0)&(d) (HtzE22(0)70(d) (490,151) - - - - (490,151)
Others Hity 343,786 - - - - 343,786
At 31 December 2012 —T——%+-A=1—H
Feees 18,014,954 (720,057) (296,149) 76,641 (5,426,130) 11,649,259
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43. RESERVES (continued) 43. f#fE (&)
Company
|
Capital Hedging
Share reserve reserve  Accumulated
premium (Note (a)) (Note 40) losses Total
RAGE EXRGEE ENRE
(FF%40) (%)) (7H1g38) it BE it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARET T AR®T R ARET T AR%TR
At 1 January 2011 —Z——%—f-—-B#&# 17,747,785 (720,057) (154,492) (10,853,755) 6,019,481
Unrealised gain on cashflow hedges B & EHRREH s
(Note 40) (Kiz¥40) - - (182,446) - (132,446)
Transaction with non-controlling IR R S
interest 197,335 - - - 197,335
Profit for the year FEFE - - - 4,522,687 4,522,687
At 31 December 2011 —T——F+-A=+—HB#&H 17,945,120 (720,057) (286,938) (6,331,068) 10,607,057
At 1 January 2012 —E——_%—fF—B&% 17,945,120 (720,057) (286,938) (6,331,068) 10,607,057
Unrealised gain on cashflow hedges B & EER R BB Uik
(Note 40) GEZ0) - - (9,211) - ©,211)
Profit for the year FEERE - - - 2,516,007 2,516,007
Others Hih 343,786 - - - 343,786
At 31 December 2012 —E-—H+-A=1t—H#&H 18,288,906 (720,057) (296,149) (3,815,061) 13,457,639
Notes: AERE
(a) Capital reserve (a) EXxFEE

(b)

Capital reserve represents the difference between the fair value of the net
assets injected and the nominal amount of the Company’s share capital
issued in respect of a Group restructuring carried out in June 1996 for the
purpose of the Company’s listing.

Statutory and Discretionary Reserves

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Companies’ Articles of Association,
each of the Group companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for
the year, after offsetting the accumulated losses, as determined under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund until the
fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group company’s registered capital. The
statutory common reserve fund can be used to make good previous years’
losses, if any, and to issue new shares to shareholders in proportion to their
existing shareholdings or to increase the par value of the shares currently
held by them, provided that the balance after such issue is not less than
25% of the registered capital.

Each of the Group companies is permitted to transfer 5% of its profit
for the year as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to a
discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer to this reserve is subject to
approval at shareholders’ meetings or board meetings.

No profit appropriation by the Company to the statutory and discretionary

reserve fund was made for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil), as
the Company was in accumulated loss position as at 31 December 2012,
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44. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

45.

In December 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with a third
party to dispose certain aircraft and related engines in the forthcoming
12 months in consideration of high maintenance costs of these aircraft.
The aircraft and engines with an aggregated carrying value of RMB482
million (after the impairment loss charge) has been classified as assets
held for sale at 31 December 2011. An impairment loss charge of
approximately RMB612 million was made against these aircraft and
engines by reference to the contracted selling price (Note 10) for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The assets held for sale as at 31 December 2011 were disposed in 2012
and the selling price approximates its carrying value.

NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(@) Cash generated from operations

A4 BFEFEEE

45.

REZZE——F+=f AEERE=FARE:1H
& A2 A A SRR AR SN E T R
MEF - R=T——F+—_A=+—8 ' 1R
BEEBEETFEASAREA2EITH Eli R R
BEHRSPERAFEEE - BRBHERTEE -
AEEYH AR REDEIRBEEBARE
6.12187T (FI5E10) ©

KRB+ A=+ —BANKEAFEEEER
T FERE  REEREHLREEERLD -

BHRETRERMT

() BREELENRERE

2012 2011
—ZT—-F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Profit before income tax BiRiIFE 3,012,404 4,840,701
Adjustments for: FEIFE :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #13 - #25 &% K
and intangible assets B AENE 7,509,252 6,911,989
Gain on disposals of property, plant and Y - HEs KRB B R
equipment (101,196) (85,851)
Gain on disposals of assets-held-for-sale HEREFEEEN K = (2,585)
Gain on disposals of investment in subsidiaries Bz it BB A BIE Bk = (230)
Share of results of associates B A RER (103,209) (75,435)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BEEEARER (29,960) (31,437)
Amortisation of lease prepayments TEf TR E 47,658 A,7r7
Net foreign exchange gains HIE e (147,836) (1,872,369)
Gain arising from fair value movements of SRTETANAREE
derivative financial instruments ez (15,755) (49,183)
Consumption of flight equipment spare parts T 2 HE 747,268 739,663
Impairment (reversal)/provision for trade and JEUS AR R % E At FE RO B
other receivables B/ Chm) (6,872) 161,048
Provision for post-retirement benefits RIRBIRRIZE 581,775 478,502
Provision for return condition checks for LB ERMRARE
aircraft under operating leases P2 792,770 695,415
Impairment (reversal)/charges BERMEED), 18K (13,467) 638,316
Interest income FE U A (200,765) (151,633)
Interest expense FEEBA 1,697,474 1,462,727
Operating profit before working capital changes %438 & 7 & Bl 51 € /& I8 13,769,541 13,761,415
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE T ——F+-A=+—HILtFE

45.NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 45 A#EES T2 XU (8)
STATEMENT (continued)

(@) Cash generated from operations (continued)

() REELEMNRESRE(FE)

2012 2011
—EB——F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Changes in working capital EEEREH
Flight equipment spare parts TR (1,176,365) (1,023,437)
Trade receivables FEURER R (427,908) 104,977
Prepayments and other receivables TE A R R E A FE UK (99,757) 1,613,610
Restricted bank deposits and short-term bank [ &l 14 881777 35 F0%8 ERER 1T
deposits T 1,168,036 (945,157)
Sales in advance of carriage BEZER (103,222) 619,794
Trade payables and notes payables FERBRR RN EE 387,615 (1,601,517)
Other payables and accrued expenses HiE IR kTR E A 179,263 1,680,679
Other long-term liabilities HtwRAEE (3883,759) 86,728
Provision for return condition checks for KB THERM RS
aircraft under operating leases el (293,134) (316,686)
Staff housing allowances B TS AL 40,361 (144,272)
Post-retirement benefit obligations BRI RFERE (179,873) (152,358)
Operating lease deposits LEEHERS (57,963) 107,643
(946,706) 30,004
Cash generated from operations KEEENBHESRE 12,822,835 13,781,419
(b) Non-cash transactions (b) FREXRH
2012 2011
—ZT—-F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTIT
Financing activities not affecting cash: JEEESRMEEH -
Finance lease obligations incurred for NREfREsEE
acquisition of aircraft TR 5,712,958 4,181,145
5,712,958 4,181,145
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At
46. COMMITMENTS 46. HGh
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEARZ AR
The Group and the Company had the following capital AREBNRAARNERS HAEAELT -
commitments:
Group Company
&6 AL
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —E——%F —E-—fF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥F R ARETFT
Authorised and contracted for: B RET4IR)
— Aircraft, engines and flight — M - BB
equipment (Note) TRAT M (GE) 172,092,301 108,297,645 167,275,050 103,173,999
— Other property, plant and —HMmE - =k
equipment B 1,125,000 568,565 1,125,000 495,000
— Investment — K& - - 525,000 -

173,217,301 108,866,210 168,925,050 103,668,999

Authorised but not contracted for: B iRHE(ERET4IEY

— Other property, plant and —HEfthE - s K
equipment B 3,132,616 3,193,495 1,749,353 2,306,832
— Investment — K& 124,800 - 649,800 1,125,000
3,257,416 3,193,495 2,399,153 3,431,832
176,474,717 112,059,705 171,324,203 107,100,831
Note: 7o
Contracted expenditures for the above aircraft, engines and flight equipment, LA_E TR - S Eis & AT R B IR B AT E £ Ry Ak 4 TE AR
including deposits prior to delivery, subject to future inflation increases built T BefEAREEE AT AETRBRARMES) - B
into the contracts were expected to be paid as follows: SRR ¢
Group Company
&5 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F —E-—fF —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARKETTT ARETR ARETT
Within one year —&FR 26,320,538 17,934,594 24,137,187 17,640,003
In the second year E_F 44,435,072 22,248,728 42,541,238 20,060,026
In the third year E=5F 51,730,954 29,884,980 50,990,886 27,986,506
In the fourth year FEUF 28,830,539 31,362,018 28,830,539 30,620,138
Over four years HBBIYE 20,775,198 6,867,325 20,775,200 6,867,326

172,092,301 108,297,645 167,275,060 103,173,999
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46. COMMITMENTS (continued) 46. EH(8)

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REMIEER

As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had
commitments under operating leases to pay future minimum lease

REEBEBERA  ARERARRHEEMNE
HAEA I TR FoAGs -

rentals as follows:

Group Company
| AF
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T F =%B-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT AR¥F R ARETT
Aircraft, engines and flight TR BENER
equipment RITERE
Within one year —FR 3,833,550 3,750,437 1,311,104 1,680,735
In the second year E_F 3,504,777 3,545,992 1,171,718 1,629,785
In the third to fifth year inclusive FE=FZFERF
(BEEREME) 7,900,135 8,256,751 2,911,533 3,409,279
After the fifth year AFLAR 6,438,693 5,368,641 1,464,294 1,541,119
21,677,155 20,921,821 6,858,649 8,160,918
Land and buildings T REF
Within one year —FR 240,084 241,693 92,902 31,447
In the second year EF 176,726 212,170 51,588 28,314
In the third to fifth year inclusive FE=FZFERF
(BEEREMF) 413,229 335,454 102,227 48,201
After the fifth year AFLAR 2,072,525 2,767,760 12,448 53,502
2,902,564 3,557,077 259,165 161,464
24,579,719 24,478,898 7,117,814 8,322,382
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47.

The Group is controlled by CEA Holding, which directly owns 42.84%
of the Company’s shares as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 42.84%). In
addition, through CES Global Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CEA Holding, CEA Holding owns 17.09% of the
Company’s shares as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 17.09%).

(@) Nature of related parties that do not control or
controlled by the Group:

Name of related party

BHEEALRS

REEBRTPBEREMEERLES c RZZT——F+=HA
=t+—HB FEEMEEEEFEALF42.84%
(T ——% :4284%) ° L R=F
——&+-A=t+—8 TEEMEEBEBHEEZE
MR R R A BRI AR (B ) AR A AR AR A
17.09% M IRHE (=T ——4F : 17.09%) °

(a) BHRZTAEEEG 2N H MR
AEBEEBRBAL -

Relationship with the Group

BREBALTERE BAKEREF
Eastern Finance Controlled by the same parent company
Ep s A —&A FHE]

Kunming Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. (‘Kunming Dongmei”)

ERAREMZEREGRAR(EBHRE])

Dongmei Travel

RERE

Xian Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. (“Xian Dongmei”)

BAZREMERERRAR([ERRE])

Eastern Import & Export

RAEH O

Wheels & Brakes

W R 22

Technologies Aerospace

BHEFM

Shanghai P&W

FEEE

Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Catering”)

PERERAMERMER AR LEHRE])

Eastern Advertising

RARLE

CEA Development Co. Ltd. (“CEA Development”)

EBRFMEBEXAR([RBEE])

Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation
(“Eastern Aviation”)

EERAMEREBEEFR AR ([RMRERE])

Shanghai Hute Aviation Tech. Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai Hute”)

PERESMERMERA R LEER])

Shanghai Eastern International Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. (‘Eastern Aviation
Travel’)

EERGMZERRREER AR A R ([ R REER |)

Eastern China Kaiya System Integration (“China Kaiya”)

FERMERIDRGERARAR ([FEREDE])

CEA Northwest Co., Ltd. (‘CEA Northwest”)

PERMEEFEIE AR ([ REERL S AR )

Shanghai Aviation Import & Export Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Import & Export”)

FEfEEER AARAR(T EAmELHD )

Shanghai Eastern Airlines Investment Co., Ltd. (‘Eastern investment”)

PERAMEREFRAR(RHMIRE )

Eastern Airlines Travel Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. (‘Eastern Travel”)

R g (KB AR AR ([ RATHRE D)
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Controlled by the same parent company
e RSN L]

Associate of the Company
RRAFZHE AT

Controlled by the same parent company
e RSN L]

Associate of the Company
RRAFZHE AT

Joint controlled entity of the Company
RRAFIZEERT

Joint controlled entity of the Company
RRAFIZEERT

Associate of the Company

KRR ZHE AT

Controlled by the same parent company
e RSN L]

Associate of the Company

KRR ZHE AT

Controlled by the same parent company

FR—B AT

Controlled by the same parent company
e RSN L]
Controlled by the same parent company

FR—SAFEH

Controlled by the same parent company
FR—BATH

Controlled by the same parent company
FR—B AT

Controlled by the same parent company
e RSN L]

Associate of the Company
A/NCI i = UNG|

Associate of the Company

KRR ZHE AT

Associate of the Company
RAFZHE AT
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Related party transaction

47. BRABALR 5 (&)

(b) ERAEALRS

Income/(expense or payments)

WA (BASZTSEE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2012 2011
REME BREATL —E-CF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
With CEA Holding or companies directly or indirectly held by CEA Holding:
BEAERMEERHPERMEEEEREEEFNAR
Interest income on deposits at an average rate of Eastern Finance 45,996 46,242
0.39% per annum (2011: 0.50% per annum) HANE 75
TFRFEWA - FF5F%0.39%
(ZZ——%F : F9FIZE0.50%)
Interest expense on loans at average rate of Eastern Finance (87,457) (61,117)
5.49% per annum (2011: 5.39% per annum) HANE 75
ERFEZ L - FH*5.49% CEA Holding - (476)
(ZZ——F : FF%539%) HER SR
Commission expense on air tickets sold on Dongmei Travel (12,438) (11,218)
behalf of the Group, at rates ranging R E
from 3% to 9% of the value of tickets sold** Kunming Dongmei (4,858) (8,285)
HEHERS - HEZRSENS%EI% ISEESS
Xian Dongmei (2,540) (858)
PARRE
Handling charges of 0.1% to 2% for purchase of Eastern Import & Export (78,756) (57,682)
aircraft, flight equipment, flight equipment iR A
spare parts, other property, plant and equipment
and repairs for aircraft and engines™
BB - RITRE - RITREZH REMEEEE
RREEEFRZ N TFEE - BEERN0.1%%22%
Repairs and maintenance expense for aircraft Wheels & Brakes (58,483) (52,098)
and engines** HEm A=
TR BB IE RREE B Technologies Aerospace (194,528) (169,698)
BHRFM
Shanghai P&W (2,009,050) (1,170,567)
EBEE
Supply of food and beverages* Shanghai Catering and (783,384) (737,827)
BER R HERNE B its subsidiaries
EEMAREMBAT
Advertising expense** Eastern Advertising (38,846) (18,202)
EEEA R
Media royalty fee** Eastern Advertising 36,030 12,900

REERRERE RAUFLR
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  47. Bf8EA T2 5 (&)

(b) Related party transaction (continued) (b) BEREEALRS (&)

Income/(expense or payments)

WA (BAREGEEE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2012 2011
XHMHE BEEAL —E-C-F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Automobile maintenance service, aircraft Maintenance, = CEA Development (121,854) (102,614)
providing transportation Automobile and other RmEZE
products**
AEEIRRTE - REEEEERT
38 B A R S R R DA R R
Equipment maintenance fee** Shanghai Hute (47,205) (89,662)
BRREEEREERE FERRE
Land and building rental CEA Holding (66,763) (65,140)
MEBEE AR AR
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries**  CEA Holding (83,952) (47,211)
Wi B P /B8 7 B O FE A% o) 1 e e AR AR
Shanghai Import & Export (20,694) -
FHERD
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in associates™* Eastern Travel (13,851) -
Wi e i I B B FEARE ) 1 e L0 E S
Acquisition of cargo business Great Wall Airlines - (857,261)
Wi EE X Rikfnze
Disposal of investment in an associate** Eastern Investment 93,680 -
kN R E
* The Group’s pricing policies on products purchased from related * AREBERBEBB HNERNEBREETHE

parties are based on mutually agreed prices between contract parties.

**  The Group’s pricing policies on services provided by and to related * AEEBEIEB A IRENSBOESIED
parties are based on the mutually agreed prices between contract SBRER HSE TG EEE o
parties.

**  The Company’s pricing policies on transfer of equity or dispose of e REERRE O REEEMEERENEBRE

investment are based on the valuation prices.
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Balances with related companies

(i)

Amounts due from related companies

A7. BRAEANTR B (E)
(c) BEBREALRE

) EUEBEEARNE

Group Company
&5 AT
Nature Company 2012 2011 2012 2011
HE REERB —BE-—fF T —EB--F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETFT AR¥TR ARETT
Trade receivables Kunming Dongmei
JEUBR R AR 4,213 211 - -
Eastern Aviation Travel
R A B B e 8 2 - 11,012 - 11,012
China Cargo
REM = = 2,181,624 1,215,770
Others
Efth 4,308 2,340 6,305 16,717
8,521 13,563 2,187,929 1,243,499
Prepayments, and other  Eastern Import & Export
receivable Rin#EH O 370,125 218,753 309,119 101,846
TET R R E A FE KGR China Kaiya
ERHDE 19,694 16,189 19,694 16,189
Shanghai Airlines
gz - - 2,245,339 688,897
China Cargo
HREM = = 748,386 553,860
United Airlines
AR EsEAT - - 638,234 1,489
CEA Yunnan
RER - - 462,702 254,872
CEA Wuhan
RnEE - - 34,518 628,468
Others
Efth 13,025 14,923 119,560 80,604
402,844 249,865 4,577,552 2,326,225
All the amounts due from related companies are trade in FrERKRE@ERRINRIE  2RESHIE
nature, interest free and payable within normal credit terms B AEERGTRESER —HKHIE

given to trade customers.

205

HER -



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED #EEAFMERMHER QA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR BT ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (3% B0 81 16 & # 81 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE —T——F+_A=+—HILFE

Bt

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  47. B:@E AT 5 (&)

=
(c) Balances with related companies (continued) (c) BERAEALTEREE(E)
(i) Amounts due to related companies (i) ENEEEQIRRIE
Group Company
£H AT
Nature Company 2012 2011 2012 2011
HE DREH =B-=F —F—F =B-=fF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT AR%TR ARETT
Trade payables and Eastern Import & Export
notes payable BRI O 1,210,603 747,179 852,156 652,287
FERERFR R BN =& Shanghai P&W
beEE 467,885 278,778 422,574 278,778
Shanghai Catering
EEmR 134,696 120,260 119,953 14,344
Technologies Aerospace
BHEEFM 63,136 28,708 60,201 9,955
China Cargo
REM - - 1,736,158 869,546
CEA Yunnan
RMER - - 1,264,452 -
Shanghai Airlines
EEfzE - - 947,158 681,745
CEA Jiangsu
RATIER - - 757,453 251,506
United Airlines
R Bk - - 724,879 12,096
Others
Efth 73,324 41,392 289,818 154,833
1,949,644 1,216,312 7,174,802 2,925,090
Other payables and Eastern Import & Export
accrued expenses RfTELR D 96,861 1,244 96,811 -
HENRKRIEREM  CEA Holding
Fh B B A AR 73,020 87,115 72,997 37,582
Eastern Air Overseas HK
RAUEINEB)BRAR - - 1,557,295 692,924
China Cargo
e - - 220,054 187,309
United Airlines
FRESEAT - - 188,379 361
Shanghai Airlines
sz - - 93,955 73,616
Others
Hit 25,003 8,231 182,737 109,362
194,884 96,590 2,412,228 1,101,154
Except for the amounts due to CEA Holding, which are FBEENABERARKIEA - BT EMH
reimbursement in nature, all other amounts due to related BISRMERARIBARBRIN  2REH
companies are trade in nature. All amounts due to related g - FIAENEBEARZIERZ AT
companies are interest free and payable within normal credit e R TIRE DR E i B
terms given by trade creditors. H o
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balances with related companies (continued)

(iii) Short-term deposits and borrowings with associates

47. BRABALR 5 (&)

(c) BEAEALERE(E)

(i) EBEEE AT RPERMEEFHFERA

and CEA Holding EEHER
Average interest rate Group Company
FigFlE £8 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“g--f -ZI——% ZE--“f -T——% C-E--f -—ZT—%&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETL AR®TR ARET:L
Short-term deposits (included S EiTE Rk (BIEER HI1E
in restricted bank deposits BITER R EHRTT
and short-term bank deposits) 73X/ [ R #7E17 |
“Eastern Finance” 0.39% 0.50% 1,451,526 2,204,510 3,713 232,236
Short-term loans RHER
(included in borrowings) (BREEEZA)
“Eastern Finance” [ Rfmer ] 4.98% 5.02% 675,426 176,425 = -
Long-term loans REBEH
(included in borrowings) (BHEEERA)
“Eastern Finance” X 5.64% 5.64% 165,000 135,000 - -

(d) Guarantees by holding company
As at 31 December 2012, bank loans of the Group with an

aggregate amount of RMB95 million (2011: RMB228 million) were
guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note 34).
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  47. Bf8EA T2 5 (&)

(e) Key management compensation (e) SRITHAEMSE
The compensation paid or payable to key management for O ENEERITERAENNSETERHT
employee services mainly comprised of salaries and other short- B E A5G ERRE TAEAIZEAK - 2T T -

term employee benefits and was analysed as below:

2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF ARETT
Directors and supervisors (Note 9(a)) BENMEE(FE) 3,393 2,885
Senior management BRITHAE 2,742 2,740
6,135 5,625
= Fo L\ =
48. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 48. FRARTEARA A
The Directors regard CEA Holding, a state-owned enterprise established ARARINEEATBERMEE - —F N T B
in the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company. BALEAARABRKERAT °
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
M HEER

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from the £t & GfEA &R B ANEBRFEHE S ERGEEH
consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared under the PRC  &4tEIF5FREK °
Accounting Standards.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME f&8{tA&6F 8%
STATEMENT

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards) (I iR 25 R R)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—F——Ff - HA=+—HIFE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Revenue BEWA 85,569,250 83,974,505
Less: Cost of operation W EERA (74,700,310) (70,447,837)
Taxes and surcharges B & RN (670,131) (1,803,091)
Selling and distribution expenses HEBA (5,443,022) (5,406,103)
General and administrative expense EIEER (2,743,290) (2,576,470)
Finance expenses, net S ER - FE (1,464,341) 441,072
Impairment loss BERAERK 20,339 (799,364)
Add: Fair value gain m: AR EBEEEEE 24,831 86,851
Investment income B W 234,058 128,122
Operating profit EERE 827,384 3,597,685
Add: Non-operating income o EEEINA 2,711,511 1,598,522
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEIT (23,239) (28,493)
Total profit F s s 3,615,656 5,167,714
Less: Income tax W TSR ER (215,328) (265,227)
Net profit FFHE 3,300,328 4,902,487
Attribute to: BERN
— Equity shareholders of the Company —KRARIERFEE 3,430,105 4,886,702
- Non-controlling interests — FEPE SRR (129,777) 15,785
3,300,328 4,902,487
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FLtEHEERER
(#Zh E Za 2ERfm2Y)
BE T —Ff - A=+—HIFE

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
—E-——F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Assets BE

Total current assets MEVEE 12,674,829 13,712,403
Long-term investment REARAEIRE 1,484,366 1,498,881
Fixed assets and construction in progress BEEEEREETR 94,360,751 84,651,280
Goodwiill EE 8,509,030 8,509,030
Intangible assets and non-current assets EEEENMEMIEREEE 3,921,460 3,831,131
Deferred tax assets BIEFTS R & = 12,043 12,427
Total assets EEA 120,962,479 112,215,152

Liabilities and equity EERRRER
Current liabilities REAE 48,841,545 43,664,571
Non-current liabilities FERBAaE 47,048,966 46,375,842
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTISH B & 29,326 29,326
Total Liabilities aE& 95,919,837 90,069,739
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERIEEE 23,376,346 20,437,377
Non-controlling interests FEIR RS 1,666,296 1,708,036
Total equity RS 25,042,642 22,145,413
Total liabilities and equity EERREEREET 120,962,479 112,215,152
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(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN (A) BRI i sREER|EHAPH ¥
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STERMERER
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS
The Group’s accounting policies, which conform with IFRS, differ in 7N = E HE A B R B 7S s A5 22 Al 2 5 R AR B
certain aspects from PRC Accounting Regulations. Differences between Lo ERGFEAEZE BRI BREERRPR
IFRS and PRC Accounting Standards which have a significant effect o RN EREN AN RS EEGTE R
on the consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the AEEEHFEENEANTZEEENT ¢
Company and consolidated net assets of the Group are summarised as
follows:
2012 2011
—E-=F —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥TT AREBFT

Consolidated profit attributable to equity Z<A T HE L ELSGEFIE
shareholders of the Company

As stated in accordance with PRC RIFPBETE S ERTIR
Accounting Standards 3,430,105 4,886,702
Impact of IFRS and other adjustments: I3 R B 745 s o ZE B e L b EE Y
%
— Provision for post-retirement benefits — RN RFIFZERE (@) (401,901) (326,145)
- Difference in depreciation charges for — R T RA{ERER
aircraft and engines due to different IERK M N B B AT B
depreciation lives and revaluation HER (b) (21,958) (9,288)
— Deferred tax adjustments —RIEF IR AR () 10,527 998
_ Others —Hfh (63,128) 23,465
As stated in accordance with IFRS IR BRI 3R 5 22 A5 R 2,953,645 4,575,732
2012 2011
—E-=F T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B2 AR¥ T ARETFT
Consolidated net assets attributable to A FERIZTEEBIESH
equity shareholders of the Company BEE
As stated in accordance with PRC Accounting 515 /0 Bl 1> 2 @ £+ 481|517 R
Standards 23,376,346 20,437,377
Impact of IFRS and other adjustments: (30 R B 745 s o ZE B e L b A EE Y
wE
— Provision for post-retirement benefits —IRIKERFIR (@) (3,345,329) (2,943,428)
— Difference in depreciation charges for — AR F A5 A FR
aircraft and engines due to different IEPK TR N B BT B
depreciation lives and revaluation H=2E (o) 52,901 74,859
— Intangibles assets (Goodwill) —EREE(EE) (©) 2,760,665 2,760,665
— Deferred tax adjustments —IRIEF IR AR (d) 42,518 31,991
— Others —Hf 38,697 (235,572)
As stated in accordance with IFRS TR 15 BB B A3 5 2E 1|51 R 22,925,798 20,125,892
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(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(@)

Under the PRC Accounting Standards, employees’ post-retirement
benefits are recognised upon payment. Under IFRS, such post-
retirement benefits under defined benefit schemes are required to
be recognised over the employees’ service period using projected
unit credit method.

Under the PRC Accounting Standards, on or before 30 June
2001, depreciation of aircraft was calculated to write off their costs
on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of 10 to 15
years to their residual values of 3%. With effect from 1 July 2001,
depreciation of aircraft under the PRC Accounting Standards is
calculated to write off their costs on a straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives of 15 to 20 years to their residual values of
5% of costs, the change was applied prospectively which resulted
in the difference in the carrying amounts under IFRS and the
PRC Accounting Standards. These differences will be reduced
progressively in the coming years, and will be fully eliminated when
the related assets are fully depreciated or disposed.

The recognition and measurement of the fair values of the
acquisition costs and identifiable assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Airlines acquired are different under IFRS and the PRC Accounting
Standards, which result in difference in the intangibles/goodwill
recognised arising from the acquisition.

This represents the corresponding deferred tax effects related to
the items above.
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DIRECTORS

Liu Shaoyong (Chairman)

Ma Xulun (Vice Chairman, President)

Xu Zhao (Director)

Gu Jiadan (Director)

Li Yangmin (Director, Vice President)

Tang Bing (Director, Vice President)

Luo Zhuping (Director, Company Secretary?)

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu (Independent Non-executive Director)
Wu Xiaogen (Independent Non-executive Director)
Ji Weidong (Independent Non-executive Director)
Shao Ruiqing (Independent Non-executive Director)

SUPERVISORS

Yu Faming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Xi Sheng (Supervisor)

Liu Jiashun (Supervisor)

Feng Jinxiong (Supervisor)

Yan Taisheng (Supervisor)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shu Mingjiang (Vice President)

Wu Yongliang (Vice President, Chief Financial Officer)
Tian Liuwen (Vice President)

Wang Jian (Board Secretary, Joint Company Secretary)

COMPANY SECRETARY*

Wang Jian
Ngai Wai Fung

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Liu Shaoyong
Wang Jian*

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
http://www.ceair.com

COMPANY’S E-MAIL ADDRESS

ir@ceair.com

* With effect from 6 April 2012, Mr. Luo Zhuping ceased to act as the Company
Secretary and the Authorised Representative; and Mr. Wang Jian and Mr. Ngai
Wai Fung have been appointed as the Joint Company Secretaries, and Mr.
Wang Jian has also been appointed as an Authorised Representative.
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AUDITORS

International Auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Domestic Auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers

Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company
11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

2 Corporate Avenue,
202 Hu Bin Road
Shanghai 200021
PRC

LEGAL ADVISERS

Hong Kong: Baker & McKenzie
USA: Baker & McKenzie
China: Beiing Commerce & Finance Law Office

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Shanghai Branch
China Construction Bank, Shanghai Branch
The Bank of China, Shanghai Branch

SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
188 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

The Bank of New York
101 Barclay Street
New York, NY 10286 USA

China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited, Shanghai Branch
166 East Lu Jiazui Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai
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The Bank of New York
101 Barclay Street
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit B, 31/F., United Centre, 95 Queensway, Hong Kong.

CUSTODIAN FOR LISTED SHARES WITH TRADING
MORATORIUM

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,
Shanghai Branch

CHANGE OF BUSINESS LICENSE REGISTRATION

The Company changed its business license registration due to changes in the
registered capital of the Company.

Registered capital of the Company is RMB11,276,538,860 at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Business License Registration Number of the Corporation Legal
Person: 310000400111686 (Airport)

Tax Registration Number: 310105741602981

) S g Ay
EE%EZEE\/% El i /\\\E
B EBESHA—

[REMBBRENFE RS

FO31IEBE

REBSERAEAREEARLLEA AT
EEPREMEEF/R
EATRMEREARE  ARSERBETT R
BHo

WEMRARFMERAARK11,276,538,8607T
T EE AL EHBAMR - 310000400111686 (#35)

B EFTIE - 310105741602981

RRAIARIRFRE BN A TS THARR T —FEREE TR

http://www.ceair.com

Shareholders can obtain a copy of the Company’s annual report for the year 2012 through the Internet addresses shown below:

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaeast
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COMPANY’S REGISTERED CHINESE NAME NAB R XL E
AR MR AR AR FRERER A2 i D B BR A Al

COMPANY’S ENGLISH NAME INGIE S &=

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

COMPANY’S ABBREVIATED ENGLISH NAME NCIEE =
CEA CEA
COMPANY’S LEGAL ADDRESS NELAEEHIHE
66 Airport Street, R B L R SR B
Pudong International Airport, W35 135 R 3B 6657
Shanghai, China

POSTAL CODE B ARG
201202 201202
COMPANY’S OFFICE ADDRESS NGIEN b
2550 Hongaiao Road, FE EET
Shanghai, China T 5% 255057
POSTAL CODE B A 155
200335 200335
COMPANY’S LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE NENVEEREKA
Liu Shaoyong 2R E
COMPANY’S WEBSITE ADDRESS INGIE bl
Www.ceair.com WwWWw.ceair.com
COMPANY’S E-MAIL ADDRESS UNGIESE S
ir@ceair.com ir@ceair.com
TELEPHONE i

(86-21) 6268 6268 (86-21) 6268 6268
FACSIMILE (E8E]

(86-21) 6268 6116 (86-21) 6268 6116
PLACES OF LISTING NEIIRE E
The Shanghai Stock Exchange LBBEERZ G

Code: 600115
Abbreviation: CEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Code: 00670

The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.
Code: CEA

FRZERAS : 600115
BR RS - Az

EBMARSETERAT]
FRZMRAS © 00670

RRBHFZ M
A& ZHS - CEA



&% This annual report is printed on environmentally friendly paper.
& s msEREED -



(:@ PEARSMERBERAT

CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

WWW.Ceair.com



	COVER
	INSIDE FRONT COVER
	CONTENTS
	INTERNATIONAL AIRLINE NETWORK
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS DATA
	SUMMARY OF SELECTED OPERATING DATA
	FLEET
	SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	REPORT OF DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
	REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
	SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	COMPANY PROFILE
	INSIDE BACK COVER
	BACK COVER

